THE CHOICE [S YOURS

?Medifastylnc.
2010 Annual Report



Medifast empowers its customers with CHOICES. Through
clinically proven weight-loss programs and a wide range of
more than 70 meal replacements, Medifast helps build the
right path for lasting weight loss and better health.

Medifast customers also choose the support they need.
With high-touch walk-in centers, free health coaches, medical
professional support, and a vibrant, online community,
Medifast offers a wide variety of programs that suit the
individual preferences of anyone looking to effectively lose
weight and get healthy.

The Choice is Yours.
Choose Medifast.



Letter to
Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

In 2010, Medifast celebrated 30 years as a
leading provider of weight-management
products and programs to combat the obesity
epidemic in the United States. Medifast's
proprietary technology as a medically
formulated, portion-controlled meal-
replacement program has been time tested and
designed not only to help customers lose weight
quickly and safely but also to improve and
maintain their health for the long term.

What truly differentiates Medifast from its
competitors is the variety of choices we give
our customers in successfully completing their
weight-loss journey. With four distinct service
channels and a menu of over 70 meal items
to choose from, our customers regale in good
choices.

Since 1980, over 20,000 doctors across the
country have recommended Medifast to help
their patients lose weight. But today’s Medifast
customers also find their weight-management
solutions on the Internet, through participation
in coaching and counseling programs, and
through our weight-management centers, a retail
presence in professional office buildings and
shopping centers.

Today, Medifast meets our customers' needs in
all of these scenarios with the same effective
products at the support level that they choose.
Medifast offers unique protocols in each
channel—reinforcing our commitment to
customer satisfaction through customer-oriented
choice and customer-oriented results.

As a result of meeting our customers’ needs,
our company has been named the #| Best
Small Company in America by Forbes magazine
for 2010. This honor is based on the past five
years' financial performance of companies

that do less than $1 billion in annual revenue.
In fact, Medifast has attained a record of over
45 quarters of consecutive profitability and a
449% combined aggregate growth rate in our
business since 1999, far exceeding the long-term
performance of our national competitors for
that time period.

The Company in 2010 attained record revenues
of $257.6 million, an increase of 52%, and
improved profits by 73% to $19.6 million
compared to 2009. Over the past dozen years,
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stockholder equity has grown from minus $1
million to more than $72 million at the end of
last year with a year-end cash and investment
balance of $34.4 million. This growth was
accomplished primarily by utilizing internal
resources and without taking on significant new
debt.

To accommodate this unprecedented growth,
the Company is now embarking on the largest
expansion in its history. We expanded facilities
and infrastructure, including a new distribution
center in Texas to support our West Coast
customer base, and leased two additional

office facilities in Owings Mills, MD, to support
the organic growth of our business units.

The significant expansion in manufacturing
operations created more than 250 new Medifast
jobs in 2010. This commitment to U.S. domestic
employment growth is woven into the fabric
of our business plan and will continue to bring
desperately needed manufacturing jobs to
Maryland, Texas, and beyond.

Growth, however, is not without challenges.

In March 2011, our new independent auditor
requested the re-evaluation of whether our
historical and then current practices with
respect to the timing for recognition of certain
expenses were appropriate under generally
accepted accounting principles. Given the
proximity of their request to the due date for
our SEC filings, we requested an automatic
extension from the SEC to file Form 10K This
provided the time for our new auditor to confer
with our predecessor auditor and management
to accurately resolve the questions. After due
consideration, we determined to restate our
financial statements for the years 2008 and 2009
to reflect the recognition of certain expenses
in the year in which they were incurred rather
than when they were paid. A restatement was
issued on March 31,201 for the years ending
December 31,2008 and 2009. The change in
recognition, however, was not material to our
December 31, 2010 results that reflect profit
growth of 73% year over year
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The Board's Audit Committee held numerous
meetings during this audit period, and
management of the company was actively
engaged in the audit process. We continue

to invest in our internal audit capability to
complement our historical and forecasted
growth. We are well aware of the unfortunate
volatility in the stock price that, in our judgment,
is primarily due to the short selling that
occurred despite our record of 45 consecutive
profitable quarters for our business. The bottom
line is strong. The Company's earnings report
after the extension far exceeded the Board's
approved forecast for both revenues and
profits, and continued our lengthy record of
outperformance.

We continue to be fully committed to
combating the national obesity epidemic and
helping to make America healthy by providing
the best array of weight-management products
and services available. We will continue to put
a premium on customer choice and are looking
forward to achieving our goal for another
banner year of growth and financial success in
fiscal year 20I1.

We whole-heartedly thank our valued
customers, Medifast employees, Take Shape For
Life Health Coaches, Medifast Weight Control
Center Operators, Medifast Medical Providers,
Board of Directors, and Shareholders for your
continued support of Medifast, Inc.

Best Regards,

Bradley T. MacDonald :

Executive Chairman of Medifast, Inc.
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Michael S. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer



Medifast Board of Directors

Seated from left to right:
Margaret Sheetz, President and Chief Operating Officer; Sr. Catherine T. Maguire, RSM; Jeannette M. Mills; and Jerry D. Reece

Standing from left to right:
Charles P Connolly; Harvey C.“Barney” Barnum, Jr; Donald F. Reilly, OSA; George |. Lavin, Jr,, Esg; Michael S. McDevitt, Chief Executive
Officer; Bradley T. MacDonald, Executive Chairman of the Board; John P McDaniel; Jason L. Groves, Esq; Barry B. Bondroff, CPA

Not Pictured: Michael C. MacDonald
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MULTIPLE
DISTRIBUTION
CHANNELS,
ONE MISSION

People who are overweight or obese represent a diverse
population; there is no one method of support that works equally
well for everyone.

Medifast implements its products and programs through four
unique distribution channels to accommodate different needs and
preferences and ensure that as many people as possible can reach
and maintain their weight loss goals.

Direct-to-
Consumer

Direct
Selling

Retall
Presence in
Professional
Office
Buildings and
Shopping
Centers

Licensed
Health
Care
Providers




JESSICA WESTMORELAND
Medifast Direct client

“l chose Medifast because
since | got healthy, my
relationships have changed
in a positive way. | am
happier, more confident,
and, for once, | feel
deserving of love and
friendship.”

Medifast Direct is a popular
choice for self-starters who
are highly motivated and who
may prefer to pursue their
weight loss goals privately and
independently.

In this direct-to-consumer
channel, customers order
Medifast products directly
through the Company's website
or through its in-house contact
center. The products are

then shipped directly to the
customer.

This business is driven by an
aggressive multimedia customer
acquisition strategy that
includes print, radio, television,

and Web advertising, direct mail,

and public relations and social
media initiatives.

Medifast Direct

The Medifast Direct channel
focuses on targeted marketing
programs and provides
customer support through its
in-house contact center and
team of registered, licensed
dietitians, certified personal
trainers, and a behavior
specialist through toll-free
phone access, email, and online
discussion boards.

In addition, Medifast continues
to build on its solid Web
technology, providing
customized meal planning

and client support. Medifast's
online community, MyMedifast,
provides support forums and a

library of articles on weight loss,

health, and nutrition, as well as
meal planning tools and social
media functions.

%Medifasta
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Take Shape For Life

Take Shape For Life is the direct
selling division of Medifast. At
the heart of this physician-led
business model is the Take
Shape For Life Health Coach,
who is trained and educated

to support clients on the
Medifast 5 & | Plan® with
encouragement, education, and
mentoring.

Three unique components
make up a “triad of health”
that is the basis for the Take
Shape For Life program.The
combination of the Medifast
Program, the support of the
Health Coach, and co-founder
Dr.Wayne S. Andersen’s Habits
of Health system is what sets
Take Shape For Life apart and
helps create lasting well-being.

Take Shape For Life offers

the BeSIim® lifestyle as a way
to facilitate long-term weight
maintenance. Take Shape For
Life also shows clients how to
achieve a balance of physical,
mental, and financial well-being,

Take Shape
For Life.

Leo V.Williams, IlI

Chairman of
Take Shape For Life

which is referred to as the
Trilogy of Optimal Health®.

In addition to the
encouragement and support
of their Health Coaches, clients
of Take Shape For Life can avall
themselves of program support
calls and access to doctors,
nurses, and registered, licensed
dietitians through toll-free
phone access, email, and online
discussion boards.

Take Shape For Life provides
an exciting home-business
opportunity for those clients
who wish to share their success
with others by becoming
Health Coaches themselves.

Since 2003, Take Shape For
Life has been a member of
the Direct Selling Association
(DSA), a national trade
association representing over
200 direct selling companies
doing business in the

United States.

A\
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MEMBER
DIRECT SELLIN(
ASSOCIATION

“l chose Medifast and Take
Shape For Life because

of my Health Coach.The
other day a newbie at my
gym actually asked me if |
was a trainer! In May 2009,
that would never have
entered anyone’s mind! |
love what Take Shape For
Life has done for me!”

Linda Sue Hundley
TSFL Health Coach




“l chose Medifast because
the support | received
from my Medifast Weight
Control Center staff was
incredible. | never felt
judged—they truly wanted
to see me succeed and did
everything in their power
to see that | did.”

CHRISTINA ROBERTO
MWCC member

For customers who prefer a
more structured approach with
greater personal accountability,
Medifast Weight Control
Centers is the ideal choice.

Medifast Weight Control
Centers bring a retail presence
in professional office buildings
and shopping centers, offering
comprehensive Medifast

plans for weight loss and
maintenance, a medical review,
customized member counseling,
and InBody™ composition
analysis.

Members receive the nutritional
and full-scale behavioral
support tools needed for
enduring health and well-being,
based on their individual goals.

Medifast Weight Control
Centers' local advertising
includes radio, print, television,
billboard, and Web initiatives;
the business channel also
benefits from the nationally
advertised Medifast brand,
which encourages walk-ins and
referrals from other Medifast
business channels.

Medifast Weight Control Centers

%Medifast

WEIGHT CONTROL CENTERS.
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Medifast Medical Providers

Medifast Medical Providers are those licensed
health care providers who have implemented
the Medifast Program within their practices. They
carry an inventory of Medifast products that they
resell to their patients.

Medifast Medical Providers provide appropriate
medical monitoring, testing, and support for their
patients who are on the Medifast Program. This
is especially vital for those Medifast clients with
co-morbidities such as diabetes, heart disease,
and hypertension.

The Company offers an additional in-house
support program to assist Medical Providers and
their staff, including access to registered, licensed
dietitians, certified personal trainers, and a
behavior specialist through toll-free phone access
and email, as well as Web- and phone-based
training sessions and informative program guides.

GARY MANKO, M.D.
Medical Provider

“l chose Medifast because
my overweight patients
have heard they ‘need to
lose weight’ thousands of

times, but no one has given
them something that works
like the Medifast Program.

Medi aSt For the first time, | have a
® solution that gives people a
MEDICAL ~ PROVIDERS likelihood of success,and a

program that’s easy to do.”
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A SAFE AND EFFECTIVE
SOLUTION TO AMERICA'S
OBESITY EPIDEMIC

The consequences of obesity and poor nutrition in America are sobering:

The obesity epidemic was much less urgent in 1980 when Medifast started, but today, according to the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, two-thirds of Americans are overweight or obese and at increased risk for heart disease, diabetes, and other health problems.

> Less than one-third of U.S. adults are at a healthy weight.'
> Obesity-related illness costs America 39.3 million lost work days.?

» For decades, the U.S. has been slipping in international rankings of life expectancy, while other
countries have improved health care, nutrition, and lifestyles.?

» According to the U.S. Surgeon General and the Harvard School of Public Health, obesity poses a
major public health challenge. Each year, obesity and/or overweight contribute to an estimated
112,000 — 216,000 preventable deaths, respectively.*?

| National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kidney Diseases (NIDDK), of the U.S. National Institutes of Health.
2 Environ Health Prospect. 2004 August, |12 (I'1): A616 —A618

3 Olshansky SJ, Passaro D), Hershow RC, et al. A potential decline in life expectancy in the United States in the 2|st century. New England Journal of
Medicine 2005; 352:1 138 — | [45.

4 The Surgeon General's vision for a healthy and fit nation. [Rockville, MD]: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service, Office
of the Surgeon General; 2010. http://www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/obesityvision/obesityvision2010.pdf

5 Danaei G, Ding EL, Mozaddarian D, Taylor B, Rehm ], Murray CJL, & Ezzati M. The preventable causes of death in the United States: Comparative risk
assessment of dietary, lifestyle, and metabolic risk factors. PLoS Medicine 2009; 6 (4): e |000058.




Medifast Meals

Medically formulated, portion-controlled meal
replacements meet consumer demand for a
safe and effective weight-loss solution, helping
them lose weight quickly and safely, and also
H improve and maintain their health for the long
v term.When part of a thoughtfully created
nutritional and behavioral program,

P
ha Medifast Meals provide balanced
- nutrition, fast weight loss, and lasting
results, unique in a market where
researchers have estimated
that approximately 70% of
A dieters who lose weight
"_’." yeap,  Will gain it back
within one to five

years.

Medifast
offers products
with a formulation

that is nutritionally
balanced, making them

satisfying and safe for
individuals with type 2 diabetes.

The Medifast 5 & | Plan is simple and easy to
follow, even for those clients with busy lifestyles.
Medifast Meals come in portion-controlled,
individual servings that clients can eat right out
of the package, or mix with water and either
microwave or chill. Clients do not have to count
calories, carbs, or “points.”

The product line includes over 70 different
meals and flavors, including shakes, soups, stew,
chili, oatmeal, eggs, fruit drinks, iced teas, hot
beverages, bars, pudding, pretzel sticks, cheese
puffs, soft serve, pancakes, and brownies.

Each Medifast Meal shares a similar nutritional
“footprint,” providing a special balance of

protein and good carbohydrates like fiber, plus
fortification with vitamins and minerals. Medifast's
special formula helps to ensure clients get the
nutrition their bodies need while providing a
feeling of fullness to facilitate compliance and
more comfortable weight loss.

Medifast » 2010 Annual Report



JACKIE POWELL
lost 100 Ibs

Results not typical.

Typical weight loss on the
Medifast 5 & | Plan is up
to 2 to 5 Ibs per week.

The Medifast 5 & | Plan for weight loss is simple.

Each day, the client eats six times, once every
two to three hours. The Medifast 5 & | Plan
puts the body in a mild fat-burning state to help
facilitate fast, safe weight loss.

Clients choose five Medifast Meals (the “5") and
one self-prepared Lean & Green™ Meal (the
“1") consisting of measured portions of lean
protein and non-starchy vegetables.

The Weight Loss Phase

Medifast's team of registered, licensed dietitians
has developed variations on the Medifast

5 & | Plan to support healthy weight loss for
vegetarians, teens, nursing mothers, seniors,
people with type 2 diabetes, people with gout,
bariatric surgery patients, and those taking
prescribed anticoagulant drugs, among others.




NANCY PETTIT
TSFL Health Coach

“l chose Medifast because

as Health Coaches for Take
Shape For Life, my husband

and | can play a role in so
many people becoming
healthy, while creating a
business that provides us
with personal satisfaction.”

Up to 70% of people who lose weight on
diets regain that weight within one to
five years, often with additional pounds.
To counteract this trend, Medifast is refining its
comprehensive approach to prevent weight
regain in clients who have reached their healthy
weight goal.

The transition phase gradually reintroduces
additional healthy food groups and increases the

Transition and Maintenance Phases

client’s caloric intake over the course of several
weeks. The maintenance phase uses principles of
proper nutrition and portion control, along with
behavior modification techniques, to retrain the
brain and body to be satisfied with appropriate
quantities of healthy food choices.

In this way, clients can learn to enjoy the benefits
of a healthier weight and improved well-being for
the long term.

Medifast » 2010 Annual Report



CREATING A
HEALTHIER
FUTURE
THROUGH
GOOD
SCIENCE,
GOOD PEOPLE,
AND GOOD .
BUSINESS




THE MEDIFAST
VISION

In 2010, Medifast celebrated 30 years of developing, manufacturing,
and marketing medically formulated, portion-controlled meal
replacements for weight loss.

These products—Medifast Meals—have established the heart of
the Medifast Program that helps people lose weight quickly, easily,
and safely, and also improve and maintain their health for the long
term. Now, as always, every Medifast Meal is manufactured in the
United States.

Medifast also offers Essential 1€, a line of supplements to
support areas of wellness such as cardiovascular health and
digestive health.”

“These statements have not been evaluated by the
Food and Drug Administration. These products are not
intended to diagnose, treat, cure, or prevent any disease.
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Science

Medifast continues to build its products,
programs, and brand on reliable science and
quantitative data.

Our Scientific Advisory Board continually reviews
the effectiveness, safety, and nutritional benefits
of Medifast's products and programs. The work
of this cross-displinary group builds on Medifast's
heritage of medically sound approaches to
weight loss and the incorporation of leading-edge
clinical research into the Company’s products
and programs.

In March 2010 Nutrition Journal published a study
demonstrating the efficacy and health benefits of
the Medifast 5 & | Plan.' Three clinical trials are
now in progress to substantiate the Company's
product and program claims even further.

Medifast Weight Control Centers are now
equipped with RemedyMD®, a meta-registry

MEDIFAST SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY BOARD

platform that provides a long-term look at
client weight loss outcomes, demographics, and
program-related data.

These data allow us to continually improve

client experience and results, differentiating
Medifast in the weight loss marketplace with a
new level of efficiency and accountability that
further substantiates the Company's product and
program claims.

Our Product Development team is focusing on
future products to answer clients’ requests for
additional convenience items, savory Medifast
Meals, and products suitable for breakfast.

I Davis LM, Coleman C, Kiel J, Rampolla J, Hutchisen T,
Ford L, Andersen WS, Hanlon-Mitola A. Efficacy of a meal
replacement diet plan compared to a food-based diet plan
after a period of weight loss and weight maintenance: a
randomized controlled trial. Nutrition Journal 2010, 9:1 1.

From left to right: Walter Eugene Egerton Ill, M.D.,, Chief Medical Officer; Maryland General Hospital; John
P Foreyt, Ph.D,, Professor, Baylor College of Medicine, Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences,
Department of Medicine; Guy H. Johnson, Ph.D,, President, Johnson Nutrition Solutions, LLC, Executive
Director, the McCormick Science Institute; Debra L. Miller; Ph.D,, Director of Nutrition, The Hershey
Company; Lawrence J. Cheskin, M.D., FA.C.P, Director, Johns Hopkins Weight Management Center; Jeff
S.Volek, Ph.D, RD, Human Performance Laboratory, Associate Professor; Department of Kinesiology,

University of Connecticut

Not pictured: Sylvia B. Rowe, MA, President, SR Strategy, Adjunct Professor, Tufts Freidman School of
Nutrition Science & Policy, Adjunct Professor, University of Massachusetts Amherst



People

2010 was a year for major developments in
human capital infrastructure, as the Company laid
the groundwork for accelerated growth through
its employees. In particular, the addition of
experienced executives to several teams further
strengthened our ability to serve our clients, both
internal and external. Overall, the Company
supported business growth by creating
more than 250 new jobs in Texas and
Maryland in the midst of a difficult 2010
economy.

Seeing the potential of the Company to
emerge as a national leader in successful, lasting

weight loss, Medifast consolidated its core
values, mission, and vision in 2010. The Board of
Directors reviewed the Company's heritage and
outlined a direction for the future, subsequently
distilling a set of enduring ideals that represent
Medifast's unique culture.

Together with its scientific and technical
achievements, the Company’s human resources
are well-equipped to change the course of health
in America.

Medifast » 2010 Annual Report



In March 2011, Medifast successfully launched
both a new e-commerce platform for its
Medifast Direct and Take Shape For Life channels
and a new in-store operating system for its
Medifast Weight Control Centers.

The e-commerce launch was the largest redesign
and upgrade of e-commerce platforms in the
Company's history. The Company re-launched
websites for Medifast Direct, its direct-to-
consumer channel, and Take Shape For
Life, its personal coaching channel. The
overhaul reflects the Company's
dedication to delivering high-quality
websites along with state-of-the-
art e-commerce platforms.

The newly designed co-branded Take
Shape For Life websites provide Health

Coaches the ability to customize an “About
Me" section and create an integrated online
presence, including personal blogs and links to
their social media sites such as Facebook, Twitter,
and YouTube.

facebook

Business: Sales Channel Technology

The new operating system for Medifast Weight
Control Centers, complete with customer data
tracking tools, is designed to provide both a
consumer-facing and an employee-facing system.
It is created with analytic tools that communicate
the members progress during their weight loss
and weight-maintenance journeys.

Medifast sees this system providing
comprehensive support and data tracking
functions to assist the member in reaching their
personalized weight-loss goals, while providing
efficiency and scalability for the business and in-
center employees.

On the communications front, a full system
upgrade of the Company's phone system
improved continuity in the contact center, as well
as scalability for future expansion.

Through the acquisition of additional office space,
a new headquarters for Take Shape For Life was
established at the Owings Mills campus.

You {111

Broadcast Yourself™




Business: Supply Chain Technology

Extensive systems integration
upgrades to our order
processing structure enabled
Medifast to accelerate from
300 to 700 orders handled per
hour (12,000 orders per day
with three shifts), effectively
eliminating order back-up in the
Company's distribution centers
during high-volume ordering
periods.

On July 6, 2010, Medifast
opened a 50,000-square-foot
distribution center in Coppell,
Texas, just outside of Dallas, to
support West Coast shipping
and customer service for
Medifast Direct, Take Shape
For Life, and Medifast Weight
Control Centers.The Texas
Distribution Center, equipped
with an automation conveyer

pick-and-pack system, provides
disaster and recovery backup
for the company’s fulfillment
operation, as well as for the
Maryland-based customer
contact center.

The Company also upgraded
its interoffice network to
accommodate the new Texas
Distribution Center and
additional office space
on the Owings
Mills campus in
Maryland. A
new enterprise
computer patch
management
system and anti-
virus platform ensure
increased security and
efficiency across all teams.
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The Medifast Formula

These ideals were released to employees as The Medifast
Formula in late 2010.The Medifast Formula serves as a blueprint
for the Company's employees, outlining our vision, mission, and
purpose—a unique asset in the industry—and a set of criteria
for developing personnel.

Vision
We provide hope, health, and happiness for millions of
Americans through clinically proven weight-management
products, programs, and support.

Mission
Medifast combats the obesity epidemic and improves the
health of our nation in two ways: first, through clinically proven
weight-management products and protocols; and second,
through multiple, innovative support programs.

Values
Guided by our core values, we create the ultimate client
experience through performance management.

Committed to core values

» Our integrity and ethics are based on moral
values and the Golden Rule.

» Leadership means setting high standards and a positive
personal example.

> Focused, results-driven teamwork by Medifast employees
collaborating to achieve shared goals improves our Company
more than any one individual or entity.

> We trust one another and forgive honest mistakes.

> We promote learning and education as a vehicle for
personal development.

> We are committed to personal health and wellness.
> We reward innovation and initiative.

> We value diversity as a strength and asset—to Medifast
and to our world.

» We are good citizens and active members of our community.

Dedicated to performance management

> We are committed to the efficiency and profitability of
the Company.

> Successful growth requires honest and robust
communication throughout our organization.

> Professional development is the responsibility of both the
Company and the individual.

» Measurement and feedback are essential to the continuous
improvement of our people and processes.

> Our agility and flexibility are keys to meeting the evolving
needs of our clients and the challenges of our changing
environment.



Medifast is named:

Forbes | 2010

BEST SMALL
COMPANIES #
IN AMERICA

2010 BUSINESS
ACHIEVEMENTS

> #7 — Fortune’s Top companies:
Best investments

> #29 — Fortune’s 100 Fastest
Growing Companies

> #43 — Fortune’s Top companies:
Sales growth

> #75 — Fortune’s Top companies:
Profit growth
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CUSTOMER
EXPERIENCE
DEFINED BY
CHOICE

» Four channels that ensure each client can choose the best
means to achieve their individual and personal success

> A wide selection of high quality products and protocols
throughout each of our multiple, innovative support programs

» Close attention to individuals’ goals and needs, and careful

listening that yields deeper understanding and supports
optimal choices for each client

» Employee empowerment at all levels to serve our clients’
every need and offer them more options to create health

21



Medifast Peer Comparison Charts

With record revenues in 2010, Medifast has been able to post best
in class performance metrics for growth, liquidity, and shareholder
earnings. Medifast will continue its commitment to the sound
business practice that has brought 45 consecutive quarters of
business profitability and a 44% combined aggregate growth

rate in our business since 1999—far exceeding the long-term
performance of our national competitors for the same time period.

sfMedifastg

3-Year Stock Price Performance

The financial comparison charts have been put together using
reliable third-party private and public financial information.
Medifast, Inc. does not warrant the accuracy or reliability of this
information but makes this comparison as a best effort to show
the financial performance indicators of Medifast compared to
other public companies in the weight-loss industry.

Medifast Share Price Has
Significant Growth Over
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KEY

DIET eDiets.com®

HLF Herbalife®

MED Medifast

NTRI | Nutrisystem®

WTW | Weight Watchers®

Displayed
the Past Three Years...
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Medifast Peer Comparison Charts
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The "Quick Ratio,” aka "“Liquid Ratio” or “Acid Test,” measures the ability of a company to use its near cash or quick assets to extinguish
or retire its current liabilities immediately. Quick assets include those current assets that presumably can be quickly converted to cash at
close to their book values. A company with a Quick Ratio of less than | cannot currently pay back its current liabilities.
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Explanatory Note

We are restating our flinancial statements Lor the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 and beginning retained carnings as of January 1, 2008
principally due to errors in recording certain ordinary course of business expenses in the proper peried. Certain costs and expenses affecting selling.
general and administrative expenses and cost of sales, to include shipping expenses and certain web advertising expenses, which due 1o growth and
evolution in the business model were consistently expensed in the following month after services were rendered, rather than being accrued in the proper
period. The company has consistently recorded twelve months of expenses in each vear. In addition to the liming of expenses, there was a write ol
related 1o an intangible asset. Also, in the Medifast Weight Control Centers. the Company had been recording program fees on a cash basis for cuslomers
who paid up front. The difference has been deferred and properly recorded over the applicable service period, and for fiscal wear 2010 has been properly
recorded, so there is no material impael for the year ended December 31, 2010, With the Company”s acceleraled growth rate over the last few vears (44%
CAGE in sales since December 31, 2007) the one month lag in expenses on a cumulative basis was deemed material per Stall Accounting Bulletin No. 108
and requires restatement for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009,

In the course of our 2010 annual audit by our independent registered public accounting firm MeGladrey & Pullen. LLP's (MeGladrey)., MeGladrey
requested in March 2011 that we re-evaluate whether our historical and then current practices with the respect 1o the timing lor recognition of certain
expenses were appropriate under generally accepled accounting pnineiples in the United States (“GAAP™). In addition, during the course of their audit,
MeGladrey identified several other adjustments pertaining to the prior vears. This required the company to request an automatic extension for filing our
10-K to allow adequale investigative time for the reevaluation and to allow our current vear auditor to meet, discuss and review work papers with our
predecessor auditors who then concurred with the conclusory recommendation to restate for prior vears made following their joint review.

The Compamny™s Management upon being advised by its Independent Auditor of the issue, as pard of its Sarbanes Oxlev policy regarding intemal controls
over financial reporting, immediately reporied this issue to the Audit Commitiee which promptly requested management fo conduct a detailed review.

Management performed a detailed review ol expense recognition of certain ordinary course ol business expenses lor the vears 2008 and 2009. As a result,
we identificd a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. Historically, our accounts payable and accrued expense accounts were
evaluated on a quarterly and annual basis based upon whether the correspanding expenses were lairly stated (e.g. by analyzing whether our operaling
results ineluded twelve months of expenses for the yearly peniods or three months of expenses [or the quarterly periods) which they did.. However, our
procedures did not include a detailed review of ending liability balances for these specific costs and expenses, which resulted in certain expenscs being
recorded when they were paid rather than incurred.

On March 28, 2011 management and the Audit Committee reviewed management’s findings and the Audit Committee concluded that restating the
cemsolidated linancial stalements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 is required. The elTects of these restalements are included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Gseal vear ended December 31, 2010, The Company has determined that previously reported amounts in our 2010
quarerly filings on Form 10-0 need not be restated due to the immaterial effect on 2010 revenues, operaling income, pre-lax income, nel income or cash
Nows for the quarlerly periods presented.

The correction of the errors noted in (i) above reduced 2000 and 2008, net income by S606,000 (5.04 per diluted share), $523.000 (S.04 per diluted share),
and 3628000 was adjusted 1o beginning retained eamings as of January 1, 2008,

For additional detail on the restatement please see Foolnole 17, “Restatement of Financial Statements™ And the management discussion and analysis
seetion herein Ilem 7 and Ttem 12,
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
SUMMARY

Medifast, Inc. (the "Company”™ or “Medilast™) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1993, The Company’s operalions are primanly
conducted through five of its wholly owned subsidiaries, Jason Pharmaceuticals, Ine. ("Jason™), Take Shape for Life, Inc. (“TSFL™), Jason Enterprises,
Ine., Jason Properties, LLC and Seven Crondall, LLC. The Company is engaged in the production, distribution, and sale ol weight management and
disease management products and other consumable health and diet produets. Medifast, Inc.'s product lines include weight and disease management, meal
replacement, and vitaming primarily manufactured in its modern, FDA approved facility in Owings Mills, Maryland.

MARKETS

Ower the past 30 vears, obesity in the United States has dramatically inereased. The obesity epidemie shows no signs of slowing down, with the
condition worsening as American waistlines continue expanding, Throughout the world, approximately 1.7 billion people are overweight. The United
Stales leads the way, having the highest percentage of overweight adults worldwide with nearly 70% of all Americans falling within the overweight or
obese categories.

Obesily is defined as a Body Mass Index (BMI) of 30 kg/m” or greater, whereas overweight is defined as a BMI ranging between 25 and 30
kg'm’. According to the Centers for [Jisease Control and Prevention, only nine (%) states in the U.S.A. had a prevalence of obesity less than twenty percent
(20M%) in 2000, Further the CDC reported that thirty-three states showed a prevalence equal 1o or grealer than twenty-live percent (25%), and nine states
had a prevalence of obesity equal 1o or greater than thirty percent (30%%).

Supporied by a recent study published in April 2006 in the Journal of’ American Medical Association entilled, “Prevalence of Obesity and
Overweight in the United States”, almost 7 out of 10 adults in the ULS. are overweight or obese, with 60 million (or about thirty percent) American adults
sullering [rom obesity, This raises concern among Amerncans because of the health implications associated with obesity, including conditions such as type
2 diabetes, coronary heart disease, hyperlension and stroke, sleep apnea and respiratory problems, gallbladder disease, depression and certain forms of
cancer.

Obesity is nol an age-specilic condition; the Centers lor Disease Control and Prevention show children and adolescents are also aflected.
According to the CIXC, the prevalence of obesity in children and adolescents has tripled sinee 1976, Overweight and obese children arc at an increased risk
af developing health problems such as high blood pressure, high cholesterol and type 2 diabetes.

According to the study, “Projection of diabetes burden through 2050: impact of change demography and discase prevalence in the LLS.7,
published in 2001 in Diabetes Care. type 2 diabeles is expected o increase by 165% between 2000 and 2050, A 2007 study published by the CDC shows
children are now also being affected by type 2 diabetes through an increased risk of suffering significant morbiditics as adults in the form of amputations,
kidney problems, and blindness,

The primary factors contributing to obesity are well-known and preventable: unhealthy food choices and physical inactivity. Itis estimated that
poor nutntion and physical inactivity account for more than 300,000 premature deaths per yvear in the 118, According to the United Stales Department of
Health and Human Services, only 25% of adults and even fewer leenagers consume the suggested 5 or more servings of vegetables and fruits a day.
Further, the IXHS reports that more than half of American adults fail to engage in the suggested amount of physical activity; more than one third of young
Americans fail 1o regularly engage in any vigorous physical activity at all,

The United States Department of Health and Human Services states Americans spend 5117 billion in costs associated with overweight and
obesity, with direet medical and healtheare costs totaling $93 billion. The TLS. weight loss market is estimated to be a 355 billion per year industry. This
includes consumer spending on dict foods, drinks and low-calorie sweeteners: health clubs and workout videos, medically supervised and commercial
weight loss programs; children’s weight loss camps: diet books, appetite suppressants and more,



Distribution Channels

Medifast Direct — In the direct to consumer channel (“Medifast Direet™), customers order Medilast produet directly through the Company’s website,
www.choosemedifast.com, or our in-house call center. The product is shipped directly to the customer’s home. This business is driven by an aggressive
multi-media cuslomer acquisition strategy that includes both national and regional print, radio, web advertising, direct mail and television as well as public
relations and social media initiatives. The Medifast Direel division focuses on largeled markeling inihiatives and provides customer support through ils in-
house call center and nufrition support team of registered dicticians to better serve its customers. In addition, Medifast continues uses leading web
technology Featuring customized meal planning and web community components, MyMedilast is a robust enline community which provides a library of
support articles, support forums, meal planning tools and social media functions.

Take Shape for Life™ - Take Shape for Life is the personal coaching division of Medifast. Take Shape lor Lile is lead by its co-founder, a physician
with a background in critical care. The coaching network consists of independent contractor health coaches, who are trained to provide coaching and
support 1o clients on Medilast weight loss progmams. Health coaches are conduils 1o give clienls the encouragement and mentoring Lo assist them o
successlully reach a healthy weight. Take Shape For Life programs provide a road map o empower the individual to take conlrol of their health through
better habits. Take Shape for Life offers the exclusive proprictary BeSlim® philosophy, which encourages long-term weight maintenance., Take Shape for
Life also moves beyond the scope of weight loss to leach customers how lo achieve optimal health through the balance of body, mind, and linances. Take
Shape for Lile uses the high quality. medically validated products of Medifast that have been proven sale and effective in clinical studies desenbed on page
& under “Clinical Research Overview.” Health coaches and their clients follow the Habits of Health book and companion workbook written by the Take
Shape for Life co-founder to create a lifelong health optimization program, In addition 1o the encouragement and support ol a health coach, elients of Take
Shape for Life are offered a bio-network of support including website information, scheduled program support calls and aceess to registered dieticians via
toll free telephone, email and web chats,

Program entrants are encouraged to consult with their primary care physician and a Take Shape for Life Health Coach to determine the Medifast
program thal is right for them, Health Coaches are required lo become qualified based upon testing of their knowledge on Medifast produets and
programs. Health Coaches may also become certilied by The Health Institute, a proprietary training program developed by Medifast professionals,

Take Shape for Life health coaches earn compensation on product sales by referring clients to their replicated Take Shape lor Life website or 1o
the Company s in-house call center to purchase produet. The client purchases all Medifast product directly (rom the Company which is shipped direetly o
the client. Our health coaches do not handle payvment and are not required to hold inventory for resale o clients. In addition, our health coaches pay the
same price for produet as their clients.  Ouwr health coaches provide coaching and support to their ¢lients throughout the weight loss and weight
maintenance process. Most new health coaches are recruited by an existing health coach. The vast majority of our new health coaches started as weight
loss clients of a health coach, had success on the Medifast product and program, and become a health coach 1o help others through the weight loss process
and reecive a commission on any product sales they refer to the Company. In addition, in the Take Shape for Life network approximately 20% of aclive
health coaches are health care providers.

Take Shape for Life health coaches are independent contractors who are paid compensation on product sales referred 1o the Company. Health
coaches can earn compensation in bwo ways;

*  Commissions — The primary way a health coach is compensated is through caming commissions on product sold. Health coaches cam
commissions by referring product sales through their own replicated website or through the Company’s in-house call center. The clients of
health coaches are responsible for ordering and paying lor product, and their order is shipped directly from the Company 1o the client’s
home or designated address. Our health coaches do not handle payment and are not required to purchase or store product in order to receive
a commission. In addition, health coaches do not receive a commission on their product orders for their personal use. Health coaches pay
the same price for products as their ¢lients. The Company pays retail commissions on a weekly basis.

*  Bonuses - health coaches are oflered several bonus opportumties. ineluding growth bonuses, generation bonuses, elite leadership bonuses,
rolling consistency bonuses, client acquisition bonuses, and customer assist bonuses. The purposes of these bonuses are to reward health
coaches lor successiully referming product sales to the Take Shape for Life network and 1o incenlivize health coaches to further develop
health coaches within their network. The Company pavs bonuses on a monthly basis.

o Growth bonuses are paid to health coaches that have at least live ordenng clients  per month and that have generated over 51,000 in
product sales per month, Monthly growth bonuses are incremental bonuscs that enable health coaches to earn income on product
orders placed by clients or health coaches within their network,

o (feneration bonuscs are paid to health coaches that have one or more health coaches in their business that have achieved the rank of
execulive direclor. An execulive direclor is a healih coach that either generates $6,000 a month in froniline product sales 1o either
clients or personally sponsored health coaches or personally sponsors five senior health coaches. A senior health coach is a health
coach that gencrates at least $1,000 a month in group product sales from a combination of at least five personally enrolled, ordering
clients, and‘or health coaches, health coach teams, or 2 combination of both,

o Elite leadership bonuses are paid to health coaches that have three or more health coaches in their business that have achieved the rank
of executive director.



o Rolling consislency bonuses are paid to health coaches that display froniline product sales order consistency month afier month.
Health coaches that generate atl least 52,000 or more in (rontline product sales for three conseeutive months are paid a rolling
consisteney bonus,

o Client acquisition bonuses are paid oul lo new health coaches that within their first 30 calendar days in Take Shape for Life develop
five elients and 31,000 in frontline product sales.

o The assisl bonuses are paid to health coaches that assist a new health coach in their business altain the client acquisition bonus,

Health coaches do not eam a commission or bonus when they recruit a new health coach into the Take Shape for Life network. Fees paid by new
health coaches for starl-up materials are al the Company’s approximate cosl and no commissions are paid thereon,

Take Shape for Life is a member of the Direct Selling Association (IDSA), a national trade association representing over 200 direct selling
companies doing business in the United States. To become a member of the DSA Take Shape for Lile, like other aclive DSA member companies,
Medifast underwent a comprehensive and ngorous one-vear company review by DSA legal stafl that included a detailed analysis of ils company business
plan materials, This review is designed to ensure thal a company’s business practices do not contravene DSA’s Code of Ethics. Compliance with the
requirements of the Code of Ethies is paramount to become and remain a member in good standing of DSA. Accordingly, we believe that membership in
DSA by Take Shape for Life demonstrates its commitment to the highest standards of ethics and a pledge not to engage in any deceptive, unlawful, or
unethical business practices. Among those Code of Ethics proseriptions are pyramid schemes or endless chain schemes as delined by federal, state, or
local laws. Moreover, Take Shape for Life. like other DSA member companies in good standing, has pledged to provide consumers with accurate and
truthtul information regarding the price, grade, quality. and performance of the products Take Shape for Lite markets.

Medifast Weight Control Centers — The Medilfast Weight Control Center is the brick and mortar ¢linic channel of Medifast with locations in Texas,
Florida, Marvland and Virginia. In 2000, the Company opened twelve new Medifast Weight Control Centers and had a total of thifly-nine locations in
operation al yvear-cnd. The centers ofler a high-touch model including comprehensive Medilast programs for weight loss and mainlenance, customized
paticnt counscling, and Inbody ™ composition analysis. Medifast Weight Control Centers conduct local advertising including radio. print, television and
web initiatives. The centers also benefit from the nationally advertised brand which encourages walk-ins and referrals from other Medifast business
channels.

In 2008, the Company began offering the clinic model as a franchise opportunity. The Company currently has franchisee centers located in
Alabama, Arzona, California, Pennsylvania and Minnesota. At December 31, 2010, twentv-one Iranchise localions were in operation.

Medifast currently offers the Medilast Weight Control Center franchise opportunity in all States exeept Hawaii, N, Dakota, 5. Dakota, and
Wisconsin under an approved franchise disclosure document (FIXD). The FIID requires a successtul applicant to develop a minimum of three Medifast
Cenlters within a defined geographic area in the time frame set forth in the area development agreement between Medifast and the franchises.

Owr franchise strategy depends upon on our franchisees” active invelvement in and management of Medifast Weight Control Center operations,
Candidates are reviewed for appropriate operational experience and financial stability, including specific net worth and liguidity requirements, Upon
franchisee approval they shall prompily select a site for the Center and shall request Franchisor’s approval of such selection based on guidelines, terms, and
conditions.

A franchisecs initial fee covers the cost of Company resources provided to train applicant and stafl] and determine territory for development. IT a
successful applicant desires to open more than three centers in the designated territory, there is an additional fee for each location over the three to be
developed. The Company provides initial investment estimates in the FDI and cautions applicants considering the franchise opportunity that their actual
expenses may vary from the cstimates given. Legal disclosures are given and the applicant cannot sign the Agreement until he/she has had 14 days to
congider the FDID,

Prior to the opening of each Medifast® Center established under the arca development agreement, the company will do the following;
. designate the Center's Protected Terntory,

il. il the Company has not already approved a site that the [ranchisee has selected before signing the Franchise Agreement, designate the area
within which the franchisee will locate the Center and approve the site the franchisee has selected or the location of the Center.

iii. if the Company has nol already approved a site belore signming the Franchise Agreement, review and approve the franchisee lease or
purchase agreement for the site lor the approved location,

iv. provide the franchisce with standard plans and specifications for the build-out of the Center along with a list of equipment and
improvements which the franchisee is required to purchase and install,

v.  provide an initial training program.

vi. provide the franchisee on-site assistance and guidance for approximately three (3) to five (5) dayvs during or close to the opening of the
Center.

vii. provide the franchise with online access 1o a password-protected, electronie version of the Medilfast Weight Control Centers® Operations
Manual.

No products or equipment are provided at a discounted purchase price.  In addition. the Company does nol offer direct or indireet linancing. We
do nol guarantee franchisee’s noles, leases or obligations.



The Company does not currently have a purchase option included in the franchise agreement. The Company does have the right of first refusal
lo aequire a center if the franchisee wishes 1o sell or defaults in his'her! or its obligations

MEDIFAST WHOLESALE PHYSICIANS

Medifast physicians have implemented the Medifast program within their practice or clinic since 1980, These physicians carry an inventory of
Medifast products and resell them to patients. They also provide appropriate medical monitoring, lesting, and supporl for patients on the program.
Management estimates that more than 20,000 physicians nationwide have recommended Medifast as a treatment for their overweight patients since 1980,
and over an estimated | million patients have used its” products al the recommendation of Medifast Physicians to lose and maintain their weight. Many
Medifast physicians prefer not to carry inventory and resell products in their offices and take advantage of the Medifast Direct or the Take Shape for Life
program to support their patient base,

The Company offers an additional in-house support program to assist customers that are consulting their primary care physician. Customers
have aceess to registered dieticians that provide program support and advice via a toll free telephone help line, by e-mail and online chats,

THE MEDIFAST® BRAND

Medifast enriches lives by providing innovative choices for lasting health through products and programs. Management estimates that Medifast
has been recommended by 20,000 physicians since 1980, Medifast offers elinically proven product oflering programs [or weight management, weight
maintenance and long term health through multiple channels of distribution. Medifast products are high quality, portion controlled meal replacement
foods,

The Medifast program is suitable for individuals with type 2 diabetes and offers products with a nutritionally complete and low glyeemic
formulation. Portion controlled, meal replacement weight managemen! programs are continuing 1o gain popularily, as consumers search for a safe and
elfective solution that provides balanced nutrition, quick weight loss and valuable behavior modilication education.

Clinical Research Overview

Medifast relies upon both clinieal research studies that have been completed over the span ol the last two decades and retrospective analysis data
from its Medifast clinics to support its “clinically proven™ elaim. In each study conducted by Medifast, the examiner follows the scientifically recognized
and approved protocols sel by the Institutional Review Board (“IRB™), a committee formally designaled lo approve, monitor, and review biomedical and
behavioral research involving humans with the aim to protect the nghts and wellare of research subjects. prior to inihating the study. Those protocols deal
with the study parameters and determination of a statistically valid sample of study participants. Upon conclusion of the study, the examiner presents the
proposed siudy conclusions with study results to IRB for independent third party review and approval for future publication or peer review. The [ollowing
abstracts include both peer-reviewed research (consisting of prospective controlled clinical trials and retrospective studies) and in-house clinical data
(studies 7 & 8).

For each of the below peer-reviewed publications. the reviewers were chosen by the publishing joumnal. and exeepl in the case of publication #1,
were not disclosed to Medifast. Each reviewer is independent and has no association with Medifast or its afliliates,

Sample sizes for the studies desenibed below varied from 14 to 1,445 participants. The smallest study was a statistical review of patient charts,
while the largest study was a refrospective review of patient charls from a weight loss clinic, which we believe allows for greater generalization of the
profocol used in the elinie as an effective weight management program for those secking weight loss. The remaining studies had sample sizes ranging {rom
30 to 217 participants,

Each study included a wide range of individuals as part of the study populations. All of the studies included both male and female participanis,
except for study no. % below, which included a sample of females only. Additionally, race or ethnicity was not exclusory for any of the studies and the age-
range for inclusion across the studies included children, adolescents, and adults allowing for adequate generalization and suppor for the study conclusions,
Each pecr-reviewed publication included as part of its study design a sample size and power caleulation to detect statistically significant and clinically
meaningful differences. Moreover, well-established statistical analyses, such as Paired and Student’s T-tests; Wilcoxon signed-rank tesis; Random Effects
Logistic Regression: deseriplive statistics (means and standard deviations) al the time of publication were used as parl of the methodology and were velled
as part of the peer-review process. Conclusions drawn from the study results were further evalvated and approved as part of the peer-review process.

As a whole, commonality of results from the studies do allow general conclusions for each study’™s findings principally regarding Medilast
products and programs as sale and effective weight loss with improvements in blood pressure and blood lipids for otherwise healthy, obese individuals,

Study 1

Reference

Davis LM, Coleman CI23, Kiel J, Rampolla J, Hutchisen T, Ford L., Anderson WS, Hanlon-Mitola A. “Efficacy of a meal replacement dict plan compared
1o a food-based diet plan aller a peried of weight loss and weight maintenance: A randomized controlled trial.” Nulritional Jowrnal 2010, 9:11.

Purpose
To examine the effeet of Medifast's meal replacement program (MD) on body weight, body composition. and biomarkers of inflammation and oxidative
stress among obese individuals following a period of weight loss and weight maintenance compared to an isocaloric, food-based diet (FB),

Research Methods



The baseline sample consisted of 90 participants (64 women, 26 men). Participants were obese (BMI =30.0 kg/m2 <500 kg/m2) men and women aged 18-
65 who were interested in weight loss, but not actively involved in a weight loss program or losing weight. Participants with known allergies o soy. wheat,
gluten and nuts were excluded from the study because some Medifast meal replacements contain these ingredients. To limit the effect of alcohol on caloric
intake and its potential effect on compliance, participants were enrolled in the study if they consumed <14 aleoholic beverages per week and agreed to
avoid alcohol intake during the study. Participants were not currently using appetite-affecting medications (eg selective serotonin reuptake inhibitors
(SSRIs), steroids, Ritalin), and were not pregnant or laclaling, Paricipants were required to have a normal electrocardiogram (EKG) and lab work within
the past yvear as well as the permission of their pnmary care provider to ¢nroll in the study. Subjects were reeruited using (lvers, newspaper advertisements,
and Craigslist.

Exelusion eriteria included individuals that were actively dieting: had chronic uncontrolled health problems (not including obesity or diabetes);, had a
pacemaker or other internal electronic medical deviee; reported schizophrenia, history of bipolar disorder, or a current Major Depressive Disorder, had
dependence on alcohol or sedative-hypnotic drugs (e.g. benzodiazepines); had a cognitive impairment severe enough to preclude informed consent; or who
were currently taking weight loss or appetite affecting medications. Major eating disorders were screened using the Eating Attitudes Test (EAT). A score
ol = 30 was exclusionary,

Results

Weight loss at 16 weeks was signilicantly betler in the Medifast group (MI2) versus the food-based group (FB) (12.3% vs. 6.9%), amd while significantly
more weight was regained during weight maintenance on MD versus FB. overall greater weight loss was achieved on MD versus FB. Significantly more of
the MID participants lost =3% of their initial weight at week 16 (93% vs. 55%) and week 40 (62% vs. 30%). There was no difference in saticty observed
between the lwo groups during the weight loss phase. Significant improvements in body composition were also observed in MDD participants compared 1o
FB at week 16 and week 40, At week 40, both groups experienced improvements in biochemical outcomes and other clinical indicators.

The biochemical oulcome used o measure inflammation in this study was C-reactive prolein (CRP). Both the MD and FB experienced a significant
improvement in C-reactive protein (CRP) at week 40. However, when a dichotomous variable was used to characterize baseline CRP levels as low or high,
the only sub-group to experience a significant decrease over the 40 weeks was the Medifast group with high baseline CRP levels. The conclusion regarding
reduction (1.e. improvement) in inflammation was based on these resulls.

The hiochemical culcome used to measure oxidative stress in this study was unne lipid peroxides (ULP). The MD experienced a significan! decrease in
ULP at week 40 whereas the food-based group did not. Additonally, when regression analysis was used to lurther examine the relaionship between ULP
at week 40, there was a signilicanl mean decrease over ime in the MD that was not found tor the food-based group, The conclusion regarding reduction
{1.e. improvement) in oxidative stress was based on these results.

Conclusion:

Our data suggest thal the meal replacement diel plan evaluated was an eflective strategy tor producing robust initial weight loss and for achieving
improvements in 8 number of health-related parameters during weight maintenance, ineluding inflammation and exidative stress, two key [aclors mone
recently shown to underlie our most commeon chronic diseases,

This research was funded by the Company.

The 16 week resulls of this study were presented al Experimental Biology, 2009, The 40 week resulls were presented at the Food and Nulrition
Confercnce and Expo, 2009,

Journal Deseription
Mutrition Journal is an open access, peer-reviewed, online journal that considers manuscripts within the field of human nutrition. The assumed viewer base
15 nutrition professionals and researchers. The audience size is nol available,

Study 2

Relerence

Cheskin L1, et al. “Efficacy of meal replacements versus a standard food-based diet for weight loss in type 2 diabetes: A controlled clinical trial.” The
Diabetes Educator. 34(1):118-127; Jan/Feh 2008,

Purpose

To compare the ellicacy of a portion-controlled meal-replacement diet (PCD) 1o a standard diet (SD} (based on recommendations by the American
Diabetes Association) in achicving and maintaining weight loss among 119 obese men and women with type 2 diabetes mellitus.

Research Methods

Participants were men and women aged 18 to 70, diagnosed by standard criteria with type 2 diabetes at least 3 months prior to enrollment, and were
overweight or obese, with a BMI of 25 to 40 kg/m2. [ they were currenily taking medications to control diabeles, a siable dose for at least 3 months prior
lo randomization was required. Participants needed the permission of their primary care provider and a normal EKG or abnormalities that were deemed
medically acceptable.

Individuals with uncontrolled health problems (aside from obesity and diabetes), tvpe | diabetes, bulimia nervosa, laxative/'substance abuse, aleohol intake
= 10 drinks per week, or an uncontrolled psychiatric disorder (c.g.. major depression, bipolar disorder) were excluded. Depression was assessed using the
Beck Depression Invenlory: a score of =15 was exclusionary, Major eating disorders were sereened using the Ealing Attitudes Test (EAT), A score of



=30 was exclusionary. Use of appetite-affecting medications (e.g., certain anlidepressants, steroids) unless on a stable dose for =3 monihs or weight loss
drugs were excluded. as were women who were laclating, pregnant, or secking pregnancy.

One hundred twenty-six overweight or obese adults with type 2 diabetes desiring weight loss were recruited by posler and newspaper announcements and
sereened dunng 2002 and 2003, One hundred nineteen individuals (53 men, 66 women) were enrolled, stratified by gender and BMI (=25 and <30, =30
and <33, and =35 and <40}, then randomized using block sequences chosen by a random-number generator (with allocation revealed when the participants
were assigned 1o a group by the study ¢oordinator). Seven participants withdrew immediately following sereening. [or a linal sample of 112 (49 men, 63
women ).

Eesults

Using intention-to-treat analyses, weight loss at 34 weeks and weight maintenance at 86 weeks was significantly better on PCD versus SD. Approximately
40% of the PCD participants lost =53% of their initial weight compared with 12% of those on the SD. Significant improvements in biochemical and
melabolic measures were observed at 34 weeks in both groups. The retention rale and sell-reported ease of adherence in the PCD group were signilicantly
higher throughout the stusdy.

Of the 112 participants who began the dict, 48 completed the 34-week active weight loss phase (31 of 54 from the PCD group and 17 of 58 from the 5D
group: 57.4% vs, 29.3%). After the 34-week active phase, weight loss amongst completers was 6.84% (7.3 + 6.2 kg) on the PCD vs. 3.70% (3.7 + 3.2 kg)
on the 3D, Mineteen of 31 (61.3%) PCD participanis lost =5% of their initial body weight vs. 4 of 17 (23.5%) SD participants. Nine of 31 (29.03%) PCD
participants lost =10% vs. 1 of 17 (5.88%) 81 participants. BMI was significantly reduced in both groups at 34 wecks, but the change in BMI was
significantly greater in the PCI vs. 813 group.

Significantly more PCID participants were able o reduce their use of medications to conirol type 2 diabetes after 34 weeks. Of those participants beginning
the study using medications for blood glucose control, 7 of 29 (24.1%) PCD participants reduced their use of medications compared to 0 of 13 (0%) SD
participants.

Conelusion

Participants using meal replacements lost twice the amount of weight and were more likely to complete the program than SD participants. Approximately
25% of the PCD participants reduced their blood glucose-lowering medications afier the initial weight loss phase, while no participants in the 5D group
achieved this.

This study was published in the January/February 2008 issue of The Diabetes Edueator. The peer-reviewed journal 1s the oflicial jounal of the American
Association of Diabetes Educators. The study was also presented at the American Diabetes Association’s 65th Annual Scientific Session, 2005,

Joumal Description

The Diabetes Educator { TIDE) is the official journal of the American Association of Diabetes Educators (AADE). It is a peer-reviewed journal intended to
serve as a reference source for the science and art of diabetes management. TDE publishes original articles that relale 1o aspects of palient care and
education, clinical practice and’or rescarch, and the multidisciplinary profession of diabetes education as represented by nurses, dietiians, physicians,
pharmacists, mental health professionals, podiatrists, and exercise physiologists.

Thomson Reuters 2008 Journal Citation Reports®
2008 Ranking: 77/93 in Endocrinology & Metabolism
2008 Impact Factor: 1.761

Study 3

Reference

Haddeck CE. Poston WSC, Foreyt JP. DiBartolomeo IT. “Effectiveness of Medifast supplements combined with obesity pharmacotherapy: A clinical
program evaluation.™ Eating and Weight Disorders. 13:95-101; 2008,

Purpose
To evaluate the long-term impact of Medifast meal-replacement supplements (MMRS) combined with appetite-suppressant medication (ASM) among
participants who received 52 weeks of treatment as part of a medically supervised weight-control program.

Research Methods

This study provides a systematic clinical program evaluation of weight loss data from a medically-supervised weight control clinie, Data was obtained
from clinic medical charts. The objective was 1o delermine the clinical outcomes of a combined diel and medication prolocol using MMRS in conjunction
with ASMS under medical supervision. De-identified data were analyzed by researchers from the University of Missoun - Kansas City (UMKC). The
protocol for this study was approved by the Social Sciences Institutional Review Board at UMKC.

Participants were parl ol a [ee-based medical ¢linie for the purpose of losing weight using a diet-medication protocol. Exclusion eritenia (rom this study

included enrollment in treatment for less than 12 weeks, less than 18 years of age. current use of MAQ inhibitors, cardiac disease, severe hypertension,
kidnev disease, renal Failure, asthina, liver disease, cancer therapy and eating disorders. All exclusion eriteria were assessed during the initial patient’s
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histary and physical exam and recorded in their chart. All clinical exams were conducted by a physician or nurse practitioner, Clinical and weight loss data
were derived from a fotal of 1445 patient medical charts that were not excluded based on the enteria previously presented from a total sampling pool of
approximately 9,948 records. Data were extracted by trained research assistants and only relevant clinical data and limited demographic information were
collected in a manner so as o protect the identity of patients. Characteristics of the resulting sample of patients are presented below,

Results

Participants who completed 52 weeks of treatment experienced substantial weight losses at 12 (9.4 = 5.7kg), 24 (-12.0 = 8.1kg), and 52 weeks (124 =
9.2kg), and all measures were significantly different from baseline weight (p=0.001 for all contrasts) for both true completers (n=324) and for ITT analysis
{n=1351), Fifty percent of patients remained in the program at 24 weeks and nearly 25% were still participating al one vear,

Conclusions
The combination off MMRS and ASMS produced weight loss resulls that were better that those typically reported for obesily pharmacotherapy in both
short- and long-term studies, and also better than those reported for partial meal-replacement programs.

This study was published in the June 2008 issue of Eating and Weight Disorders. Results of this study were presented at the American Society of Banatric
Physicians’ annual meeting in May 2007.

Joumal Deseription
Eating and Weight Disorders - Studies on Anorexia, Bulimia and Obesity is a scientific journal whose main purpose is to create an international forum
devoted 1o the several sectors of ealing disorders and obesity and the significant relations between them.

Study 4

Reference
Davis LM, Coleman CI3, Andersen WS, Cheskin L1 “The eflect of metabalism-boosting beverages on 24-hr energy expendilure.” The Open Nutrition
Joumnal. 2:37-41; 2008,

Purpose
To test the effeet of thermogenic meal-replacement beverages (TMREB) containing 90 mg of EGCG and 100 mg of ealleine on resling energy expenditure
(REE).

Research Methods

Thirty adults (19 women, 11 men between the ages of 18 and 65 years) were stratified into 3 groups: lean (n=10, BMI 21.5 £ 2,1); overweight/obese (OW)
{n=10, BMI 29.8 £ 2.7} or weight maintainers (WM) (n=10. BMI 28.8 = 4.0). WM had maintained a weight loss of =5% for al least a 3-month period.
Following an overnight fast. bascline measurements, including REE via indirect calorimetry, were performed. Exclusion eriteria included current cigarette
smoking, consuming =14 alecholic beverages per week (or any the day prior o study days), chronie uncontrolled health problems (not ineluding obesily or
diabeles), drug or aleohol dependence, mental illness (schizophrenia, bipelar disorder. current major depressive disorder), taking medications that would
affect appetite or metabolism (e.g. steroids, Ritalin); active dieting; pregnancy or lactation; and allergy to wheat, gluten, soy or nuts.

REE was repeated at 30, 60, 90, and 120 minutes after consuming a TMEB, Appetite was assessed via visual analogue scale at baseline, 30 minutes, and
120 minutes aller consuming the TMREB.

Hesults
Mean 24-hour REE was increased 5.9 + 2.5% overall (p=0.000}, 5.7 + 3.1% among lean subjects (p=0.0002), 5.3 + 1.4% among OW subjects (p=0.000),
and 6.8 = 2.7% among WM subjects (p~0.0007), Appetite was significanily reduced 30 minutes aller consuming the TMER (p=0.00402).

Conelusion

The study results show that ingestion of thermogenic meal-replacement beverages increase resting energy metabolism and decreases appetite. The findings
stromgly suggest TMRBs are a promising weight-control toal. These decreases in energy inlake and increases in energy expenditure may translate inlo
more sustainable weight loss and weight maintenance in both the short- and long-term.

This study was presented as a poster session al Expenmental Biology, 2008,

Joumal Description

The Open Nutrition Journal is an Open Access online journal, which publishes rescarch articles, reviews, and letters in all areas of experimental and
elinical nutrition research. The articles printed in this journal are aceessible 1o anvone and evervone,

Study 5

Relerence

Cheskin LI, et al. “A RCT comparing balanced energy deficit dicts with or without meal replacements for weight loss and maintenance among children
dieting alone or with a parent.” Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health, Center for Human Nutrition, Department of International Health.
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Purpose
To compare the safely and ellicacy of supplemental Medifast portion-controlled meal replacements (MRs) to a USDA Food Guide Pyramid-based diel
among children dicting alone or with a parent.

EResearch Methods

80 overweight (BMI = 95th percentile on BMI-for-age growth charts) bovs and girls between the ages of 8 and 15 years and 40 parents were recruiled from
the Greater Baltimore area by newspaper ad 1o participate in an 18 mos. randomized controlled trial with a G-month weight loss phase and a 1-year
maintenance phase to compare the safety and efficacy of MRs to a standard diet without MRs. Both weight-loss diets (MR and USDA) were 20% cnergy-
restricted (~300 keal deficit). Those randomized to the MR diel incorporated 3 MRs/d duning the active weight loss phase and 2 MRs'd during the
mainfenance phase. Subjects were [urther randomized to dieting alone or with a parent.

Resulls

By ITT analysis, dieting alone vs. with a parent or food vs. MR made no difference in weight outcome. However, following imitial weight loss (6 mos) and
1 vr maintenance {18 mos), signilicant benefils were seen in the MR group in BMI%ile (0 mos=98.8 £ 1.0, 6 mos=96.6 = 3.2, 18 mos=9%.4 + 3.4} body
fat { 5.9% @ G mos, 5.3% @ 18 mosk olal cholesterol { 6.7% @ 6 mos, 5.6% @ 18 mos) LDL { 19.8% @ 6 mos, 7.9% @ 18 mos)k and triglyeenides
{23.6% @ 6 mos, 22.3% (@ 18 mos). No significant between-group differences, differences in growth rates, or adverse events were observed.

Conelusions

Among overweight 8 - 15 v.o. children, dieting with or without a parent, meal replacements were as safe and effective as a USDA food-based dict for
weight loss and maintenance. BMI percentile in children on the meal replacement (MR) diet decreased 2.2% al & months and 2.4% al 18 months. Body fal
in children on the MR diet decreased 5.9% at 6 months and 5.3% at 18 months, The study results for children on the USDA diet saw comparable decreases
in BMI percentile and body fat percentage. Similar results were seen with other anthropometrics studied. Dieting with a parent also made no difference in
weight outeomes. The salety of an MR diet in children was determined by the absence of adverse events in the children during the entire 18 month penod
of the study. It was determined from these data that an MR diet in children was both safe and efficacious.

This study was presented as a poster session at Expenmental Biology, 2007,

Joumal Description

Founded in 1912, the Federation of Amencan Socielies lor Experimental Biology (FASEB) was originally e¢reated by three independent scientific
organizations o provide a forum in which to hold educational meetings, develop publications, and disseminate biological research results. FASER
publishes its own journal as well as helps other non-profit organizations publish their own journals. FASEB aims to provide a wealth of information not
Just to scientific organizations, but also to the general public, so that more people remain informed about the issues and policies affecting the advancement
of biological and biomedical sciences.

Study &

Reference
Matalon V. “An evaluation of weight loss following a carbohydrate and fat restricted diet with appetite suppressant and dictary supplementation.” The
Bariatrician. 10-13; 2000,

Purpase
To assess the salety and effectivencss of a weight-loss regimen consisting of a carbohydrate- and (al restricled diet supplemented with an appetite
suppressant, a dietary supplement, and a liquid protein drink {Medifast) in an open label trial,

Eesearch Methods
A total of 47 subjects were enrolled in the study. Patients were considered eligible for the trial if they were over the age of 18, and were considered
overweight or obese based on body mass index (BMI) = 25.0 kg/'m2.

Results

Q47 patients enrolled, 24 (51%) completed six months using the dietary regimen presenbed. Data was analyvzed lor all patients who were treated with the
diet, as well as for the subsel of patients who completed the entire study period. Baseline and 6-mos evaluations of body weight (Ibs), body fat (%), BMI
(kg/m2). lean body mass, water weighl, and blood pressure were performed. At 6 mos, statistically significant differences were found for body weight
{p=0.001}). percent body fat (p=0.001), BMI {p=0.001), lcan body mass (p=0.001}, water weight (p=0.01), and body svstolic (p=0.003) and diastolic
{p=0.0071) blood pressure,

Conelusions

The study demonstrated that a carbohydrate- and Gat restricted program supplemented by a natural appetite suppressant ¢an lead to progressive weight loss
of comparable value to preseribed pharmacologic agents at the time of study. Patients experienced statistically significant decreases in overall body weight,
percent body fat, BMI, lean body mass, total body water, and both systolie and diastolic blood pressure,

Journal Description



American Society of Bariatric Phyvsicians (ASBP) is a leading national professional organization providing physicians and other health professionals with
education in the medical management of weight loss and related medical conditions.

Study 7

Reference
Crowell MD, Cheskin L. “Multicenter evaluation of health benefits and weight loss on the Medifast weight management program.” The Johns Hopkins
University School of Medicine.

Purpose
To retrospectively evaluate the efficacy of a medically supervised, protein-supplemented modified program (Medifast) for weight reduction and to evaluate
the impact of weight reduction on coexisting health problems.

Results'Conclusions

The results of the study concluded that medieally supervised, protein-sparing meal-replacement programs offer a safe and eflective means of weight
reduction and are accompanied by significant improvements in coexisting health problems. OF samples taken, males lost an average of 67 Ibs and females
lost an average of 47 Ibs during fasting. The study found significant reductions in total cholesterol and triglyeerides. systolic and diastolic blood pressure,
and normalized blood pressure in hyperlensive patients.,

A slatistical review ol patient charls, unpublished data on file. 1993,
Study &

Reference
Davis LM, Cheskin LI “Dietary intervention using Medifast meal replacements in pre-baralric surgery patients.” Johns Hopkins Weight Management
Cenfer; 2006.

Purpose

N=14 severcly obese patients—13 females (11 Afrncan Americans, 2 Caucasians) and 1 male (Cauvcasian}—with a mean BMI of 64.14 kg/'m2 (range
40.2kg/m2 1o 91.Tkg/m2) entered a 6-month weight-control program at the Johns Hopkins Weight Management Center. All patients were Medicaid
{Prionty Partners) recipients. The program provided a comprehensive approach to weight control focused on diet, behavior, and physical activity. Portion-
controlled meal replacements (MKEs) supplicd by Medifast were utilized as part of the dictary-behavior intervention. All subjects met with a licensed
dietitian and were preseribed a 1,000-1,200 keal/day diet plan incorporating up 1o & MRs/'day. Only | subject chose not (o incorporate meal replacements
as part of a low-calone diet plan, The average intake of meal replacements was 2.5-3 per day through the duration of the study.

Results/ Conclusions
Adler 6 months on the program, patients lost an average of 26.73 lbs (-2.86kg/'m2) and 6.96% body weight, and reported a high level of satisfaction with
their dict plan. Program completers at 1 month were N=13, at 3 months N=12, and & months N=10.

A statistical review of patient charts, unpublished data on file, 2006,
Study 9

Reference
Tehemol A, Starling B. Tumner A, et al. “Impaired capacity to lose visceral adipose tissue during weight reduction in obese posimenopausal women with
the Trptdirg B3-adrenoceptor gene variant.” Diabetes, 49:1709-1713; 2000,

Purpose
Teo examine the effect of the TrpbdArg gene varant on lotal and visceral adipose tissue loss, and cardiovaseular risk faetors in response to weight reduction
among 24 obese women (age 57 = 4 vrs) in a 13 = 3 mos weight reduction program of 1,200 keal with or without the inclusion of Medifast.

Research Methods

Obese, postmenopausal Cavcasian women in the greater Burlington, Venmont area were recruited by local advertisement. A total of 491 obese women
were screened, ol which 38 were helerozygates lor the TrpsdArg variant (allele frequency (10} OF this initial cohort, 24 obese women (1 ArgbdArg
homozygote. 10 Trp&dArg heterozygotes, and 13 normal homozygotes) completed the weight loss program. Inelusion criteria were the cessation of
menstruation [or at least | vear, a BMI =27 kg/m2, and physical inactivity. Women also had to be nonsmokers and nondiabetie. Other exelusion enleria
included atherosclerosis, hypertension (diastolic blood pressure =90 mmHg), crthopedic limitations or history of [mactures, weight loss/'gain over the
previous & months, or thyroid or pituitary disease. Screening for the presence of the Trp&dArg vaniant was performed after subjects gave their informed
consent.
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Results

No bascline differences were noled in adiposity measurements, glucose disposal, and lipid profiles among carriers and nonearriers of the varant allele.
Whether women were carriers or noncarriers of the TrpodArg allele, significant weight loss (-16.4 + 5.0kg vs. -14.1 + 6.2kg, NS) and reductions in body
Gat (-1000 + 5,2 vs. -11.5 4 3.9kg, NS) were observed in response 1o a calorie-restricted program wilh or without Medilast.

However, loss of visceral adipose tissue was 43% lower in carriers of the TrptdArg allele compared with nonearriers (46 = 27 vs. -81 = 51 em2, P
0.05). Furthermore, there was less improvement in the total cholesterol—to-HIDL cholesterol ratio (-0.18 £ 0,54 vs. -0.72 = 0,56, P = (L04) in carriers
compared with nonearniers of the allele. Although glucose disposal improved in both groups, there was no difference in the magnitude of improvement
between carriers and noncarriers of the variant allele.

Conelusion
Older women carrying the TrptdArg B3-adrenoceptor gene variant have an impaired capacity to lose visceral adipose tissue in response to a calorie-
restricted diet,

Joumal Description

Diabetes publishes original research about the physiclogy and pathophysiology of diabetes mellitus. Submitted manuscripls can report any aspect of
laboratory, animal, or human research. Emphasis is on investigative reports focusing on areas such as the pathogenesis of diabetes and its complications,
normal and pathologic pancreatic islet function and inlermediary metabolism, pharmacological mechanisims of drug and hormone action, and biochemical
and molecular aspects of normal and abnormal biclogical processes.

Scientific Advisory Board
In September 2008, Medifast announced the formation of i1s Scientilic Advisory Board.

The rele of the Board is o continually review the elfectiveness, safety, and nulritional benelits of Medifasts products and programs, The leam of
specialists will also assist in the development of new meals and supplements, as well as weight-loss approaches for specific medieal needs (1.e.. patients
with heart discase) or lifestyles (vegetarians, ete.).

The work of this cross-disciplinary group builds on Medifast's henitage of medically sound approaches to weight loss, and the incorporation of leading-
edge clinical rescarch into the company s products and programs.

Medifast Scientific Advisory Board - 2000-2011
Lawrence Cheskin, M.ID,, F.A.CP.,
Director, the Johns Hopkins Weight Managemen! Center, Baltimore, MD

Diebra L. Miller, Ph.12.
Director of Nutrnition, the Hershey Company

John P. Forevl. Ph.D.

Director, Behavioral Medicine Research Center, Baylor College of Medicine
juy H. Johnson, Ph.D.

President, Johnson Nutrition Solutions. LLC

Executive Director, the McCormick Science Institute

Slyvia B. Rowe, MA.

President, S.R. Strategy, LLC

Adjunct Professor, University of Massachusetts Amherst

Adjunct Professor, Tufts Friedman School of Nutrition Science and Policy

Jefl 8. Volek. Ph.D..R.D.
Associate Professor, Department of Kincsiology, University of Conneeticut

Walter Eugene Egerton TT1, M.D.
Chief Medical Officer, Maryland General Hospital
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COMPETITION

There are many difTerent kinds of diet products and programs within the weight loss industry and this industry is highly-competitive. These
include a wide variety of commercial weight loss programs, pharmaceutical products, weight loss books, self-help diets, dictary supplements, appetite
suppressants and meal replacement shakes and bars. Medifast’s identified peers and competitors in the general health and wellness diet industry include
NutnSystem Ine.. ¢Diets.com, Herbalife Lid., UUSANA Health Sciences, Nu Skin Enterprises, NBTY Ine.. and Weight Watchers Intemational Ine.

The Company believes it can compete in this competitive market because its products have been clinically tested and proven in clinical siudies
conducted by researchers rom Johns Hopkins University and other major institutions, and because its produets have been salely and eflectively used by
customers and recommended by physicians for over 30 vears. Medifast has been on the cutting edge of product development with soy based nutritional
and weight management products sinee 1980, These produets are formulated with high-quality, low-calonie, low-fat ingredients that provide alternatives to
fad diets or medicinal weight loss remedies.

The Company’s diverse multi-channel distribution strategy makes the Medifast brand available through multiple support channels, which target
dilferent customer necds. Medilast practitioners olfer Medifast to patients through wholesale or an innovative home delivery model and some practitioners
choose to prescribe appetile suppression diel drugs to patients in conjunction with a Medilast based diet. Medifast Direct via the website and call center
serves customers with free online support and community tools and access o nuintionists and customer service representalives. The Take Shape for Life
division offers the personal support of a health coach that is often a person who has achieved success on the Medifast program and has turned their success
into a business opporlunity generaling incremental revenue for the company through relationship marketing. Meditast Weight Control Cenlers ofler a
supervised and structured model for customers who preler more accountability and personalized counseling on the program. The Medifast program alone
is a mild ketogenic dict that maturally suppresses appetite and eliminates hunger without other therapies for most people.

PRODUCTS

The Company offers a vanety of weight and disease management products under the Medifast® and Essential 18 brands and for select privale
label customers. The Meditast line includes Medifast® 55 Shakes, Medifast® 70 Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Appetite Suppression Shakes, Medifast®
Plus for Women's Health Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Diabetics Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Joint Health Shakes, Medilast® Plus lor Coronary Health
Shakes, Essential 1'% Calone Bum Drinks, Essential 1% Calorie burn Flavor Infusers, Essential 18 Antioxidant Shakes, Essential 1® Antioxidant Flavor
Infusers, Medifast® Bars, Medifast Crunch Bars, Medifast® Soups,, Medifast® Home-style Chili, Medifast® Oatmeal, Medifast® Podding, Medifast®
Serambled Eggs. Medifast® Hol Cocoa, Medilast® Cappuecino, Medifast® Chai Latte, Medifast® leed Teas, Medifast® Fruil Drinks, Medifast®
Pretzels, Medifast® Puffs New! Medifast®, Brownie, New! Medifast® Pancakes, New! Medifast® SoftServe, Medifast® Soy Crisps, Medifast®
Crackers, Essential 19 Super Omega 3, and Essential 18 Digestive Health.

Medifast nutritional products are formulated with high-quality, low-calorie, and low-fat ingredients. Many Medifast products are soy based and
are fully fortified lo contain 24 vitamins and minerals, as well as other nutrients essential for good health.

Medifast brand awareness continues to expand through the Company’s markeling campaigns, product development, line extensions, and the
Company's emphasis on quality customer service, technieal support and publications developed by the Company’s marketing stafll. Medifast producis
have been proven to be effective for weight and discase management in clinical studies conducted by rescarchers from the ULS, government and Johns
Hopkins University. The Company has continued to develop ils sales and marketing operations with qualified management and innovative programs, The
Company’s facility in Owings Mills, MD manufactures all powders and subcontracts the production ol ils Ready-To-Drink products, bars, pretzels, pulls,
crackers, soy crisps, and supplement products.

NEW PRODUCTS

The Company expanded the Medifast produet line in 2000 by introducing a dessert line. The first produet introduced was the Medifast Brownie,
The new brownic is a full meal replacement, as part of the Medifast program and is nutritionally comparable to the other products in the line. This unique
praduct contains real chocolate chips and the package comes complete with travs designed to support preparing the product in the microwave or
convenlional oven.

The company also added four Navors of sofl serve “ice eream”™ (Peanut butter, Chocolate Mint, Coflee and Mango.) These Soft Serve products
were developed to be ready to consume in less than 2 minutes. This product can be made in an individual stvle blender such as the Medifast HealthMated®
Blender. Medifast also expanded its breaklast line to include pancakes, in an onginal (butter avored) and chocolate chip.

The company also added, and rebranded several products 1o the Essential 18 brand, Medilast developed New! Essential 1: Sleep Health, a new
supplement. designed 1o aid in helping consumers to [all asleep and stay asleep longer.  This product is marketed at people who have disruptions to normal
slecp, which is common in overweight and obese individuals. The product uses a unique dual-action delivery system for both immediate and graduoal time
release of melatonin, a safe, natural substance that can help support healthy sleep patterns. The company also rebranded several products to the Essential 1
name such as the Essential 1% Caloric Burn Drinks. Essential 1% Calorie bum Flavor Infusers, Essential 18 Antioxidant Shakes, Essential 1% Antioxidant
Flavor Infusers, Essential 1% Super Omega 3, and Essential 1% Digestive Health,
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MARKETING

In 2010, the Medifast Direct channel continued to build and leverage its core Medifast brand through multiple marketing siralegies (o its largel
audiences, Customer acquisition strategies include national and regional advertising in print magazines, television commercials, web advertising, direct
mailings, radio commercials, and D testimonials, In addition, the Company executed strategic public relations elTorts o secure local and national editorial
placements to raise brand awareness. Medifast has also developed a comprehensive social media strategy utilizing Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, blogger
endorsements and more. These mediums were used to target new customers by stressing Medilast's quick, easy and safe approach to weight management,
Direet mail campaigns, ¢-mail newsletters and outbound calling programs were ulilized to reactivale, encourage and support existing customers.  Medilast
continued 1o enhance the Medifast websile including adding leatures in the My Medifast” community which offers meal planning, community message
boards, blogs and a robust library of information. Late in 2007, the Company launched an auto ship loyalty program where customers receive discounts
and rewards with automatic shipments of Medifast Meals on a monthly basis. Both the MyMedifast community enhancements and Auto-ship programs
confribute to the retention of Medilast customer through improved compliance with the program.

The Company also distributes its products through the Take Shape lor Lile network of independent health coaches, which is a form of person-lo-
person direct selling. Take Shape for Life health coaches refer clients to their replicated website or to the Company’s in-house call center to purchase
product.  The client purchases the Medifast product and it is shipped direcily to their home or designated address. Our health coaches do not handle
payment and are not required to hold inventory for resale. In addition, our health coaches pay the same price for product as their clients. There are no
special product discounts for health coaches. The concepl of network marketing is based on the strength of personal recommendations from (riends, co-
workers, neighbors, or close acquaintances who frequently have successfully utilized the Medifast weight loss program.  Our health coaches provide
coaching and support (o their clients throughout the weight loss and weight maintenance process while the client remains on the Program,

SALES
The Company™s Sales division handles two primary areas:

Physician Sales - The sales team is responsible for prospecting medical accounts, elinics, hospitals, and HMOs. During 2011, the sales team
attended a number of medical professional trade shows, which expanded Medifast's penetration of the medical weight loss business segment,

Meditast Weight Control CentersFranchises - The brick and mortar clinies have Counselors that sell Medifast products and full service programs
which include weekly one-on-one counseling sessions, medical monitoring and physician oversighl. Franchise sales seck qualified pariners to develop
defined market territorics.

MANUFACTURING

Jason Pharmaceuticals, Ine., the Company's whelly owned manulactunng subsidiary, produces over 55% ol the Medifast products in a state-ol-
the-art food and pharmaceutical-grade facility in Owings Mills, Marvland. The Company purchased the plant in July 2002 for £3.4 million. The
Company has also invested in increasing production eapacity with the purchase of two additional manufacturing lines and a larger capacity blender, The
lines have significantly improved the Company’s production capability, while also improving its overall efficiencies. The remaining 45% of our products
are manufactured by third party vendors in accordance with Medifast proprietary formulas and ulilizing prescribed ingredients.

The manufacturing facility has the capacity for significant increases to its production output with minimal capital expenditures. Adding one
additional shifi will enable the Company 1o produce enough produets to generate over § 400 million in sales,

Manufacturing processes, product labeling. quality control and equipment are subject to regulations and inspections mandated by the Food &
Drug Administration (FIDA), the Maryland State Department of Health and Hygiene, and the Baltimore County Department of Health, The plant strictly
adheres 1o all GMP practices and has maintained its status as an "OU" (Orthodox Union) kosher-approved facility sinee 1982,

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION HISTORY

The formulation, processing, packaging, labeling and adverising of the Company's produets are subjeet to regulation by several federal agencies,
but principally by the Food and Drug Administration (the "FI2A™). The Company must comply with the standards, labeling and packaging requirements
impesed by the FDA for the marketing and sale of foods and nutritional supplements, Applicable regulations prevent the Company from representing in ils
literature and labeling that its products produce or creale medicinal effects or possess drug-related charactenisties.  The FDA could, in certain
circumstances, require the reformulation of certain produets to meel new standards, require the recall or discontinuation of certain products not capable of
reformulation. or require additional record keeping, expanded documentation of the properties of certain produets, expanded or different labeling, and
scicntific substantiation. If the FDA believes the products are unapproved drugs or food additives, the FIDDA may initiate similar enforcement proceedings.
Any or all such requirements could adversely affeet the Company's operations and its financial condition.

To the extent that sales of foods and nutritional supplements may constitute improper trade practices or endanger the safety of consumers, the
operations of the Company may alse be subject 1o the regulations and enforcement powers of the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), and the Consumer
Product Safety Commission. The Company's activitics are also regulated by various agencies of the states and localitics in which the Company's products
are sold. The Company's products are manufactured and packaged in accordance with customers’ specifications and sold under their private labels both
domestically and in foreign countries through independent distribution channels.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

The Company, like other producers and distributors of ingested products, faces an inherent risk of exposure 1o produet liability elaims in the
event thal, among other things, the use of its produets resulls in injury. The Company maintains insuranee against produet liability claims with respect to
the products it manufactures. With respect to the retail and direct marketing distribution of products produced by others, the Company's principal form of
insurance consists of armangements with each of ils suppliers of those products to name the Company as beneficiary on each of such vendor's product
liability insurance policies. The Company does not buy products from suppliers who do not maintain such coverage.

EMPLOYEES

As ol December 31, 2010, the Company employed 507 [ull-time emplovees, ol whom 272 were engaged in manufacturing, warehouse
management, and shipping, and 2335 in marketing, administrative, call center and corporate support functions. None of the employees are subject to a
collective bargaining agreement with the Company,

INFORMATION SYSTEMS INFRASTRUCTURE

Or websites, which is based on internally developed software and other third party software, is hosted in Baltimore, Maryland at DataPoint
{www.datapoint.eom) co-location lacility. This lacility provides redundant network connections, uninterruplible power supplies, physical and [ire securily
and diesel generated power back up for the equipment on which our websites rely upon, Our servers and our network are monitored 24 hours a day, seven
davs a week.

We use a variety of security techniques to protect our confidential customer data, including regularly scheduled penetration sceurity tests on our
website,. When our cuslomers place an order or aceess their account information, we use a secure server (S51.) to encrypt and transmit information, Our
seeure server cerlificate eneryvpts all information entered before it is senl 1o our server. We have a secondary lirewall layer of securily between our
customer facing websites and the databases which house their information. All customer data is protected against unauthorized access. We use VeriSign,
Chase Paymentech and HackerSale sollware to secure our eredit card transactions,

As our operations grow in both size and scope, we will continuously need to improve and upgrade our information systems and infrastructure
while maintaining the reliability and integnty of our systems and infrastructure. In 2010 we implemented a redundant MPLS (Multiprotocel Label
Switching) network across our organization. This will allow for improved inter-connectivity and redundancy for cach of our corporate locations.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

All periodic and current reports, registration statements, code of conduet, code of ethics and other material that the Company is required to file
with the Securitics and Exchange Commission (“SEC™), including the Company s annual report on Form 10-K., quarterly reports on Form 10-0), current
reporls on Form 8-K, and amendments o those reports filed or fumished pursuant 1o Section 13(a) of the Securilies Exchange Act of 1934 (the “1934 Act
Eeports™). These materials are available free of charge through the Company’s investor relations page alwww ChooseMedifast.com. Such documents are
available as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing of the material with the SEC. The Company’s Internet web site and the information
confained therein or connected thereto are not inlended 1o be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company will fumish without
charge a copy of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10K, including the financial statements and schedules thereto, to any person requesting in
wriling and stating that he or she is the benelicial owner of Commaon Shares of the Company,

Requests and inquirics should be addressed to:

Investor Belations
Medifast, [nc.

11445 Cronhill Dr.
Owings Mills, MD 21117

CERTIFICATIONS

The Company™s Chiel’ Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have filed their certifications as required by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC™) regarding the quality of the Company s public disclosure for cach of the periods ended during the Company 's fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010 and the effectiveness of internal confrol over finaneial reporting as of December 31, 2000 and 2009, Further the Company s Chiel
Exceutive Officer has certified to the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE™) that he is not aware of any vielation by the Company of the NYSE corporate
governance listing slandards, as required by Section 303A.,12(a) of the NYSE listing standards,
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Name Age Paosition
Bradley T. MacDonald 63 Executive Chairman of the Board of Direclors
Michacl 8. MeDevitt iz Chiel Executive CiTicer
Leo V. Williams 62 Executive Vice President
Miargaret Sheetz 33 Chief Operating Cificer and President
Brendan N, Connors i3 Chiefl Financial OfMicer

Bradley T. MacDonald, age 63, is the Executive Chairman of the Board of Medifast, Ine.  Mr. MacDonald has been Chairman of the Board of Medilast,
Ine. since January 1998 and was also Chief Executive Officer from Scptember 1996 to March of 2007, He was the principal architect of the turnaround of
Medifast and formulated the “Direct o Consumer” business models that are the primary drivers of Revenue to this day. He also was the Co-Founder of
Take Shape for Life and acquired the Clinic operations in 2002, During his time as Chairman of the Board he provided strategic oversight and assisted the
executive management team to 43 consceutive quarters of profits and improved sharcholders equity from negative 34 million to over 355 million in ten
years. In this ime the company increased its marked cap from negative 3,.8MM 1o over S400 million and was listed on the NYSE. Al the time the Board
planned leadership suceession oceurred, the Board assigned Mr. MacDonald executive responsibilities in the following arcas: legal aflairs, reasury,
banking relationships. M&A, strategic plan oversight, public policy oversight, and community relations in addition to Board responsibilitics as Executive
Chairman and as the formal Co-Founder of Take Shape for Life. In 2006, Mr. MacDonald received the prestigious and audited Ernst and Young award of
“Entreprencur of the Year”™ for the state of Maryland in the consumer products category. Also, he helped lead the Company to national recognition in
Forbes Magazine ranking Medifast 28% of the top 200 small companies in America. Mr. MacDonald was previously emploved by the Company as its
Chief Executive Ollicer from Seplember 1996 to August 1997, From 1991 through 1994, Colone]l MacDonald refurned 1o active duty 1o be Depuly
Director and Chief Financial Otficer of the Retail, Food, Hospitality and Recreation Businesses for the United States Marine Corps. Prior thereto, Mr.
MacDonald served as Chiefl Operating Officer of the Bonneau Sunglass Company, President of Pennsylvania Optical Co., Chairman and CEO of
MacDonald and Associates, which had major linaneial interests in retail drug. consumer candy. and pilot sunglass companies. Mr. MacDonald was
national president of the Marine Corps Reserve Officers Association and retired from the United States Marine Corps Reserve as a Colonel in 1997, after
28 vears of service. He was appointed and served on the Defense Advisory Board for Emplover Support of the Guard and Reserve (ESGR.) for three
years.  Currently, Mr. MacDonald serves on the Board of Trustees of Stevenson University in Maryland, and is the President of the Catholic Community
Foundation al the Archdiocese of Baltimaore. He is also the Viee-Chairman of the Board of Threctors of the Marine Corps Reserve Tovs lor Tots
Foundation. Mr. MacDonald is the father of Margaret Sheetz who performs the role of President and Chiel Operating Officer at Medifast, Ine. Mr.
Michael C. MacDonald. a director of the Company is the brother of Mr. MacDonald.

Michael 5. McDevitt, age 32, is the Chicf Executive Officer of Medifast Ine. Under Mr. MeDevitt's leadership, Medifast was named the *%1 Small
Company in America™ by Forbes Magazine in 2010, due in part to the company's tremendous 1200 year-over-vear eamings growth,

Mr. McDevitt joined Medifast in 2002 bringing with him a strong background in financial and operational management. He was named Chief Financial
Officer in 2006 before rising to the role of CEO in 2007. Prior to Medifast, McDeviit served as a senior analyst for the Blacksione Group, a private equity
group based in New York City.

Mr. MeDevitt volunteers for Big Brothers Big Sisters of Cenftral Maryland and is & member of the board of directors for the American Hearl Association's
Baltimore region. Additionally, he supports the efforts of the American Diabetes Association and the Toys for Tots Foundation.

Mr. MeDevitl holds a bachelor's degree in business administration from James Madison University with a concentration in finanee,

Leo V. Williams, age 62, Mr. Williams became Executive Viee President of Medifast, Ine. in January of 2004 and Chairman ol the Board, Take Shape for
Life, Ine., The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary in 2006, Prior to joining Medifast, he was Future Truck/SUV Marketing Plans Director of Ford
Motor Company. A retired Marine Corps Reserve Major General, he was most recently ordered 1o active duly from Oetober 2002 (o Seplember 2003 1o
serve as Deputy Director of the Marine Corps Combat Development Command. Currently, he serves as Chairman of the Board, American Diabetes
Association of Maryland: and board member, University of the District of Columbia Foundation, Navy Mutual Aid Association, PanA frican Satellite
Communications, Inc. and Intelligent [lluminations, [nc. Mr. Williams recently served as Vice-Chairman of the Board, Marine Corps Toys for Tots
Foundation,

Margaret Sheetz, age 33, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of Medifast. Inc.  Prior to joining the company in 2000, she was a legal assistant
with the firm of Carringlon, Coleman, Sloman and Blumenthal in Dallas, Texas, As Medifast continues lo experience strong year over vear growth, Ms,
Sheetz has provided the operational and technical leadership that has resulted in Medifast providing the proper infrastructure (o support the growth of the
company to include making dramatic productivity improvement in the company’s operational capabilitics. building a strong infrastructure of distribution,
manulacturing, information systems and human resource operations necessary (o support rapid business growth. She has been selected for the President’s
Advisory Board for Villanova University. She also supports the efforts of the American Diabetes Association, the American Heart Association and the
Tovs for Tots Foundation. Ms. Sheetz is also very active with several organizations of Marvland executives. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
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Villanova University and received an Execulive MBA lrom Lovola University. Ms, Sheelz is the daughter ol Bradley T. MacDonald and niece of Michael
C. MacDonald, a director.

Brendan N. Connors, CPA, age 33, Mr. Connors has been the Chief Financial OfMicer of Medifast since May 2010, Mr. Connors joined Medilast as the
Viee President of Finance in April of 2005, Prior to joining Medifast, Mr. Connors worked as a Senior Accountant at Wolf & Company P.C., a certified
public aceounting and consulting firm in Boston, MA,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In evaluating the company. the following risk factors in addition to all other information in this report should be considered when carefully
reading this Annual Report on Form 10-K. T any of the events deseribed below oceurs, the Company’s business linancial condition and operating resulls
could be materially and adversely affected. The following discussion is not all inclusive and additional risks and uncertaintics presently known to us or that
we currently deem immaterial may also impact our business, financial conditions and operating results,

We may be subject to health related claims from our customers

A customer that sullers health problems may allege that the Medifast program contnbuted (o the ailment. The Company is nol currenily the
subject of any such claims; however, we would defend ourselves vigorously against such accusations. Regardless of the ultimate outcome, such claims
could reduce our brand image and customer loyalty and defending against such claims would be costly and could adversely alleet our resulls of operations.

New diets or pharmaceutical solutions could put us at 8 competitive disadvantage

The weight loss industry is highly subjective and influenced by many factors. The low carbohydrate diet trend hit the ULS. several years ago and
had an impact on many weight loss companies, including ours. Another new diet could sweep the nation or consumer preferences could change, which is
common in our industry. Our [ailure to adapt or respond quickly enough to these changes could have an adverse alleel on our results of operations. In
addition, pharmaceutical companics are constantly trving to develop safe, effective, drugs that lead to weight loss. If successful, many dicters could
perceive this 1o be easier than the Medifast program and this would put us at a competilive disadvantage.

Much of our growth and foture profitability depends on the effectiveness of our advertising spent in the Divect Response marketing channel

Out business success depends on our ability to attract and retain customers which significantly depends on our marketing practices, Cur
marketing expenditures may not result in increased revenue or generale sufficienl awareness ol the program or the brand to the consumer. We may not be
able o manage our advertising expenditures in a cost effective manner which may inerease the cost o acquire a new customer 1o an elevated level that will
decrease profits.

We may be subject to claims that our employees are unqualified to provide weight loss counseling

Our Medifast Weight Control center division provides medical assessmenis and counseling 1o our customers. We may be subject to claims that
our employees lack the proper training and qualifications lo provide proper advice regarding weight loss. We could be subject 1o claims il an employee in
one of our clinics gives inappropriate weight loss advice that results in health problems. Any such litigation would be costly and claims could result in
damage to our reputation and could have an adverse elleet on our operaling resulls.

The loss of key personnel could adversely affect our ability to operate and result in a negative financial condition

Certain members of our Company oversce integral components of our Company. Although we do not anticipate the departure of any key
emplovees including bul not limited to the execulive management leam, we cannot guarantee their tenure indelinitely in the fulure, Our fulure suecess
depends (o a significant degree on the skills, expenence and eflorts of our key executive officers. The loss of the services of any of these individuals could
harm our business. If any key exceutive officers left us or were seriously injured and became unable to work, the business could be harmed.

Since we cannot exert the same level of influence or control over our independent health coaches as we could were they our own employees, our
health coaches could fail to comply with our policies and procedures, which could result in claims against us that could harm our financial
condition and operating results,

Owr health coaches are independent contractors and, accordingly, we arc not in a position to directly provide the same direction, motivation and
oversight as we would i health coaches were our own employees, As a resull, there can be no assurance that our health coaches will participate in our
markeling strategies or plans, aceept our introduction of new products, or comply with our health coach policies and procedures.

We can provide no assurances that the number of independent health coaches will inerease or remain constant or that their productivity will
increase, We experienced a 50% increase in active independent health coaches during 2010, The number of active independent health coaches may not
inerease and could decline in the future. Independent health coaches may lerminate their services al any time, and. like most direct selling companies, we
experience tumover among new independent health coaches from year to year. We cannot accurately prediet any fluctuation in the number and
productivity of independent health coaches because we primarily rely upon existing independent health coaches to sponsor and train new independent
health coaches and to motivate new and existing independent health coaches. Our operating results could be adversely allected il we and our existing
independent health coaches do not generate sufficient interest in our business to successtully retain existing independent health coaches and attract new
independent health coaches.
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Extensive federal, state and local laws regulate our business, products and direct selling program.  While we have implemented health coach
policies and procedures designed to govern their conduct and (o protect the trademarks and brand of the Company it can be difficult 1o enforee these
policies and procedures because of the large number of health coaches and their independent status. Violations by our independent health coaches of
applicable law or of our policies and procedures in dealing with customers could reflect negatively an our products and aperations and harm our business
reputation. In addition. it is possible that a court could hold us civilly or criminally accountable based on vicanous liability because of the actions ol our
independent health coaches,

If we do not continue to develop innovative new services and products or if our services and products do not continue to appeal to the market, our
business may sulfer

The weight management industry is subject to changing customer demands based, in large part, on the efficacy and popular appeal of weight
management programs. Our future success depends on our ability o continue to develop and market new services and products and to enhance our existing
services and produets, each on a imely basis 1o respond (o new and evolving customer demands, achieve marketl aceeptance and keep pace with new
nutritional and weight management developments. We may not be successtul in developing. introducing on a timely basis or marketing any new or
enhanced services and products, and we cannot assure vou that any new or enhanced services or products will appeal to the market, Cur failure 1o develop
new services and products and to enhance our existing services and products or the failure of our services and products to continue to appeal to the market
could have an adverse impact on our ability 1o attract and retain members and subseribers and thus adversely alfect our business,

A competitor or new entrant into the market may develop a product and program similar to or more effective or more favorably perceived than
aurs

The weight loss industry is highly competitive. We compete with a wide vanety of commercial weight loss programs, pharmaccutical products,
weight loss books, sell~help diets, supplements and meal replacements. Many of our competitors are significantly larger than us and have more linancial
resources lo develop new products and programs. Our business could be affected if one of our competitors or a new entrant (o the market develops similar
products and programs through similar marketing channels or more effective or more favorably perceived products. This could result in lower sales as
well as pricing competition which could adversely aflect the Company s resulls [rom operalions.

Third partics may infringe on our brand and other intellectual property vights, which may have an adverse impact on our business

We currently rely on a combination of trademark, copyright, trade secrct, patent and other intellectual property laws and confidentiality
procedures to establish and prolect our proprietary rights, including our brand, I1 we fail to successfully enforce our intellectual property rights, the value
ol our brand, services and products could be diminished and our business may suller. Our precautions may nol prevenl misappropriation of our infellectual
property, particularly in foreign countries where laws or law enforcement practices may not protect our proprictary rights as fully as in the United States.
Any legal action thal we may bring lo prolect our brand and other intellectual property could be unsuccessful and expensive and could divert
management’s atlention from other business concerns. In addition, legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of protection of
intellectual property, especially in Internet-relaled businesses, are uneertain and evolving. We cannol assure you that these evolving legal standards will
sulliciently proteet our intellectual property rights in the future.

Adverse publicity associated with our products, ingredients, or sales channels, or those of similar companies, could harm our financial condition,
operating results, and stock price

Adverse publicity, whether or not accurate, relating to the Company, our products or our operations, our sales channels and independent health
coaches and [ranchisees could adversely impaet the Company”s financial condition, operating resulls, and stock price. If the press were to come oul with
negative media about low-caloric diets, meal replacements, or soy protein this could harm our business. Even if not dirccted at Medifast, this perception
could be instilled in our targel markel and cause harm to our operating results, In addition, it could lead o lawsuits or other legal challenges and could
negatively impact our reputation, the market demand for our products, or our general business.

Our ability to compete could be negatively affected in the event we fail to protect our brand names, trademarks or other intellectual property

Because our business relies heavily on direct to consumer models, brand awareness is an important factor in our sales sirategy. Failure to protect
our brand or maintain an image ol good standing with the public could result in a negative elfect on our operations. Additionally, [ailure to protect our
intellectual property could result in the arrival of a similar competitor which could reduce our competitive edge or decrease our market share,

Our results of operations may decline as a result of a downturn in general economic conditions or consumer confidence

Our results of operations are highly dependent on produet sales and program fees. A downtum in general economie conditions or consumer
confidence and spending in any of our major markets could result in people curtailing their discretionary spending, which, in turn, could lead to a decrease
in product sales in our Medifast Direct and Take Shape for Life divisions and a decrease in product and program fees at our Medifast Weight Control
Centers and Internet product subscriptions. Any such reduction would adversely affect our results of operations.

As a manufacturer, we may be subject to product liability claims

As a manufacturer and a distributor of produets for human consumption and topical application, we could become exposed 1o product liability
claims and litigation. Additionally, the manufacture and sale of these products involves the risk of injury 1o consumers due lo tampering by unauthonzed
third parties or product contamination. To date, we have not been a party to any product liability litigation. We are aware of no instance in which any of
our products are or have been defective in any way that could give rise lo material losses or expenditures relaled lo produet liability claims. Although we
maintain product liability insuranee, which we believe to be adequate for our needs, there can be no assuranee that we will nol be subject to such claims in
the future or that our insurance coverage will be adequate,



The sale of ingested products involves product liability and other risks

Like other distributors of products that are ingested, we face an inherent risk of exposure to product liability ¢laims if the use of our products
results in illness or injury. The foods that we resell in the LS, are subject to laws and regulations, including those administered by the USDA and FIDA that
establish manulacturing practices and quality standards for food produets. Produet liability elaims could have a matenial adverse eflect on our business as
existing insurance coverage may not be adequate. Distributors of weight loss food products, vitamins, nutritional supplements and minerals, including our
predecessor businesses, have been named as delendants in produet liability lawsuits from time (o time. The suceessiul assertion or setilement of an
uninsured claim, a significant number of insured claims or a claim execeding the limits of our insurance coverage would harm us by adding costs to the
business and by diverting the atlention of senior management from the operation of the business. We may also be subject to claims that our products
confain confaminants, are improperly labeled. include inadequate instructions as to use or inadequale warnings covering interactions with other substances.
Product liability litigation, even if not meritorious, is very expensive and could also entail adverse publicity for us and reduce our revenue. In addition. the
products we distribule, or certain components of those products, may be subject 1o product recalls or other deficiencies. Any negative publicity associaled
with these actions would adversely alleet our brand and may resull in decreased product sales and, as a resull, lower revenues and profits.

A disruption in the supply of raw materials or the inability of third party manufacturing for certain products could affect operating results

We rely heavily on our vendors lo provide quality raw materials for us to utilize in our on-site manufacturing processes. Any disruption in the
availability of these materials could potentially interrupt our ability to provide eertain produets 1o cusiomers in a limely manner. Also cerlain produels are
currently manufactured through a third party. The availability of these products is prone to fluctuations dependent on the manufacturer’s ability to sccure
and produce a quality product that satislies our salisfaction standards. Our inability to secure products in a timely manner will cause loss of revenue, loss of
customers, and damage our brand.

Disruption to the com pany’s supply chain could adversely affect its business

Damage or disruption to the company”s supplicrs or to the company’s manufacturing or distribution capabilitics due to weather, natural disaster,
fire, terrorism, pandemic, strikes, or other reasons could impair the company’s ability to manufacture and/or sell its products, Failure to take adequate steps
to mitigate the likelihood or potential impact of such events, or to effectively manage such events if they oceur, particularly when a product is sourced from
a single location, could adversely alTect the company’s business or linancial resulis,

Our manufacturing activity is subject to certain risks

We manulacture approximately 35% of the products sold 1o our customers. As a resull, we are dependent upon the uninterrupled and efficient
operation of our manulaciuring facility in Owings Mills, Maryland. Those operations are subjeet to power [ailures, the breakdown, [ailure, or substandard
performance of equipment, the improper installation or operation of equipment, natural or other disasters, and the need to comply with the requirements or
directives of government agencies, including the FI3A. There can be no assurance thal the oceurrence ol these or any other operational problems at our
facility would not have a matenal adverse elfect on our business, linancial condition. or resulls of operations. We are subject (o a variety of environmental
laws relating to the storage, discharge, handling. emission, generation, manufacture, use and disposal of chemicals, solid and hazardous waste, and other
toxic and hazardous matenals, Our manufacturing operations presently do not resull in the generation of malenal amounts of hazardous or loxic
substances. Nevertheless, complying with new or more stringent laws or regulations, or more vigorous enforcement of current or future policies of
regulalory agencies, could require substantial expenditures by us that could have a material adverse elfect on our business, financial condition, or resulls of
operations. Environmental laws and regulations require us to maintain and comply with a number of permits, authonzations, and approvals and 1o maintain
and update training programs and safety data regarding materials used in our processes. Violations of those requirements could result in financial penaltics
and other enforeement aclions and could require us to halt one or more portions of our operations until a violalion is cured, The combined cosls of curing
incidents ol non-compliance, resolving enforeement actions that might be initiated by government authonties, or of satisfving new legal requirements
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.

Our business is subject to regulatory and legislative restrictions

A number of laws and regulations govern our production, operation, and advertising. The FTC and certain states regulate adverlising,
disclosures to consumers, privacy., consumer pricing or billing arrangements, and other consumer matters. Our direct selling distribution channel is subject
le sk of interpretation of certain laws pertaining lo the prevention of “pyvramid™ or “chain sale”™ schemes. Although we believe we are in full compliance,
should the goveming body alter or enforee the law in an unanticipated way, there may be a negative resull on the company s operations. The Company s
financial reporting is subject to various laws and regulations as well, specifically, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC. These requirements
demand the Company disclose certain information and maintain specific controls to ensure fair and legal accounting practices as oullined therein, The
Company has taken substantial measures to ensure compliance through routine internal and external audits. Failure to correct any flaws in internal controls
may conslitute a public notification of weakness and could have an adverse elfect on our stock price. Additionally, the Company is required 1o mainlain a
position ol good standing in regards to taxation on both a Federal and State level. Failure to comply with federal and state regulations could resull in
additional taxes, fines, or inlerest due that could financially strain the company. Future laws and regulations could be unforeseen and potentially have a
malerial negative impact on the Company. Failure 1o comply with any regulations of eurrent or future authoritative entitics could have a detrimental ¢lTect
on the Company’s financial standing or operating results.

New or more stringent governmental regulations could adversely affect our business

Food production and marketing are highly regulated by a variety of federal, state, local and foreign agencies. Changes in laws or regulations that
impose additional regulatory requirements on us. such as the recently proposed food safety legislation that would require regisiration fees and mandatory
product testing, could increase our cost of doing business or restrict our actions, causing our results of operations to be adverscly atfected. Increased
governmental interest in adverlising practices may result in regulations that could require us to change or resirict our advertising praclices,



Inereased government regulations to limil carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gas emissions as a resull of concern over climate change may
resull in inereased compliance costs, capital expenditures and other finaneial obligations for us. We use natural gas, diesel fuel, and electneity in the
manufacturing and distribution of our products. Legislation or regulation affecting these inputs could materially affect our profitability. In addition, climate
change could alfect our ability to procure needed commaodities al costs and in quantities we cumently experience and may require us 1o make additional
unplanned capilal expenditures.

Additionally, our selling practices are regulated by competition autherities in the United States and abroad. A finding that we are in violation of,
or out of compliance with, applicable laws or regulations could subject us to civil remedies, including fines, damages, injunctions or product recalls, or
criminal sanctions, any of which could adversely aflect our business.

The business may grow too quickly for the current infrastructure to handle

I our advertising is extremely successful and our Take Shape for Lile relationship marketing division sees a large upltick in recruitment we may
be unable to handle the growth from an operational perspective. Increasing demands on our infrastructure could cause long hold times in the call center as
well as delays on our website. In addition, there could be delays in order processing, packaging and shipping. We could run oul of a majority of our
inventory il growth exceeded our production eapacity. I these dilliculties are encountered in a peniod of hyper-growth then our operating resulls could
sulfer.

We are subject to risks associated with our reliance upon information technology systems

Our success 15 dependent on the accuracy, reliability, and proper uwse ol information processing syslems and management information
technology. Our information technology systems are designed and selected in order to facilitate order entry and customer billing, maintain health coach
and Preferred Customer records, accurately track purchases and incentive payments, manage sccounling, linance, and manufacturing operalions, generate
reports, and provide customer service and lechnical support. Although off-site data back-up is maintained, it is possible that an interruption in these
systems could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition. or results of operations.

Any deficiencies or shortcomings in our information technology could prevent an efficient execution of routine business procedures

We rely heavily on our IT infrastruelure 1o support major business componenits. Any disruption to the integnty of this support strueture ineluding
but not limited to; software, telecommunications, Electronic Resource Platform, or the Information Technology architecture as a whole could severely limit
our ability to provide customers and vendors with adequate service and operating responses. In addition, our finaneial reporting is directly correlaled with
our company-wide sollware Microsofl Navision 4.0. Any compromise in the veracity of this system could severely alter the accuracy of our tracking,
volumes, and general reporting including financial statements.

Our business is subject to online security risks, including security breaches and identity theft

Te suceeed, online commerce and communications must provide a secure Iransmission ol confidential information over public networks,
Currently, a significant number of our customers authorize us 1o bill their eredit cards direetly lor all fees charged by us. We rely on third parly soflware
products to secure our eredit card transactions. Although we have developed systems and processes that are designed to protect consumer information and
prevent [raudulent payment transactions and other secunty breaches. (ailure to prevent or mitigate such [raud or breaches may adversely aflect our
operating results.

Our stock price may experience volatility due to fluctuations in our operating results

Our stock price is subject to Nucluations in response to our operating results, a compelilor’s operating results, or our ability to meet stock
analysts lforecasts and our yearly revenue and EPS guidance. In addition, general trends in the weight-loss industry as a whole can have an alfect on our
stock price. These factors may have an adverse affect on the market price of our stock and cause it to fluctuate significantly.

Taxation risks could subject us to liability for past sales, increase our costs and could impact our profitability

The issuance by the Internal Revenue Service and/or siale tax authorities of new tax regulations or changes 1o existing standards and actions by
federal. state, or local tax agencics and judicial authoritics with respect to applying applicable tax laws and regulations and the resolution of disputes with
any laxing jurisdictions could subject us lo liability for past sales, increase our costs and could impaet our profitability.

We may not successfully make acquisitions or enter into joint ventures and we may not successfully integrate, operate or realize the anticipated
benefits of such businesses.

As parl of our growth stralegy, we may pursue selecled acquisitions or joinl venlures, We cannol assure vou thal we will be able to effect these
transactions on commercially reasonable terms or af all. Any [ulure aequisiions o joinl venlures may require access lo additional capital. and we cannol
assure you that we will have access to such capital on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Even if we enter into these transactions, we may not realize
the benelits we anticipate or we may experience difficulties in inlegrating any acquired companies and products inlo our existing business; attrition ol kev
personnel from acquired businesses, significant charges or expenses; higher costs of integration than we anticipated; or unforeseen operating difficultics
that require significant financial and managerial resources that would otherwise be available for the ongoing development or expansion of our existing
operations.

Our ability to influence the control of our joint ventures may be limited by conlraet or otherwise, In addition, we may not be able to influence the
oceurrenee or iming of distributions rom our joint ventures. ICany of the other investors in one of our joint ventures [ails to observe its commitments. the
joint venture may not be able to operate according to its business plan or we may be required to inerease our level of commitment. The interests of our joint
venture pariners may differ from ours, and they may cause such entities lo take actions which are not in our best interest, IF we are unable to maintain our



relationships with our joinl venture pariners, we could lose our abilily o operate in the geographies and/or markets in which they operate, which could
have a material adverse elfect on our business, inancial condition or resulls of operations.

Consummating these transactions could also result in the incurrence of additional debt and related interest expense, as well as unforeseen
confingent liabilities, all of which could have a matenal adverse elfect on our business, {inancial condifion or results of operations. We may also issue
additional equity in connection with these transactions. which would dilute our existing sharcholders,

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Company owns a 49 (00 square-footl facility in Owings Mills, Maryland, which conlains ils Corporale Headquarters and manulaciuring
plant. In 2003, the Company purchased a state-of-the-art 119,000 square-foot distribution facility in Ridgley, Maryland. In July 2010, the Company
leased a second distribution center in Dallas, TX, Both distnbution facilities allow the Company to distribute over S800 million of Medilast product sales
per yvear. In 2064, the Company purchased a 3,000 square fool conference and training (acility in Ocean City, Maryland. The facility is used to conduct
corporate training meetings, Board of Dircctor Meetings and employee morale and wellness programs.  The Company has thirty-nine leases for its
corporately owned Medilast Weight Control elinies throughout Flornida, Texas, Maryvland and Virginia. In addition, the Company leases two buildings in
Omwings Mills, MID for corporate oftices. The leases range in terms from one to six years.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Medifast, Inc. filed a civil complaint on February 17, 20104in the LS. District Court (S, Cal) against Barry Minkow, his Fraud Discovery
Institute, Inc., its subsidiary iBusiness Reporting, its editor William Lobdell, Tracy Cocnen, her Sequence, Inc., “Zee Yourself”, and Robert .. Fitzpatrick
for defamation, violations of California Corporation Code Sections 25400 et seq, and 17200 et seq alleging a scheme of market manipulation of Medifast,
Ine. stock by damaging the business reputation of Medifast, Inc. (MED-NYSE) and its meal replacement weight loss produets and organization for
Defendants monetary gain, Bradley T. MacDonald, Exccutive Chairman, Medifast, Ine. who is also a large sharcholder joined the lawsuit individually. The
suil secks at least 3270 Million in compensatory damages. punitive damages. and ancillary reliel. Medifast, Inc. also continues to pursue its pending
complaints filed in March, 2009 with the SEC, Maryland Securitics Commissioner, and the U.S. Attorney against most of these same named Defendants.

The Chapter 7 Bankruptey Trustee for Go Fig, Inc et al Debtors filed in early 2010 an adversary eivil proceeding in the US Bankrupley Court
(EI, Missouri) against Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a subsidiary of Medifast, Inc. (MED-NYSE) and other unrelated entitics secking to recover as to each
alleged preferential pavments, Jason sold product received by the Debtors and has previously filed a pending claim in the same bankruptey, Medifast, Inc,
dispules the Trustee’s allegations and intends to vigorously defend through its local counsel. Medifast, Inc believes any likely result would not materially
atfect its operations. This action is currently in the discovery stage.

In 2010 and 1o date, Jason Pharmaceuticals received four (4) Notices of Charge of Discimination alleging diserimination liled with the TS
EEOC by 3 current employees and 1 former emplovee, The Company intends 1o investigate and vigorously defend against these claims. Any potential
adverse resull based on what is presently known would not be malenal to Company operalions.

On March 17, 2011, a class action complaint titled Oren Proter, et al v. Medifast, Ine., et al. (Civil Action 2011-CV-T20[BEL]), alleging
viclations of Sections 10{b) and 20(a) of the Secuntics Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under Section 10(b) of the Secunties Exchange Act,
was filed for an unspecified amount of damages in the United States District Court, District of Maryvland. The complaint alleges that the defendants made
false and/or misleading stalements and failed to disclose material adverse facls regarding the Company’s business, operalions and prospects. On March 24,
2011, a ¢lass action complaint titled Fred Greenberg v Medifast, Ine. et al (Civil Action 201 1-CVT7G{BEL}. alleging violations of Sections 1({b)5 and
20¢a) of the Securitics Exchange Act and Rule 10{b)5 promulgated under Scction 10(b)5 of the Sccuritics Exchange Act, was filed for an unspecified
amount of damages in the United States Distriet Court, District of Marvland. The complaint alleges that the defendants made false and/or misleading
statements and failed to disclose material adverse facts regarding the Company’s business. operations and prospects. The Company belicves that it has
meritorious defenses to each complaint and intends to vigorously defend each proceeding, Accordingly, the Company believes that either proceeding is
not likely to have a material adverse effect upon ils business or operations.

ITEM 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED
Mot applicable



PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The Company's Common Stock is quoted under the symbol MED. The commeon stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The
following is a list of the low and high closing prices by fiscal quarters for 2010 and 20009;

2010
Low High
Quarter Ended March 31, 2010 16.65 3387
Quarter Ended June 30, 2010 25.43 36.78
Quarter Ended September 30, 2010 24.10 32.50
Quarter Ended Decermber 31, 2010 2325 31.29
2009
Low High
Quarter Ended March 31, 2009 409 177
Quarter Ended June 30, 2009 424 11.46
Quarter Ended September 30, 2009 9.89 2231
Quarter Ended December 31, 2009 19.42 3535

There were approximately 171 record holders of the Company's Common Stock as of March 30, 2011, This number does not include beneficial
owners of our securities held in the name of nominees.

Mo dividends on common stock were declared by the Company during 2010 or 2009, The Company has not and does nol plan to declan:
dividends in the foreseeable future.

On June 3, 2004, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 500,000 shares of our common stock. Depending upon market
conditions, shares may be repurchased from time to time at prevailing market prices through open markel or privately negotiated transactions,

We are not obligated to purchase any shares. Subject to applicable securitics laws repurchases may be made at such times and in such amounts,
as our management deems appropriate. The share repurchase program may be discontinued or terminated at any time and we have nol established a date
for completion of the share repurchase program. The repurchases will be funded rom our available cash.  As of December 31, 2010, we had purchased
135,000 shares as treasury stock through the repurchase program noted above,



The following is a summary of our stock purchases during the quarter ended December 31, 2000, as required by Regulation 5-K, Item T03.

Tetal Number of Shares Maximum Number of

Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Numberof  Average Price  Publicly Announced Plans  Purchased Under the Plans
Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share or Programs or Programs
October 1 - October 31, 2010 - $ - - 365,000
November 1 - November 30, 2010 - $ E . 365,000
December 1 - December 31, 2010 - $ - - 365,000

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected condensed consolidated financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management™s [Niscussion and Analysis
ol Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ included as Part I, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and the consolidated Dinancial
statements and notes thereto of the company included in Part I1 Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical results provided below are not
necessanly indicalive ol [ulure results.

2010 2009 (Restated) 2008 (Restated) 2007 (Restated) 2006 (Restated)

(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenue 251,552 169,743 110,078 85,005 74963
Income from Operations 31,640 18,497 1,367 4170 7.381
Income before Income Taxes 31,692 18,424 7018 3008 7,453
EPS - Basic 139 084 033 0.20 036
EPS - Diluted 135 077 030 0.19 034
Total Assets 04,059 62,960 40925 43,087 36,315
Current Portion of long-term debt and revolving credit
facilities 944 196 3.421 1,863 1,804
Total long-term Debt 41855 5444 4313 4510 3,509
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 14,082 13,515 13,126 12,961 12,669
Diluted 14,573 14,736 14,329 13644 13,483

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains lorward-looking statements which may involve known and unknown risks, uncerlainties and other factors that may cause
Medifast, Ine. actual results and performanee in {ulure periods to be materially different from any [ulure resulls or performance suggested by these
statements, These factors include, but are not necessarily limited to those risks set forth in [tem 1A of this form 10-K. Words such as projects, believe,
plan, anticipate and expect and similar expressions are intended to qualily as forward-looking statements, Medifast, Ine. cautions inveslors not lo place
undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only to management's expectations on this date. We undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements even il actual results may diller from projections,



The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial information included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Or consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with ULS. gencrally aceepted accounting principles. Our significant accounting
policies are described in Note 2 ol the consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of these financial stalements requires management lo make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and habilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Management develops. and changes periodically, these cstimates and assumptions based on historical expericnce and on
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions. Management considers the following accounting estimates to be the most critical in preparing our consolidated linancial statements. These
critical accounting cstimates have been discussed with our audit committee,

Eevenue Recognition:  Revenue is recognized nel of discounts, rebates, promotional adjustments. pnice adjustments, and estimated returns and
upon transfer of title and risk 1o the customer which occurs al shipping (F.OB. terms.) Upon shipment, the Company has no further performance
obligations and collection is reasonably assured as the majonity of sales are paid for prior to shipping. Medifast Weight Control Centers program fees are
recognized over the estimated service period.

Impairment of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets: We confinually assess the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. Judgments regarding the existence of impainment indicators are based
on legal factors, market conditions and our operating performance, Fulure events could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and the
carrying values of fixed and intangible assels may be impaired. Any resulting impairment loss would be limited to the value of net fixed and intangible
asscis.

Income Taxes: The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial statements in the peried during which, based on all available evidence,
management believes it is more-likelv-than-not thal the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation
processes, il any. Tax positions laken are nol oflset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-nol recognition
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing
autharity. The portion of the benelits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as deseribed above is reflected as a liability for
unrecognized tax benefils in the accompanying balance sheet along with any associated interest and penaltics that would be payable to the laxing
authorities upon examination.

We evalualed our material tax positions and determined that we did not have any uneerfain fax positions requinng recognition of a liability, Our
policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense. For the twelve months ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, no estimated interest or penalties were recognized for the uncerlainty of eerfain tax positions. We file income tax returns in the United
States and various states jurisdictions. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to U5, federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax
authorities for the vears belore 2007,

Keserves for Returns: We review the reserves for customer returns at each reporting period and adjust them to reflect data available at that time.
To estimate reserves for relums, we consider actual retum rates in preceding periods. To the extent the estimate of relums changes, we will adjust the
reserve, which will impaet the amount of produet sales revenue recognized in the period of the adjustment. Our estimates lor relums have not differed
materially from our actual returns. The provision for estimated returns as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were 3207000 and 570,000, respectively.

Background:

The Company is cngaged in the production, distribution, and sale of weight management and disease management products and other
consumable health and diet products, Medifast, Inc.’s product lines include meal replacements and nulrifional supplements.  Our products and services are
sold 1o weight loss program parficipates primarily via the Internet, wlephone, and brick and mortar elinics.  Customers of our health coaches in the Take
Shape for Life person-to-persen direet sales channel are directed to order our products through either the Internet or through the Company’s in-house call
center. Our meal replacement food items have accounted lor 93% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 and 95% in 2009 and 2008,
Program sales in our Medifast Weight Control Center channel accounted for 2% of revenues in 2010 and 3% in 2009 and 2008, No other product or
serviee has accounted for more than 1% of consolidated revenue in any of the last three years.

Revenue consisls primarily of meal replacement food sales, For the vear ended December 31, 2010, total revenue increased to $257.6
million as compared to $169.7 million in 2009, an increase of S87.8 million or 52%. The Take Shape for Life sales channel accounted for
65% of total revenue, direct response marketing 25%, Medilast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians aceounted for
10% of total revenue.

We review and analyze a number of key operating and financial metrics to manage our business, including revenue to spend in the
Medifast Direct channel, number of active health coaches and average revenue per health coach per month in the Take Shape for Life
channel, and average same store sales improvement for the Medilast Weigh Control Center channel,

In 2010, we continued to see strong growth and improvement in Take Shape for Life Medifast Direct, and Medifast Weight Control
Centers. Take Shape lor Life revenue inereased 62% (o 3167 .4 million compared with $103.5 million in 2009, Growth in revenues lor the
segment were driven by increased customer product sales as a result of an increase in active health coaches acquiring active clients. The



number of active health coaches during 2010 increased to approximately 9.000 compared with 6,000 during the period a vear ago, an
inerease of 50%. The number of active health coaches represents the number of health coaches receiving income from a product sale in the
last month of the quarter. The average revenue per health coach per month decreased from $1,7235 in 2009 to 51,675 in 2010, The decrease
ol 3% is primarily due ta the growth of the number of active health coaches, as when a large percentage of coaches are newly acquired, it
takes time for the coaches (o become productive in acquinng and supporting their elients. As the number of active health coaches increase,
the Company receives additional sales proceeds from product referrals, approximately $1.673 in product referrals per month for the average
coach in 2010,

The Medifast Direct Sales division sales inereased 35% 1o $64.4 million as compared with $47.5 million in 2009, an increase of $16.2 million.
Duwe to a more ellcelive adverlising message, more targeled adverlising through extensive analytical analysis, and improved call center closing rates, the
company experienced a 2.8 to 1 return on advertising spending during 2010 as compared to 2.7 to 1 in 2009,

The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians experienced revenue growth of 38% versus the same time period last
year. Revenue increased due to the opening of twelve new centers throughout 20100 and a 24% increase in the same store sales for Centers open for greater
than one year, and the increased success of [ranchise centers, The Company is conlinuing o focus on improved advertising ellectiveness, improved
closing rates on trends generated through advertising and improved consumer lifetime value through value add service, and the hiring of more expericneed
clinic personnel,

If all of our sales divisions continue to grow, there will be increasing demands on our infrastructure. The increased demands could cause long
hold times in the call center as well as delays on our websile, In addition, there could be delavs in order processing, packaging and shipping. We could
run oul of a majonty of our inventory il produect sales growth exceeded our production capacity. In order to mitigate these risks, a key focus for the
Company in 2011 will be investing in infrastructure to ensure that the Company can support the revenue growth of cach of our sales divisions. This
initiative included a new Distribution Center that opened in July 2010 to belter service our Midwest 1o West Coast customers and increase the maximum
number of orders the Company can ship daily, improved logistics in manufacturing, purchasing and distnbution o support our sales growth, an improved
web platform for all our sales divisions that launched in March 2011, and expansion of an additional call center location to handle additional call volume,
There is also nsk that our Independent contractor field leaders and health coaches could leave the company for a better opportunity which could resull in
decreased revenue from Take Shape for Life channel. This risk is offset by a compensation program that fairly rewards the health coaches for the actions
of supporting their clients 1o their weight loss and health goals, increased revenue per month eamed as these same leader health coaches build their
organization of health coaches because they have proven o be passionate about helping others and combaling the growing obesily epidemic in America at
present.



CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2010 COMPARISON WITH 2009

Overview of the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2009

Revenue $257,552,000 $169,743,000 $87,209,000 52%
Cost of salss 65,083,000 45,355,000 19,728,000 43%
Gross Profit 192,459,000 124,388,000 68,081,000 55%
Selling, general, and administration 160,829,000 105,891,000 54,938,000 52%
Incorae from eperations 31,640,000 18,497,000 13,143,000 N+
Other income/{expense)

Interest incoms (expense), nst 274,000 10,000 264,000

Other incomel(expense) (222,000) (83,000) (139,000)

52,000 (73,000) 125,000 -171%

Income before provision for income taxes 31,692,000 18,424,000 13,268,000 2%
Provision for income tex (expense) (12,081,000} (7,067,000) (5,014,000) N+
Net income $19,611,000 $11,357,000 $2,254,000 3%
¥ of revenne
Gross Profit T4.7% 133%
Selling, general, and administration 62.4% 62.4%
Income from Operations 12.3% 10.9%

Revenue: Revenue increased to 5257.6 million in 2000 compared to 51697 million in 2009, an increase of $87.8 million or 32%. The Take Shape for Life
sales channel accounted for 6G5% of total revenue; Medifast Direet channel accounted for 25%. and Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale
Physicians accounted for 10% of total revenue, Take Shape for Life sales, which are fueled by increased customer produet sales as a result of an increase
in active health coaches increased by 62% compared to 2009, As compared 1o 2009, the Medifast Direct Response sales channel, which is fueled primarily
by consumer advertising, increased revenues by approximalely 35% year-over vear. The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale
Physicians increased sales by 38% due to the opening of new corporate and franchise locations and year over year improvement in same store sales.

Take Shape for Life revenue inereased 62% 1o 5167.4 million compared with $103.5 million in 2009, Growth in revenues for the distribution channel was
driven by increased customer product sales as a resull of an increase in the number of active health coaches acquiring an inereased number of active
clients. The number of active health coaches during the vear increased o approximately 9,000 compared with 6,000 at the end of 2009, an increase ol
50%. In today s environment where trust and personal recommendations are becoming a more important component in consumer purchasing decisions, the
Take Shape for Life model of one-on-one communication conlinues to excel. Take Shape for Life customers who have utilized the Medifast products and
programs and successfully have addressed their body weight and health issues are increasingly choosing to become active health coaches. Becoming a
health coach is a business opportunity that has a low cost of starl-up and requires no holding of inventory as all orders are shipped 1o the end consumer. In
the current economic environment, many people are looking for supplemental income 1o assist in paving bills such as the car paymenl, rent. or morigage.
and becoming a health coach allows for supplemental income in the form of a commission compensation on product sales and supporting the customer
needs by providing education on the program and support 1o customers ordering through Take Shape for Life and most importantly the ability to help
others regain their health through the use of clinically proven Medifast products,

The Medifast Dircet Response Sales division sales increased 35% (o 5644 million as compared with $47.5 million in 2009, an inerease of 516.9 million.
Due to a more effective advertising message, more targeted advertising through extensive analytical analysis, and improved call center closing rates the
company expenienced a 2.8 to | return on advertising spending during 2010 as compared 1o a 2.7 to 1 return in 2000, The Company spent approximalely
£23 million on direet response advertising in 2010, an inerease of 32% [rom 2009,



The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Physicians channel represent approximately 102 of the Company’s overall revenues. Al
the end of 2010, Medifast Weight Control Centers were operaling in thirly-nine corporate locations in Austin, Dallas, Houston, Orlando, Baltimore, and
Washington, [2.C.. and twenty one franchise centers were in operation. [n 2010, the Company expericnced revenue growth of 38% versus the same time
period last vear.  In 2010, same store sales increased by 24% for corporate Cenlers open greater than one vear, In 2010, the Company opened 12 new
corporale Medifast Weight Control Cenfers and 3 new franchise centers. Throughout 2011, the Company anticipates opening an additional 25-30
corporately owned Medifast Weight Control Centers.

Costs of Sales: Cost of sales increased 519.7 million in 2000 to $65.1 million as compared to $45.4 million in 2009, As a percentage of sales, gross
margin increased to 74.7% from 73.3% in 2009, The 140 bps improvemenl in gross margin percentage resulted in a $3.6 million improvement in gross
margin based on 2010 sales volume ol 3257.6 mullion. The gross margin improvement was primanly the resull of decrcased shipping cost as a pereentage
of sales of $1.4 million, economics of scale in ordering raw materials and packaging of $1.4 million, and improved labor and overhead absorption of
£750,00K,

Selling, General and Administrative:  Ovwerall, selling, general and administrative expenses increased by 5549 million as compared to 2009, As a
percentage of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses remained at 62.4% for 2010 and 2009, Take Shape for Life commission expense, which
is completely variable based upon product sales, increased by approximately $27.4 million as the Company showed sales growth of 62% as compared fo
2009, Take Shape for Life health coaches are independent contractors that are paid commissions on produet sales referred to the Company,  Health
coaches eam commissions by referring product sales through their own replicated website or through the Company’s in-house call center. The elients of
health coaches are responsible for order and payment of product and their order is shipped directly to their home or designated address. Health coaches are
not required to purchase product in order to receive a commission. [n addition, health coaches do nol receive a commission on their personal product
orders or non product sales on ools and Iraining materials. Salaries and benelits increased by £12.5 million in 2010 as compared to last year. The increase
includes the hiring of additional experfise in critical arcas such as Take Shape for Life and the Medifast Weight Control Centers. Arcas that also
experienced additional stalfing due to the 52% sales growth in 20010 include manufacturing, distribution, call center, and IT. The opening ol the
Company’s new Dallas, TX distribution center in July of 2010 also led to the hiring of additional personnel in both distribution and the call center. Sales
and marketing expense inereased by 7.8 million in 2010 as compared 1o the prior year, primarily due 1o the 35.6 million increase in Medifast Direct
adverlising. Communication expense increased 3300000 and other expenses increased by £1.9 million which included items such as depreciation,
amortization, credit card processing fecs, charitable contributions, and property taxes. Operating expenses increased $300.000 as compared to 2009,
Office expense increased by $3.7 million and stock compensalion expense increased by $527,000 as additional restricted shares were issued to key
execulives and Board members.

Income taxes: In 2010, the Company recorded $12.1 million in income tax expense, which represents an effective rate ol 38.1%. In 2009, the Company
recorded income tax expense of $7.1 million which rellected an effective lax mate of 38.4%. The Company anticipates a lax rate ol approximately 38-39%
in 2011.

Net income: Met income was approximately $19.6 million in 2010 as compared to approximately $11.4 million in 2009, an increase of 73%. Pre-tax profit
as a percent of sales increased to 12.3% in 2010 as compared to 10.9% in 2009, The improved profitability in 2000 is due to sales growth in the Take
Shape lor Lile division, Medilast Weight Control Centers, and Direet Response sales channels as well as improved advertising effectiveness in the
Medifast Direct sales channel, gross margin improvement as well as leveraging the fixed costs associated with our vertically-integrated support structure.

Management Discussion on Restatement of the yvears ended December 31, 2008 and 2000

We are restaling our linancial statements for the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 and beginming retained earnings as of January 1, 2008
principally due to errors in recording certain ordinary course of business expenses in the proper peried. Cerlain costs and expenses afTecting selling,
general and administrative expenses and cost of sales, to include shipping expenses and certain web advertising expenses, which due to growth and
evolution in the business model were consistently expensed in the following month afler services were rendered, rather than being accrued in the proper
peried.  The company has consistently recorded twelve months of expenses in each year, In addition to the iming of expenses, there was a wrile ofl
related to an intangible asset. Also, in the Medifast Weight Control Centers. the Company had been recording program fees on a cash basis for customers
who paid up front. The differeénce has been delerred and properly recorded over the applicable service period, and for fiscal vear 2010 has been properly
recorded, so there is no material impaet for the vear ended December 31, 2010, With the Company s accelerated growth rate over the last few years (44%
CAGR in sales since December 31, 2007) the one month lag in expenses on a cumulative basis was deemed material per Stafl Accounting Bulletin No. 108
and requires restalement Lo the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009,

In the course of our 2010 annual audit by our independent registered public accounting firm MeGladrey & Pullen. LLP (MeGladrey ), MeGladrey
requested in March 2011 that we re-evaluate whether our historical and then current practices with the respect to the timing for recognition of certain
expenses were appropriate under generally accepied accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP™). In addition, during the course of their audit
MeGladrey identified several other adjustments pertaining to the prior vears. This required the company to request an automatic extension Lor liling our
10-K to allow adequale investigative lime for the reevaluation and to allow our current vear auditor to meet, discuss and review work papers with our
predecessor auditors who then concurred with the conclusory recommendation to restate for prior vears made ollowing their joint review.

The Company’s Management upon being advised by its Independent Auditor of the issue, as part of its Sarbanes Oxley policy regarding internal controls
over financial reporting, immediately reporied this issue fo the Audit Commitiee which promptly requested management fo conduct a detailed review.

Management performed a detailed review of expense recognition of certain ordinary course of business expenses for the years 2008 and 2009, As a result,
we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. Historically, our accounts payable and acerued expense accounls were



evaluated on a quarterly and annual basis based upon whether the corresponding expenses were [airly stated (e.g, by analyzing whether our operating
results ineluded twelve months of expenses lor the yearly periods or three months of expenses [or the quarterly penods) which they did. However, our
procedures did not include a detailed review of ending liability balances for these specific costs and expenses, which resulted in certain cxpenses being
recorded when they were paid rather than incurred. In addition, during the course of their audit, MeGladrey identilied several other adjustments pertaining
1o the prior vears which have also been ineluded in the restatement. Our predecessor auditor concurred with management's assessment and has audited the
restatement adjusiments.

The Compensation Committec has set specific eriteria for Bonus Performance for key executive officers based on the performance goals of the Medifast
Board Approved Forecast which has been a minimum inerease in revenues and profits of 15 to 20% vear over vear reflective of a growih company. The
Company has stated that il there are any accounting adjusimenis that resull in revenues or profils to fall below the specific criteria for Bonus Performance,
the Company will do a clawback of compensation in accordance with the Plan. The Company has conducted a review of the criteria for the Exccutive
Officer Bonus Performance for the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 and determined that the executive bonus performance plan was met and
exceeded with the restated results reconeiled with the Bonus Performance Plan for the vears in question.

SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(Restated) (Restated)
2010 _wy o
Segments Seles vk of Total Sales Y of Total Seles ___ Yaof Tofal
Medifust 229,879,000 89% 152,077,000 90% 99,043,000 90%
MWCC and Wholesale 27,673,000 11% _ 17,666,000 10% _ 11,023000 10%
Total Sales 257552000  100% 169,743,000 100% ~ 110,076,000 100%

2010 vs, 2009

Medifast Segment: The Medifast segment consists of the sales of Medilast Direet Marketing and Take Shape lor Life. As this represents the
majority of our business this is referenced to the “Consolidated Results of Operations™ management discussion for 20010 vs, 2009 above.

MWCC and Wholesale Segment: The MWCC and Whelesale segment consists of the sales of Medifast Corporate and Franchise Weight Control
Centers as well as Medifast Wholesale Physicians,  Sales increased by $9.9 million, or 36% vear-over yvear due to the opening of twelve new corporately-
owned centers throughout 2010 and a 24% inerease in the same store sales for Centers open for greater than one vear. The Company is continuing to focus
on improved advertising effectiveness, improved on trends generated through advertising and improved consumer lifetime value through value and serviee,
developing a new operaling system to enhance the cusiomer experience and slore operations as well as the hiring of more experienced clinic personnel. At
the end of 2010, there were thifty-nine corporately owned centers opened as compared 1o twenty seven centers al the end of 2009, The company had
twenty-one franchise centers in operation as of December 31, 2000, In 2011, the Company plans on opening an additional 25-30 corporately owned
Medifast Weight Control Cenlers.

2008 vs, 2008

Medifast Segment: The Medifast segment consists of the sales ol Medifast Direet. Take Shape for Life, and Doctors. As this represents the
majority of our business this is referenced to the “Consolidated Results of Operations™ management discussion for 2009 vs, 2008 above.

MWCC and Wholesale Segment: The MWCC and Wholesale segment consists of the sales of Meditast Corporate and Franchise Weight Control
Cenlers as well as Meditast Wholesale Physicians, Sales increased by $6.6 million, or 60% year-over- vear due to the opening of seven new cenlers
throughout 2009, a 207 increase in the same store sales for Centers open for greater than one vear, and the launch of the franchise opportunity in 2008,
The Company is continuing to focus on improved advertising cffectivencss, improved on trends generated through advertising and improved consumer
lifetime value through value and service, as well as the hinng of more experienced clinic personnel. Al the end of 2009, there were twenty seven
corporately owned centers opened as compared fo twenty centers at the end of 2008, The company has cighteen franchise centers in operation,



Net Profitby Segment as of December 31,

(Restated) (Restated)
2010 2009 2008
Segments Profit % of Total Profit % of Total Profit % of Total
Medifast 30,775,000 oTY 18,288,000 09% 8,110,000 116%
MWCC and Wholesale 6,762,000 3,945,000 1,943,000
All Other (5,843,000) -18% (3,813,000) -21% (3,035,000} -43%
HNet Profit 31 T9% 18,424,000 19% 7,018 72%

2010 vs. 2009

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment consists of the profits of Medifast Direct Marketing and Take Shape lor Lile. As this
represents the majority of our business this is referenced fo the “Consolidated Results of Operations™ management discussion for 2010 vs. 2009 above.

See [ooinole 16, “Business Segments” for a defailed breakout of expenses.

MWOCC and Wholesale Segment: This segment improved nel profitability vear-over-yvear by 828 million.  The increase in profitability was due
1o of twelve new corporately-owned centers throughout 2010 and a 24% inerease in the same store sales for Centers open for greater than ong year. The
Company is confinuing to focus on improved advertising cffectivencss, improved on trends generated through advertising and improved consumer lifetime
value through value and service, developing a new operating system o enhance the customer experience and store operations as well as the hiring of more
experienced clinic personnel. Sce footnote 16, “Business Segments”™ for a detailed breakout of expenses.

All Other Segment:  The All other segmenl consists ol corporate expenses related 1o the parenl company operations. Year-over-year, parenl
company expenscs increased by 52 million. Corporate expenscs include items such as auditors’ fees, attormey’s fees, stock compensation expense and
corporale governance related to NYSE, Sarbanes Oxley, and SEC regulations. See foolnote 16, “Business Segments” for a detailed breakout of expenses,

2009 vs, 2008

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment consists of the profits of Medifast Direct Marketing and Take Shape for Life. As this
represents the majority of our business this is referenced 1o the “Consolidated Resulls of Operations”™ management discussion for 2000 vs, 2009 above.

See footnote 16, “Business Segments” for a detailed breakout of expenses.
MWCC and Wholesale Segment: MWOCC and Wholesale Segment: This segment improved net profitability year-over-year by 532 million. The
increase in profitability was due to opening of len new corporately owned centers in 2008, seven new cenlers in 2009, and opening additional franchisee

centers throughout 2009, The increase in the total number of corporate elinics to twently seven, cighteen operating franchise centers, and improvements in
same store sales vear-over-vear led to additional sales and profitability. Sec footmote 16, “Business Scgments”™ for a detailed breakout of expenses.

The All Other segment: The All other segment consisls of corporate expenses related to the parent company operations. Year-over-year, parent
company expenses increascd by 8778000, Corporate expenses include items such as auditors’ fees, attorney’s fees, stock compensation expense and
corporale governance related 1o NYSE, Sarbanes Oxley, and SEC regulations. See foolnote 16, “Business Segments” for a detailed breakout of expenses,

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

As of December 31, 2010, our principal commitments consisted of obligations for vaniable and fixed rate loans detailed in Mote 12 of the financial
statemenis, operating leases for corporately owned Medifast Weight Control Centers detailed in Note 9 of the financial statements, and copier equipment
confracts [or our pnnting operation that support our marketing elTorts.
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The Company has the following contractual obligations as of December 31, 2010

2 012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter
Contractual Obligations
Total Debt 944,000 912,000 656,000 257,000 257,000 2,773,000
Opemting Leases 1,923,000 2,010,000 1,592,000 1,313,000 970,000 758,000
Copier Equipment Service Contracts 937,000 880,000 771,000 771,000 771,000 2,000

Total contractual obligatinne 3,204,000 3,802,000 3,015,000 2,341,000 1998000 3,533,000

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company had stockholders” equity of $72.0 million and working capital of 344.7 million on December 31, 2010 compared with $47.8
million and $27.1 million at December 31, 2009 respectively. The $24.2 million nel increase in stockholder’s equity reflects $19.6 million in 2010 profits
as well as equity Iransactions as oullined in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders” Equity and accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss).” The Company’s cash and cash cquivalents position increased from 51006 million at December 31, 2009 to $17.2 million at December 31,
2010, The $6.6 million increase was due mainly to the increased profits of $19.6 million and an increase in payables and acerued expenses of $7.3 million.
These were oflset by an 583 million inerease in inventory and an inerease in capital spending.

The Company currently has no ofl-balance sheel arrangements.

In the yvear ended December 31, 2010 the Company generated cash flow of 528.8 from operations, primarily attributable to higher operating
income, Met changes in operating assets and liabilities increased cash Now by $623,000. Sources of cash include a decrease in prepaid expenses of §1.6
million, a decrease of other assets of $138,000, and an increase in payables and accrued expenses of $7.3 million. This was offset by a total use of 38.0
million which includes an increase in inventory of $8,302,000 and an increase in prepaid income laxes of $340,000.

In the vear ended December 31, 2010, net cash used in investing activities was $23.5 million, which was primarily duc to an increase in
investment activity and the purchase of property and equipment. The increase in property and equipment relates io the building of a large amount of
infrastructure in 2010 to support growth, This included the opening of twelve new Medifast Weight Control Center locations, development of an operating
system for the Medifast Weight Control Centers, continued development of a new web shopping platform the Direct Response Marketing and Take Shape
for Life Channel thal launched successfully in March 2011, ERP system enhancements, [T infrastructure lo support new systems, and leasehold
improvements lo manulfaciunng and distribution facilities to support fulure growth.

In the yvear ended December 31, 2010, financing activities generated $£1.333.000 in cash fow. Sources of cash included an inerease in long term
debt of $393,000, a decrease in notes receivable of $3,000, an issuance of common stock. options and warrants of $34,000, and execess tax benefit from
share based payment arrangements of $1, 770,000, This was offsel by a use of cash in the repavment of long term debl of $834,000 and the purchase of
treasury stock for 335,000,

In pursuing its business sirategy, the Company may require additional cash for operating and invesling activities. The Company expects lulure
cash requirements, if any, (o be funded from operating eash Dow and ¢ash low (rom financing activities.

There are no current plans or discussions in process relating to any malerial acquisition that is probable in the foreseeable future.



2001 COMPARISON WITH 2008
Overview of the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2000 Com pared to Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2008

2009 2008 § Change % Change

Revenue $169,743,000 $110,076,000 $59,667,000 54%
Cost of sales 45,355,000 30,986,000 14,369,000 46%
Gross Profit 124,388,000 79,090,000 45,298,000 57%
Selling, general, and administmation 105,891,000 71,723,000 34,168,000 43%,
Income from operations 18,457,000 7,367,000 11,130,000 151%
Other income/expense)

Interest income (expense), net 10,000 (217,000} 227,000

Other incomeN(expense) (83,000) (132,000) 49,000

(73,000) (349,000} 276,000 -T9%

Income before provision for income taxes 18,424,000 7,018,000 11,406,000 163%
Provision for income tax (expense) (7,067,000} {2,707,000) {4,360,000) 161%
Net income $11,357,000 $4.311,000 $7,046,000 163%
% of revenns
Gross Profit T3.3% T19%
Selling, general, and administration 62.4% 65.2%

Income from Operations 10.9% 6.7%
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OPERATING
Sales

Revenue inereased 1o $169.7 million in 2009 as compared to $110.1 millien in 2008, an increase of $59.7 million or 54%. The Take Shape for
Lile sales channel accounted for 61% of wotal revenue, Medifast Direet Response Channel 28%, and Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale
Physicians accounted for 11% of total revenue. Take Shape for Life sales, which are fueled by person-to-person direct selling and suceessful health
coaches building their networks and supporting inereased sales by $51.8 million or 100% year-over-vear.  The Company™s Medifast Weight Control
Center and Medifast Wholesale Physicians channel, increased sales 578 million or 93% compared to 2008. Same store sales increased by 20% for Centers
open greater than one year.  The Medifast Direet sales channel, which is fueled primarily by consumer advertising, increased revenues $3 million or 7%
year-over year on 400,000 less advertising spend.

Take Shape for Life revenue increased 100% to $103.5 million compared with $51.7 million in 2008.  Growth in revenues for the segment was
driven by inercased customer product sales as a result of an increase in active health coaches acquiring active clienfs.  The number of active health coaches
during 2009 increased to approximately 6,000 compared with 3,400 during the peried a year ago, an increase of 76%. The number of active health coaches
represents the number of health coaches receiving income from a product sale in the last month of the quarter In addition, the average revenue per health
coach per month increased from 51,510 in 2008 to $1.725 in 2009, an increase of 14%. As the number of active health coaches inerease, the Company
receives additional sales proceeds from product referrals, approximately $1.725 in product referrals per month for the average coach in 2004, We continue
1o see the benefits of a physician-lead network of coaches that are able o support their clients in their weight-loss efforts.  In today’s environment where
trust and personal recommendations are becoming a more important component in consumer purchasing decisions, the Take Shape for Life model of health
coaches helping others to lose weight as a result of one-on-one communication and supporl continues ils rapid growth, Take Shape lor Lile customers who
have wtilized the Medifast products and programs and suceessfully have addressed their body weight and health 1ssues are increasingly choosing (o become
active health coaches.  Becoming a health coach is a business opportunity that has a low start up cost, does not require the holding of inventory as all
orders are shipped from the company to the end consumer.  In the current economic environment, many people are looking for supplemental income io
assist in paying the car payment or mortgage, and becoming a health coach allows for supplemental income in the form of commission compensation on
product sales. In addition the health coach supports customer needs by providing education on the program and assisting customers in selecting the right
products and programs using clinically proven Medifast preducts and protocols. Take Shape for Life has assisted thousands of overweight and obese
customers regain their health and wellbeing while ereating a national bionctwork of activist health coaches who are combating the epidemic of obesity in
America,

The Medifast Weight Control Centers and Medifast Wholesale Phvsicians represent approximately 11% of the Company’s overall revenues. At
the end of 2009, Medifast Weight Contral Cenlers were operaling in twenly seven corporate locations in Flonda, Maryland, and Texas, and eighteen
franchise locations. In 2009, the Company experienced revenue growth of 60% in this segment.

The Medifast Direct channel sales increased 3% to $47.5 million as compared with $46.2 million in 2008, an increase ol 31.3 million. Due to a
more cffective advertising message, more targeted advertising through extensive analytical analysis. and improved call center closing rates the company
experienced a 2.7 1o 1 relurn on advertising spend during 2009 as compared 10 2.5 1o 1 in 2008, This resulted in $800.000 less advertising spend driving an
additional $1.3 million in sales as compared to prior vear. This improvement in advertising ellectiveness was a key prolitabilily driver in 2009,

Cont of Geods Sold

Cost of revenue increased 514.4 million to $45.4 million in 2009 from 531 million in 2008, As a percentage of sales. cost of goods sold
decreased from 28.1% in 2008 1o 26.7% in 2009, The 140 bps improvement in gross margin percentage resulted in a 1.5 million improvement in gross
margin based on 2009 sales volume ol 3110.1 million. The gross margin improvement was primanly the result of decreased shipping cost as a percentage
of sales of 1.6 million. improved labor and overhead absorption of $600,000. This was offsct by the annual standard cost update which reduced the cost
ol finished goods due to reduced raw material and packaging costs, and negatively impacted gross margin by S677.000.

[/ irigr IS 5

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by 34,0 million or 48% to 51059 million in 2009 compared to $71.7 million in 2008,
Az a percentage of sales, selling, general and administrative expense decreased to 62.4% in 2009 from 63.2% in 2008, Take Shape for Life commizsion
expense, which is completely variable based upon revenue, increased by 522.4 million as the Company showed sales growth of 100% as compared (o
20008, Take Shape for Life health coaches are independent contractors that are paid commissions on product sales referred to the Company.  Health
coaches eam commissions by referring produet sales through their own replicated website or through the Company’s in-house call center. The clients of
health coaches are responsible for order and payment of product and their order is shipped directly to their home or designated address. Health coaches are
notl required o purchase product in order lo receive a commission. In addition, health coaches do nol receive a commission on their personal product
orders. Salarics and benefits increased by approximately 535 million in 2009, The increase includes the hiring of additional expertise in critical arcas such
as Take Shape for Lile and the Medifast Weight Control Centers to support the strong growth in 2009 and bevond. In addition, the opening of seven new
corporalely owned clinics also required the hiring of additional center managers and support staflT. Areas that also experienced additional stalling due (o
the 54% sales growth in 2000 include manufacturing. distribution, call center. and IT. Advertising expense in 2009 was approximately $17.4 million
compared to approximately $18.2 million for the same period last vear, a decrease of S800,000. Communication expense increased by S300,000. Ofice
expenses inereased by 1.3 million and stock compensation expense increased by 51.3 million as additional restricted shares were issued to key excoulives
and Board members in the third and fourth quarters of 2008, Opcrating expenses increased by $1.9 million which primarily resulted from additional
printing expense for our direet o consumer posteard mailings, printed materials in¢luded in cach product shipment, as well as maintenance, repairs, and



supplies for our manufaciuring and distribution facilities. Other operating expenses increased by 52,6 million which included items such as depreciation,
amortization, eredit card processing lees, chantable contributions, and property taxes.

ther Income/Expense

Other income’expense decreased from a 5349000 in 2008 to 373,000 at December 31, 2009, The main driver of the decrease was a reduction in
interest expense of $0.2 million.

Income faxes
In 2009, the Company recorded $7.1 million in income tax expense, which represents an annual effective rate of 38.4%.  For 2008, we recorded
income tax expense of $2.7 million which reflected an estimated annual effective tax rale of 38.6%

Met income was 311.4 million in 2009 as compared to 34.3 million in 2008, an increase of 163%.  The improved profitability in 2009 is due 1o
sales growth in the Take Shape for Life division, Medifast Weight Control Centers, and Medifast Direct sales channel as well as improved advertising
effectiveness in the Medifast Direct sales channel, gross margin improvement as well as leveraging the lixed costs associated with our vertically-integrated
support structure.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company had steckholders’ equity of $47.8 million and working capital of $27.1 million on December 31, 2009 compared with §34.1
million and $11.3 million at December 31, 2008, respectively. The $13 million net increase in stockholder’s equity reflects $11.4 million in 2009 profits as
well as equity transactions as oullined in the “Consalidated Statement of Changes in Stockhalders” Equity and accumulated other comprehensive income
{loss).” The Company’s ¢ash and cash equivalents position increased from $1.0 million at December 31, 2008 to 510.6 million at December 31, 2009, The
$9.6 million increase was mainly due to the increased profits of $11.4 million as well as a $2.6 million decrease in inventory. and a reduction in capital
spending. These were ofTset by a 3.2 million decrease in our line of eredit,

The Company currently has no off-balance shect arrangements,

In the year ended December 31, 2000 the Company generated cash flow of 519,155,000 from operations, primarily attributable to higher
operating income. Nel changes in operating assets and liabilities increased cash flow by $660,000. The total use of cash from operations was $2.7 million,
Uses of eash inelude an increase in prepaid expenses of $1.066,000, an increase in accounts receivable of $228.000, a change in income laxes of
$1,562,000, and an increase in other assets of $162,000. This was offset by sources of cash during 2009 from a decrease in inventory by 52.6 million and
an inerease in accounts pavable and accrued expenses of $705,000. Inventory decreased due o inereased inventory tums and a reduction of our davs on
hand.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, net cash used in investing activities was 38,616,000, which primarily consisted of the purchase of property
and equipment. The ingrease in property and equipment relates to the building of a large amount of infrastructure in 2009 o support growth. This
included the opening of seven new Medifast Weight Contral Center locations, development of a point-ol-sale svstem lor the Medifast Weight Control
Centers, continued development of a new web shopping platform for the Medifast Direet channel, new sollware system for our Take Shape lor Life
division, ERP enhancements, [T infrastructure to support new systems, phone system upgrades, and leaschold improvements to manufacturing and
distribution facilities 1o support future growth,

In the year ended December 31, 2009, financing activitics used 5908000 in cash. Sources of cash included proceeds from long term debt of 52.6
million, a decrease in notes receivable of $170.000, issuance of common stock, options and warrants for $214.000, and a fair value adjustment for slock
compensation tax benelit for 8303,000. This was oflsel by a use of cash in the repayment of the line of credit for $3.2 million, payment of long term debt
for 8930,000, and the purchase of treasury stock of $102.000,

In pursuing ils business strategy, the Company may require additional cash for operating and investing activitics. The Company expects fulure
cash requirements, iFany, to be funded from operating cash Now and cash Now from financing activities.

There are no current plans or discussions in process relating to any material acquisition that is probable in the foreseeable future.

SEASONALITY

The Company's weigh!t managemenl products and programs have histoneally been subject to scasonality. Traditionally the holiday season in
November/December of each vear is considered poor lor diet control products and services, January and February generally show increases in sales, as these
months are considered the commencement of the “diet season.™

INFLATION

To date, inflation has not had a material effect on the Company’s business,
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ITEM TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates and a decline in the stock market. The
Company does not enfer inte denivatives, loreign exchange transactions or other inancial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The Company has
limited exposure to market risks related to changes in interest rates, The principal risks of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices to which
the Company and its subsidianes are exposed relate 1o interest rates on debi. Since nearly all of our debiis variable rale based, any changes in market interest
rates will cause an equal change in our net interest expense, At December 31, 2000, there was 56 million of variable interest loans outstanding which is subject
lo interest rate risk. Interest rales on our variable rate loans ranged from 1.5% to 2.5% for the vear ended December 31, 2010 Each 100 basis point increase in
the bank’s LIBOR rates relative to these borrowings would impact interest expense by S58.000 over a 12-month period.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
The information required by this item is sel Torth on pages 54 to 84 hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 9, CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES.

There were no disagreements with the Company’s independent auditors, regarding accounting and financial disclosures for the fiseal vear ending
December 31, 2000,

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢), we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management,
in¢luding our Chiel Executive Oflicer and Chief Finanecial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure ¢ontrols and procedures as required by Exchange
Act Rule 13a-15(b} as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Acl Rules 13a-15(0) and 15-d-15()) described below, our Chiel’ Execulive Officer and Chiel Financial Officer concluded that our
diselosure controls and procedures were not eflective as of December 31, 2010,

Management’s Report on Internal Contrel over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequale internal control over financial reporting for the Company. Internal
confrol over linancial reporting is a process o provide reasonable assuranee regarding the reliability of our financial reporting for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America, Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining
records thal in reasonable delail accurately and fairdy reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that lransactions are recorded as necessary
for preparation of our linancial statements: providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of company assels are made in aceordance with
management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of company assets that could have a
material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timely basis, Because of its inherent limilations, internal conirol over
financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the elTectiveness of our intemal confrol over linancial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our
management concluded that the Company s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2000, due to the existence of
malerial weaknesses, as desenbed below.

As a resull of the Company’s rapid growth, there has been a strain on inlemal resources lo effectively monitor the financial close process. This
resulted in the selection. application and implementation of incorrect accounting pelicies and internal control procedures pnmanly relating to cut-off of
liabilities at period end, revenue recognition relating to Medifast Weight Control Centers and annual impairment assessments.  [n the course of McGladrey
& Pullen, LLP"s independent audit, they requested in March 2011 that we re-evaluate whether our historical and then current practices with the respeel o
the timing for recognition of certain expenses were appropriate under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP™).
Historically, our accounts pavable and accrued expense accounts were evaluated on a quarterly and annual basis based upon whether the corresponding
expenses were [airly stated (e.g. by analyzing whether our operating results included twelve months of expenses for the yearly periods or three months of
expenses for the quarierly periods). However, our procedures did not include a detailed review of ending liability balances for these specilic costs and
expenses, which resulted in certain expenses being recorded when they were paid rather than ineurred. In addition to this re-evaluation, other adjustments
were identified relating to revenue recognition relating to Medifast Weight Control Centers and impairment of intangible assets. As a result, we identified
a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting.

As a consequence of that determination, management re-examined year-end liability amounts for fiscal 2008 and 2009 along with revenue
recognition relating to Medifast Weight Control Centers and impaimment of intangible assets and coneluded that this matenial weakness resulled ina
cumulative material misstatements per Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 to these previously reported annual financial statements. Accordingly, we
restated in this Annual Report on Form 10-K the financial results for liscal vears ended December 31, 2008, and 2008 filed on Form 10-K to adjust for the
misstatements caused by this material weakness, In March 2011, management implemented procedures 1o enhance our review of the linancial close
process, including the implementation of additional policies and procedures to ensure expenses are recorded during the period in which they are incurred.
The Company™s Internal Audit function will also review the effectiveness of these new policies and procedures surrounding the accounis payable and



accrued process on a quarkerly basis lo verify expenses are recorded in the proper period.  [n addition, the Company is searching for additional experienced
personnel to add technical resources to the accounting department. We have discussed this action with our Audit Committee and believe that such
enhanced policies and procedures and increased experienced personnel will prospectively mitigate this material weakness.

Management has determined that their remediation eflorts of prior year's matenal weakness surrounding the income lax process, as disclosed in
the 2009 Form 10-K, have not been in place for a sufficient period of time to demonstrate that their effectivencss is sustainable. Management concludes
that & material weakness still exists in the preparation and review process [or the calculation of the tax provision due to the complexities of accounting lor
income taxes and applying tax law to our tax positions and the lack of intemal tax expertise.  We are in the process of remediating these deficiencies by
enhancing the quality of our internal tax resources and external tax consultants and increasing the involvement of the consultant on a routing basis lo
evaluale tax posilions, exposure arcas and quarterly lax provisions along with assisting in [urther assessing and documenting the recognilion and
measurement principles surrounding uncertain tax positions.

The ellectiveness of the Company s intermal control over linancial reporling as of December 31, 2010, was audited by MeGladrey & Pullen,
LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing below,

Changes in our Internal Control

There were changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(0) or 15d-15(0) under
the Exchange Act) during the last fiscal quarter to which this report relates that have materially affected. or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company™s internal control over financial reporting. We identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting and have deseribed
the changes to our internal controls over linancial reporting designed to remediate this material weakness. Additionally, as a consequence ol that
determination, we have implemented a procedure designed to detect or prevent this error from oceurring in the future. In March 2011, management
implemented procedures 1o enhance our review of the linancial close process, ineluding the implementing additional policies and procedures 1o ensure
expenses are recorded during the period in which they are incurred. The Company's Internal Audit funetion will also review the effectiveness of the
policies and procedure surrounding the accounts pavable and acerued process on a quarterly basis to verify expenses are recorded in the proper period. In
addition, the Company is searching for additional expenenced personnel to add technical resources to the aceounting department along with increasing the
envolvement of external tax consultants on a routine basis to evaluate tax positions, exposure areas and quarterly tax matters.  Management believes that
such enhanced remediation efforts will prospectively miligale these malerial weaknesses.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our CEOQ and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal controls will prevent or detect all
errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide anly reasonable, not absolule, assuranee that the control
system’s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must retlect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benelits of controls
must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control svstems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instanees of fraud. i any, within Medifast, Inc. have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making ean be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake, Controls can also be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any sysiem of controls is
based in part upon certain assumplions aboul the likelihood of [uture events, and there can be no assurance that any design will sueceed in achieving its
stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the
degree of compliance with associated policies or procedures, Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to
error or fraud mav oceur and not be detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of
Medifast, Inc.

We have audited Medifast, Inc.’s (the “Company™) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in
Internal Contral—Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Company s
management 15 responsible for maintaining effective internal control over linancial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal contral
over financial reporting included in the accompanying “Management 's Repart on fnternal Conttrol Over Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the company’s internal control over linancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in aecordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit 1o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether elfeclive internal control over linancial reporling was maintained in all
material respeets. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, asscssing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evalualing the design and operating elfectiveness of infernal control based on the assessed nisk. Our audit also included performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (@) pertain o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, aceurately and iy
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; () provide reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary (o permil
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;, and {¢) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely defection of unauthonized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, Also. projections of any evaluation of
elfectiveness to future periods are subject to the nisk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorale,

A malterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following
malerial weaknesses have been identilied and included in management's assessment.

The Company did not maintain sulficient in-house personnel resources with the technical accounting knowledge, expertise and training in the selection,
application and implementation of GAAP. The lack of infernal resources due to the Company’s rapid growth resulted in insulficient monitoring over the
financial statement close and restatements of prior years’ financial statements, primarily attributed to (a) inadequate cut-oft procedures for recording
liabilities al period end, (b) improper revenue recognition relating to the Medifast Weight Control Centers program revenues, and (¢} inadequate testing
and assessment for impairment of intangible assets

In addition, il was determined thal the remediation eflorts of the Company®s material weakness identified in 2009 surrounding the aceounting for income
tax process have not been in place for a sufficient period of time to demonstrate that their effectivencss is sustainable.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2010 financial
statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 31, 2010 on those financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses deseribed above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company
has nol maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Commitlee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the linancial statements as of
and lor the year ended December 31, 20010 of the Company and our report dated March 31, 2011 expressed an ungualified opinion,

s/ MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 31, 2011



PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Medifast, Ine. has recruited a Board of Direclors who reflect the values and ethics ol our company and who can contribute 1o building long lerm
sharcholder value. All Medifast Directors are persons of integrily, business accomplishment, and diverse  backgrounds able and willing to collaboratively
work together and provide their business expericnce and insight to guide and oversee the strategic direction of the company. In addition, they provide
valuable input into the operational plans of the company o insure that it successfully execules ils business plan and maintains the core values which
protects ils customers, employees and sharcholders. The selection of the Company’s direetors 15 driven by the mneeds ol the business and the specific
oversight skills needed to support the business objectives of Medifast,

The individual talents of the Directors chosen allow them to closely study the aspeets of Company operations and business model aligned with
their area of experlise to identily areas of potential risk to the Company. Then on Committees they collectively draw on their exlensive execulive and
business experience fo determine if any risk is material to the Company. Then. as a Board, they determine what should be done to deal with the risk so it is
not material to the Company.

Directors have been selected from many community organizations and networks in which the company and or ils executives participate. Medifast
is privileged to have qualified dircetors who were selected because of their business acumen, experience and their academic accomplishments. In addition,
some of our Directors have a record of public service in the US Military, Government Serviee or with a Non Profit Organization, Medifast seeks 1o
maintain a Board that refleets the diverse demographies of our customers and employees and our nation. Medifast is forfunate to have such distinguished
Directors who have made significant contibutions to our community and nation lo include a Congressional Medal of Honor recipient, an Augustinian Friar
who oversaw a major university, college, and two high schools and a seasoned technology and marketing executive who was one of the participants in the
turnaround of the Xerox Corporation .

Medifast has selected ten Independent Dircctors, one outside Director and three Management Directors. Most of them have guided the company
through 45 quarers of conseculive profitability and we expect will confinue 10 oversee our operations and linancial results with the same diligence
exercised over the past 10 vears.

The Board of Directors currently consists of 14 persons, The directors, their ages, basis [or their selection, and the vear in which they first
became director are provided in the table below:

Name and Expericnce Director Since

Harvey C. “Barney™ Barnum, Jr., age 70, was swom in and currently serves as the Deputy Assistant Sceretary of 2009
the Mavy lor Reserve Allairs on July 23, 2001, In this capacity he was responsible for all matters regarding the Navy
and Marine Corps Reserve including manpower, equipment, poliey and budgeting. On Jan. 20, 2009, Barnum was
designated Acting Assistant Secretary of the Navy (Manpower and Reserve Aftairs). Mr. Barnum was the fourth
Marine to be awarded the nation’s highest honor, the Medal of Honor for valor in Vietnam. He retired from the
Marnne Corps as a Colonel in August 1989 afler 27 and one-hall yvears of service.  Barnum served multiple tours as
an artilleryman with both the 3rd and 2nd Marine Divisions lo include two tours in Vietnam; 2nd Marine Aircrali
Wing: guard oflicer al Marine Barracks, Pearl Harbor, and operations oflicer. Hawaiian Armed Forces Police:
weapons instructor at the Officer Basic School; four yvears at Marine Corps Recruit Depot, Parris Island, as
commanding oflicer, Headquarters Company and the 2nd Recruit Training Battalion of the Training Regiment; Chiel’
of Currend Operations. US Central Command where he planned and executed the first U5,/ Jordanian joint exercise
staff as the commander of U.S. Forces and twice planned and exccuted Operation Bright Star spread over four
southwest Asian countries involving 26,000 personnel, Headquarters Marine Corps tours included: aide to the
assistant commandant as a caplain and deputy director Public Alfairs, Director Special Projects Directorate and
Military Secretary to the Commandant as a colonel. Upon retirement in 1989, Barmum served as the principal director,
Drug Enforcement Poliey, Oflice of the Secretary of Defense. Bamum's personal medals and decorations iclude: the
Medal of Honor, Defense Superior Service Medal, Legion of Mernt, the Bronze Star Medal with Combat “V™ and
gold star in licu of a second award: Purple Hearl, Meritorious Serviee Medal: Navy Commendation Medal: Navy
Achievement Medal with Combat “V*, Combat Action Ribbon, Presidential Unit Citation; Army Presidential Unit
Citation; Joint Meritorious Unit Award; Navy Unit Citation: twe awards of the Mentorious Unit Citation: the
Vietnamese Cross of Gallantry (silver) and the Department of the Mavy Distinguished Public Service Award. Bamum
has attended The Basic School, U8, Army Field Artillery School, Amphibious Warfare School, U.S. Army
Command and General Stall College and the U.S. Naval War College. He is the past president of the Congressional
Medal of Honor Society, Connecticut Man of the Year "67, presented Honorary Legum Doctorem St Anselm College;
Rotary Paul Harns Fellow; Abe Pollin Leadership Award 03, Marine Corps League “lron Mike” Award and Order of
the Carabao Distinguished Service Award.

Harvey C. “Barney™ Barmum was first selected o be a Director in 2009 because of his extensive distinguished



government service al the Depariment of the Navy Executive level and his distinguished military career which
ineludes the Medal of Honor Award for bravery in Vietnam. Mr. Barmnum will bring expertise (o the Board in the arca
of Public Policy initiatives as it relates to his knowledge of the Execcutive and Legislative Branch of the US
Government and his oversight of our Govemmenlal Relations and Policy initiatives on Obesity related to Medifast
products, protocoels and clinical studies.

Barry B. Bondroff, CPA, age G2, is an oflicer and director with Gorfine, Schiller & Gardyn, PA, a full-service
certified public accounting firm offering a wide range of accounting and consulting services.  Previously. he was a
Senior Managing Director with SMART. Mr. BondrolT brings over 35 yvears of experience providing companies of all
sizes and industries with practical and cost-ellective accounting, assurance, lax, businegss, technology and financial
advisory services. Prior to managing SMART, Mr. Bondroff was the Managing Dircctor for Grabush, Newman &
Cao., P.A., which combined with SMART in May 2003, Mr. Bondrofl” began his career with Grabush Newman in
1970, and in 1976 became Officer and was promoted (o Managing Direetor in 1982, He camed his Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting from the University of Baltimore, Additionally, Mr, BondrofY serves on the Board of
Directors for the publicly traded First Mariner Bank of Marvland, a NASDAQ listed SEC registrant. He 15 active with
First Mariner serving on the Executive Committee. Loan Committee, Audit Committee and as Chairman of the
Compensation Commitiee. In addition to his professional afliliations, Mr. Bondroll’ served on the Executive
Commiltee for Isracl Bonds and was a Director of Cyvele Across Maryland. He has served the National Jewish
Medical and Research Center, the Jewish Center for Business Development and has assisted the Baltimore Symphony
Orchestra in its fundraising eflorts. [n addition, Barry was a past President and Treasurer of the Edward A. Meverberg
Morthwest Senior Center. and also served as a Member of the Board of Directors for the Levindale Hebrew Genatric
Center and Hospital. He currenily serves as Treasurer lor Special Olympics of Marvland, as a Trustee lor Stevenson
University in Maryland and a member of the Audit Commiltee of the Associated.

Barry B Bondrofl was first selected as a Direclor in 2008 because of his more than 36 years experience as a CPA,
and with corporate governanee including serving on the Board of another public company. He utilizes that experience
as a financial expert and his elected position of Viee Chairman of the Board, His service on the Audit Committee and
MNominating Commitiee and his availability as a local director in Baltimore provide for local oversight and practical
consulting in the arca of [inancial management, risk assessment and Sarbanes-Oxley regulations. He also provides an
extensive rolodex that assists Medifast’s management team to find the best talent in the market 1o assist in our growth
and development.

Charles P. Connolly, age 61, is currently an independent director focusing on bank relationships, debt refinancing,
merger and acquisition strategy and executive compensation design. Mr. Connolly spent 29 vears at First Union Corp.
that merged with Wachovia Bank in 2001, He retired in 2001 as the President and CEQ of First Union Corp. of
Pennsylvania and Delaware. Mr. Connolly serves on the Boards of numerous profit and non-profil organizations. He
holds an MBA from the University of Chicago and AB (rom Villanova University.

Charles P. Connolly was first selected as a Direclor in 2006 for his extensive exceutive experience and financial
acumen derived from an exccutive banking resume. His current sclection as Director leverages that background of
reviewing the financials and performance of hundreds of companies in the public and private sector. He possesses a
unigue lnancial and risk assessment perspective into the operations and linancial management of the company. He
spends an extraordinary amount of time with our executive team providing guidance and consultation on key metrics
and performance oljectives thal have served Medifast well in the past few vears. As the Chairman of the Audit
Committee he has served diligently to insure that the company maintains its high standards of accountability.

Jason L. Groves Esq., age 40, is the Assistant Vice President of Government AlTairs for Venzon Marylamd, since
2003, Mr. Groves is also an Army veteran. He was a direct commissioned Judge Advocate in the United States
Army Judge Advocate General's Corps (JAG). As a JAG Officer, he practiced law while stationed at Fort George G.
Meade. Maryland. He had the distinetion of prosecuting eriminal cases in the District Courl of Marvland as a Special
Assistant United States Attorney, Over the course of three vears, he received two Army Achievement Medals, and
one Army Commendation Medal. Mr. Groves is a graduate of the Disney University College Program for managers.
He received his Bachelor of Science degree, cum laude, in Business with a concentration in Hospitality Management
from Bethune-Cookman College. He also obtained his law degree from Morth Carolina Central University School of
Law and is a member of the New Jersey and District of Columbia bars as well as several bar associations.

Jason L. Groves, Esq. was first selected as a Director in 2009 based on his military, business and legal background. In
addition he has extensive experience with governmental relations and knowledge of the healthcare and
communications technology ficlds. He was a Federal and State prosccutor thus providing keen insight on the
regulatory and legal issues the company laces in today’s business climate. His service on the Audit Commitiee has
provided timely oversight for all projects he has undertaken.

George J. Lavin, Jr., Esq., age 82, was the senior founding partner of Lavin, O"Neil, Ricei, Ceprone & Disipio, Mr.
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Lavin is a 1951 graduate of Bucknell University. He atiended the University of Pennsylvania School of Law,
reeciving an LLB. in 1956, and then served as a Special Agent, Federal Bureau ol Investigation, United States
Department of Justice, until 1959, Mr. Lavin has extensive national experience in products liability defense. He has
had regional responsibilities in several automotive specially areas, and was called upon to trv matters throughout the
county on behalf of his clients. Mr. Lavin's practice emphasized his commitmeni to defending the automotive
industry, Mr. Lavin is admitted to practice before the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, the United States Court of
Appeals for the Third Circuil and the United States Distriet Courts for the Eastern and Middle Districts of
Pennsylvania. He is a member of the Faculty Advisory Board of the Academy of Advocacy, the Association of
Delense Counsel, The Defense Research Institule, The American Board of Trial Advocates, and the Temple
University Law School faculty. He has also been elected a fellow of the Amencan College of Tnal Lawyers. On
March 1, 1994, Mr. Lavin assumed the title of Counsel to his name sake firm. Mr. Lavin has served as the General
Counsel to the Augustinian order of Villanova, PA,

George I, Lavin, Esq. was first selected as a Director in 2005 for his prestigious demonstrated legal experience on
behall of major inlemational businesses, management experience in his law firm and his extensive service with the
FBI. His current sclection as Director values his experiential oversight on legal matters as well as his service on the
Audit Commitlee and mentoring talents,

Bradley T. MacDonald, age 63, is the Exccutive Chairman of the Board of Medifast, Ine.  Mr. MacDonald has been
Chairman of the Board of Medifast, Inc. since January 1998 and was also Chief Executive officer from September
1996 1o until March of 2007, He was the prnincipal architeet of the turnaround of Medifast and formulated the “Direct
to Consumer” business models thal are the pnmary drivers of Revenue to this day. He also was the co-founder of
Take Shape for Life and acquired the Clinic operations in 2002, Duning his time as CEO, he managed the company to
29 conseeutive quarters of profits and improved sharcholders equity from negative $4 million to over 327 million in
less than seven vears. He also increased the Company’s market cap from less than §1 million to over $100 million and
listed the company on the NYSE. At the time the Board planned leadership succession occurred, the Board assigned
Mr. MacDonald executive responsibilitics in the following areas: legal affairs, treasury, banking relationships, M&A,
strategic plan oversight, publie poliey oversight, and community relations in addition to Beard responsibililties as
Executive Chairman and as the formal Co-founder of Take Shape for Life. In 2006, Mr. MacDonald received the
prestigious and audited Ernst and Young award of “Entrepreneur of the Year™ for the stale of Maryland in the
consumer products category. Also, he helped lead the Company to national recognition in Forbes Magazine ranking
Medifast 28" of the top 200 small companies in America. Mr. MacDonald was previously emploved by the Company
a8 its Chiel Executive Oflicer from Seplember 1996 1o August 1997, From 1991 through 1994, Colonel MacDonald
retumed to active duty 1o be Deputy Director and Chiel Financial Oflicer of the Retail. Food, Hospitality and
Recreation Businesses for the United States Marine Corps. Prior thereto, Mr. MacDonald served as Chief Operating
Officer of the Bonneau Sunglass Company, President of Pennsylvania Optical Ca., Chairman and CEO of MacDonald
and Associates, which had major [inancial interests in refail drug, consumer candy, and pilot sunglass companies. Mr.
MacDonald was national president of the Marine Corps Reserve Officers Association and retired from the United
States Marine Corps Reserve as a Colonel in 1997, aller 27 vears of service. He was appointed and served on the
Defense Advisory Board for Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve (ESGR.) for three years. Currently, Mr.
MacDonald serves on the Board of Directors of Stevenson University in Marvland, and the Catholic Family
Foundation of the Archdiocese of Baltimore, He is also the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Marine
Corps Reserve Tovs for Tots Foundation, Mr. MaclJonald is the father of Margaret Sheetz who performs the role of
President and Chiel Operating Officer al Medifast, Inc. Mr. Michael C. MacDonald, a director of The Company is
the brother of Mr. MacDonald.

Bradley T. MacDonald was first selected as a Direclor in 1996, because of his execulive and entreprencurial
expericnce in the businesses noted above, In addition he has held leadership positions of increasing responsibility in
the United States Marine Corps attaining the rank of Colonel and attending service schools 1o inelude the Naval War
College. His current selection as Director is based on his suecesslul turmaround of Medilast as CEO and successfully
guiding the company under a new profilable business model. Having extensive experience on Wall Street, as CEO of
Medifast when he restructured the company in 1999 which has since recorded over 46 conseculive quarters of
profitability, he is able to provide strategic guidance to the company. Upon reaching 60 years old with the advice
and consent of the Board he was elected Executive Chairman of the Board 1o utilize his breadth of knowledge and
expericnce regarding Medifast, Inc.

Michael C. MacDonald. age 58, is a relired Senior Corporate Oflicer. His last position was Senior Viee President of
World Wide Operational Effectiveness for Xerox Corporation. He was named to this position in September 2008 and
led a corporate initiative lo review the company’s core functions including Sales, Marketing, Human Resources and
other key areas to ensure maximum elfectiveness of resources. Belore this position, he was the World Wide President
of Marketing Operations, responsible for corporate marketing, Xerox.com, advertising, brand creation. public
relations and corporate communicalions. Prior lo his corporate assignments, he was President of Xerox North
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America, a 6.5 B Division responsible for all services, solulions and products sold and maintained in the United States
and Canada. This included a direet sales foree of 4.000, a techmical service stall of 25,000 and support stafl of 6,000,
a tofal of 35,000 cmployees. Mr. MacDonald also held Viee Presidential positions leading the Northeast Region Sales
and Technical Service organization, the North American Marketing organization, the North American Agent/Dealer
organization and the North Amercan Supplies organization. A carcer described as sustained success and over
achievement in revenue, profil and customer satisfaction. His leadership profile is one of creativily, vision, high
expectations and results with commensurate high levels of customer loyalty, emplovee development and satisfaction.
Mr. Macldonald also serves on the Board of Directors of Pactec Holding Corp., a Masdag-listed company and the
Jimmy V Foundation, In addition, he is also a board member of the North Amernican Marketing Advisory Board and
has been recognized on four oceasions as omne of the Top Twenty Markeling Executives of the Year by Business 1o
Business Magazine. Previous to 2009, he was a member of the Board of Dircctors of the U.S. Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. MacDonald is the uncle of Margaret Sheetz who performs the roles of President and Chiel Operating
Officer at Medifast, Inc. Mr. Bradley T. MacDonald is the brother of Mr. MacDonald.

Michael C. MacDonald was first selected as a Director in 1998 based on his broad based executive experience for
Kerox. His current selection as Director is based on his tenured service with Xerox, and being a director of another
public company. He has a national reputation as an expert in Sales and Marketing in the high technology field, He
has been instrumental in building the high technology platform that Medifast operates loday through a period of
continsous growth in the business. Because of his expertise and business acumen, the Board has elected him to the
Executive Commitles in recognition of his experlise in corporale govemance,

Sr. Catherine T. Maguire RSM, age 60, a Sister ol Mercy, has served as Associate Executive Director al SILOAM,
a Body, Mind. Spiril wellness center for the HIV/AIDS community, from 1997 - 2010, Prior to this Sr. Maguire
worked in AIDS Ministry within the prison system in Washington DC., and served as vocation director for her
religious community for 8 years, She received a BS degree in Education/English in 1972, a MS degree in Library
Seienee in 1974 both from Villanova University, and a MA degree in Theology with an emphasis in Pastoral Ministry
& Spirtuality in 1995 from St. Michael’s College in Vermont. She served on the Board of the National Religious
Vocation Conference from 1990-1992,

Sister Catherine T, Maguire, REM was first selected as a Director in 2009 for her extensive executive experience with
nol for profit human services organizations and her strong background in organizational ethies and human resources
and personmel management. She has multiple advanced degrees and will assist in developing the “Women
Executives” of Medifast. As a resull of her extensive management and human resources background she was elecled
to the Nominations commitiee where she will assist in screening and evaluating potential Director Candidates and
insure the corporate values related to diversity are implemented in the company and on the Board,

John P. McDaniel, age 67, is a seasoned healtheare executive with more than 36 vears of experience as a chiel’
executive oflicer. most recently at MedStar Health in Columbia, Maryland. one of the largest and most
comprehensive healtheare delivery systems in the mid-Atlantic region with annual revenues exceeding £3 billion,
encompassing 25,000 employees 5,000 physicians and nine leading hospitals and other health related businesses. Mr.
MeDaniel has a degree in Busincss Administration from Wittenberg University, a MHA in Health Management and
Policy [rom the University of Michigan, and an Honorary Dectorate of Humane Letters (LHID) from Wiltenberg
University. He is presently a Parner in The Hickory Ridge Group, an advisory, development and investment
organization that focuses on emerging healthcare and technology entities. He is also a member of the board of the
Greater Baltimore Committee, the Greater Washington Board of Trade, Wiltenberg University, First Maniner Bank
Corp a Nasdag-listed company and the Washinglon Real Estate Trust (WRE) a NYSE listed company.

John P. McDaniel was first selected a Direetor in 2009 for his extensive execulive and entrepreneurial experience as
well as his service on other public boards. His extensive management and Board knowledge concerning the health
care industry and health care policy will provide seasoned oversight on behall’ of shareholders. Because of his
experience and leadership experience as the Chairman of the Racing Commission of Marvland, Director of First
Mariner Bank and former Chairman and CEO of Medstar Health Systems he is serving on the Executive and
Compensation Committees to bring his business acumen and organizational knowledge to oversight the Company

Michael 8. McDevitt, age 32, is the Chiel Executive Officer of Medifast, Ine. Prior to joining the company in June,
2002, he was a Senior Analyst for the Blackstone Group, a private equity group in New York City. Medifast has
continued 1o excel under Mr, MeDeviit’s leadership, demonsirated by the company’s recent report of its 46th
conseculive quarler of profitability,. Medifast continues to see strong vear over year growth, most recently
expericncing 37% top line growth and over 114% profitability growth, versus the same time period last year. During
his tenure as CHO of Medifast the company was named number 16 on Forbes™ 2000 list of America’s Best Small
Companies, a jump from 85 one year ago. Additionally, Medifast was ranked number 28 on the 2008 Fortune Small
Business list of fastest-growing small public companics, up from number 47 in 2007, Mr. McDevitt volunteers as a
big brother for Big Brothers Big Sisters of Central Maryland, fully supporting the organization’s mission of helping
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bovs and girls grow up 1o be conlident, caring young adults. He is a member of the board of direclors for the
American Hearl Association’s Baltimore region.  Additionally, Mr. MeDevitl supports the efforts of the American
Diabetes Association and the Toys For Tots Foundation and works with scveral organizations of fellow CEOs. Mr.
MeDevitl holds a Bachelor degree in Business Admimistration with a coneentration in Finance from James Madison
University.

Michael S MeDevitt was lirst selected as a Management Direetor in 2007 alter he had assumed the positions of Chiel’
Exceutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Medifast, Inc. His prior and current executive cxperience has
contributed to the dynamic growth ol Medifast, He brings a strong successiul financial and operational management
perspective to the Execulive Commitiee of the Board.

Jeannette M. Mills, age 44, currenily serving as senior viee president with the Baltimore Gas and Electric Company,
a subsidiary of Constellation Energy. A Baltimore, MD native, Mills earned her Bachelor of Science in Electneal
Engineering from Virginia Polviechnic Institute & State University (Virginia Tech) and she currently serves on the
Advisory Board of the Bradley Department of Electrical and Computer Engincenng. In 2006, Mills eamed her
Masters of Business Administration from Loyola College. Ms. Mills also works in the community, serving on the
Board of Directors for Voices for Children, Howard County's Court Appointed Special Advocate Program.
Additionally, she serves on the Board of the Creative Allian¢e, a Program that builds communities by bringing
together artists and audiences from diverse backgrounds to experience spectacular arts programs and engage in the
crealive process,

Jeannette M. Mills was first selected as a Director in 2008 not only lor her technical background bul pnmanly for her
high level of executive expenicnce. Her service as Chairperson of the Compensation Commiltee has elfectively
utilized her talents to review and assess the operations and metrics used to evaluate key executives in the company.
She has been instrumental in providing guidance and direction to ensure that all execulives maintain the transparent
high performance culture. and entrepreneurial philosophy of execulive compensation balaneed with appropriate risk
asscssment analysis.

Jerry D Reece, age 70, is chiel exceutive oflicer of Eeece & Nichols: Real Estate, Mortgage. Title Insurance. The
real estale arm of the company is the largesl real estate brokerage in Greater Kansas City, With over 40 vears
experience in real estate. Jerry Reece formed 1D, Reece Reallors in early 1987, He sold the company in 2001 to
Homeservices of America, Inc. a Berkshire Hathaway affiliate. After graduating from the University of Oregon in
1963 with a B.5. in Finance, Jerrv Reece joined the United States Marine Corps and served in Hawaii and Vietnam as
a lirst ligutepant. Following active duty, he continued his serviee in the Marine Corps Reserve. His vanous
assignments included the command of a rifle battalion and service as a member of the Secretary of the Navy's Marine
Corps Reserve Policy Board at the Pentagon, Retired with the rank of Colonel, he is a past member of the Board of
Directors of the Marine Toys for Tols Foundation. His personal decorations include the Legion of Menl, The Navy
Commendation Medal with Combat V" and the Combat Action Ribbon.

Jerry 13, Reece was first selected as a Director in 2009 for his exccutive, entreprencurial and broad real estate
expertise, He is a leader in his community in Kansas City and has served on many for profit and nonprofit Boards, He
is a decorated Vielnam vetleran who has both civil and military execulive experience o provide oversight and be a
resource for exceutive and real estate matters requiring Board and corporate governance oversight.

Donald F. Reilly, OSA, age 63, holds a Doctorate in Ministry (Counseling) from New York Theological and an M.A.
from Washington Theological Union as well as a BA. from Villanova University. Reverend Don Reilly was ordained
a priest in 1974, His assignments included Associale Pastor, Pastor at 51 Denis, Havertown, Pennsylvania, Stall at
Villanova University, Personnel Dircctor of the Augustinian Province of 5t. Thomas of Villanova, Provincial
Counselor, Co-Founder ol SILOAM Ministries where he ministers and counsels HIV/ATDS patients and caregivers.
He is currently on the Board of Dircctors of Villanova University. He also serves on the Board of Trustees of
Merrimack College, MA, St. Augustine Prep, NI, and Malvem Prep. PA. Fr. Reilly was Prior Provincial of the
Augustinian Order at Villanova, PA from 2002 - 2010, He oversaw more than 220 Augustinian Friars and their
service to the Church, teaching at universitics and high schools, ministering to parishes, serving as chaplain in the
Armed Forces and hospitals, ministering to AIDS victims, and serving missions in Japan, Peru, and South A frica.

Verv Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA was first selected as a Director in 1998 for his strong background in Personnel and
Executive management with the Augustinian Community which serves the Catholie Church at Villanova University,
Merrimack College, High Schools, Parishes and missions in Japan, South Africa and Peru. His current selection as
Director utilizes his extensive knowledge of the Company serving as a Director and participating in the restructuring
of the company in 1999, He was also instrumental in developing the current business model in consultation with the
Business School at Villanova University. As Chairman of the Nominations committee and being a Ph.D and
nationally known academic he has been an invaluable assel providing guidance to the company and creating
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shareholder value, He also is the primary person on the Nomination Committee 1o identify and evaluate potential
Director Candidates lor charagter necessary to perform high performance, risk assessment and be transparent which
arc desirable characteristics for all potential directors. This will ensure continuity in respect to the company’s
corporate governance praclices and philosophy,

Margaret Sheetz, age 33, is the President and Chiel Operating Officer of Medilast. Ine. Prior to joining the company
in 200K}, she was a legal assistant with the firm of Carninglon, Coleman, Sloman and Blumenthal in Dallas. Texas. As
Medifast continues to sce strong year over year growth, Ms. Sheetz has provided the operational and technical
leadership that has resulted in Medifast providing the proper infrastructure to support the growth of the company to
inelude making dramatic productivity improvement in the company’s operational capabilities, building a strong
infrastructure of distribution, manufacturing, information systems and human resource operations necessary fo
support rapid business growth, She supports the efforts of the Amercan Diabetes Association, the American Hearl
Association and the Tovs For Tots Foundation. Ms. Sheetz is also very aclive with several organizations of Marvland
executives. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Villanova University and received an Executive MBA from
Lovola University.

Margaret M. Sheetz was [irst selected as a Management Director in 2008 afler she had assumed the positions of
President and Chiel’ Operating Officer of Medifast, Inc. She is the senior experienced operations executive who has
built the operational structure of the company. In addition to her strong operational expertise she has strength in 1T
integration with operations and human resources management. She has an Executive MBA which has assisted her in
the training development of her subordinates. She is the loeused executive sinee 2000 who has been instrumental in
building the manufacturing and distribution infrasiructure with her team of professionals. Her leadership and
oversight skills are recognized and she is recognized in the company as a detail onented executive who builds high
performance teams. The Board considers her the source person to get information pertinent to the oversight of
Medifast's operations, Mrs. Sheetz is the daughter of Bradley T. MacDonald and niece of Michael C. MacDeonald, a
director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board Involvement in Risk Oversight

The Company lakes a comprehensive approach to risk management, We believe risk can arise in every decision and action taken by the
Company. whether strategic or operalional. The Company, therefore, seeks to inelude risk management prineiples in all ol ils management processes and in
the responsibilities of its employees at every level. Our comprehensive approach is reflected in the reporting processes by which our management provides
timely and comprehensive information to the Board to support the Board's role in oversight, approval and decision-making.

The Board of Directors closely monitors the information it receives from management and provides oversight and guidanee to our management
team coneerning the assessment and management of risk. The Board approves the Company s high level goals. strategies and policies 1o set the tone and
direction for appropriate risk taking within the business. The Board and its committees then emphasize this tone and direction in its oversight of
management’s implementation of the Company™s goals, stralegies and policies.

Owr senior exccutives provide the Board and its committees with regular updates about the Company’s strategics and objectives and the risks
inherent within them at Board and committee meetings and in regular reports, Board and commiliee meetings also provide a venue for directors to discuss
issues with management. The Board and commitiees call special meetings when necessary to address specific issues. In addition. our directors have access
o Company management at all levels 1o discuss any matters of interesl, including those relaled 1o risk. Those members of managemenl most
knowledgeable of the issues altend Board meetings lo provide additional insight into items being discussed, including risk exposures.

The Board has delegated oversight for matters involving certain specilic areas of risk exposure 1o its three committess. Each commillee reports 1o
the Board of Directors al regularly scheduled Board mectings, and more frequently il appropriate. with respect to the matters and risks for which the
committee provides oversight.

The Audit Commiltee oversees the integrity of our financial stalements, reporling proeess and intemnal controls, the intermal audit function, the
independent auditors” qualifications, independence and performance, and the Company’s corporate finance matters including its capital structure, The
Audil Commiltee also provides oversight with respeet to the Company’s risk management process, including, as required by the NYSE, discussing with
management the Company’s significant financial risk exposures, steps management has taken to monitor, control and report such exposures and our
policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

Our Compensation Committee is responsible primarily for the design and oversight of the Company’s exccutive compensation policics, plans
and practices. A key objective of the Compensation Commilles is 1o ensure that the Company’s overall execulive compensation program approprialely
links pay to performance and aligns the interests of the Company’s exccutives with its stockholders withoul encouraging unnecessary risk. In furtheranee
of this objective, the Compensation Committee evaluates the potential compensation payable under the Company’s exccutive compensation plans based on
altermative performance scenarios. The Compensation Commitiee also monilors the design and adminisiration of the Company’s overall incentive
compensation programs o ensure that they include appropriate safeguards to avoid encouraging unnecessary or excessive nisk faking by Company
emplovees., Elements of our execulive compensation program thal mitigale excessive nisk laking, such as our combination of shorl and long-term
ineentives are deseribed below under “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

The Mominating and Corporale (Govermnance Commillee oversees risks relaled to our corporate governance, including Board and director
performance, director suceession, director education and the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines and other govemance documents. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also oversees the Company’s quality and regulatory affairs operations and the Company’s programs
regarding ethics and compliance, and social and environmental responsibility.

Pursuant to Medifast Inc.’s bylaws and govemance guidelines, the rules of the NYSE, and the Chairman of the Board, the Nominations
Committee along with the consent ol the Board of Direclors determines the best commitlee structure or Medilast, The Board elects the Olficers of the
company. Sinee 2007 Medilast, Inc. has had a separate Chairman of the Board and Chiel Executive Oflicer. The Chairman position is elected every three
years and the Chiel’ Executive Officer, CFO, President and Chiel Operating Officer are elected annually by the Board. Bradley T, MacDonald, Executive
Chairman of the Board has executive responsibilities and is responsible for the Legal Aflairs and Treasury functions of the Company, the banking
relationships, community relations, M&A oversight and strategic planning. The Board of Dircctors is confident that the current leadership structure of the
company based on past performance is in the Company’s best interest of creating shareholder value and building the Medifast business for the fulure. The
Chiel Executive Officer, CFO, President, Chiel Operating Otlicer and the Chairman of the Board have an excellent working relationship and understand
the roles and responsibilitics of each executive position. Michael 5. MeDevitt, the CEQ has the primary operational responsibility for Medifast, while
Brendan M. Connors, has primary linancial responsibility. Margarel Sheetz who reports to the CEO. has the pnmary responsibility for the internal
operations of Medifast Inc. The current leadership structure also provides significant benefits that come from Mr. MacDonald’s long tenure as Chairman of
the Board and his prior expenence as Chiel Executive Oflicer of Medifast, Inc. and Co-Founder of Take Shape for Lile.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Board of Directors of the Company has established a policy and certain procedures that must be followed prior to any transaction,
arrangement or relationship or series of similar transactions, arrangements or relalionships, including any indebledness or guarantee of indebledness, with a
related party. Under this poliey, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee monitors and reviews issues involving potential contlicts of interest
invalving officers and directors of the Company, including reviewing all relaled parly transactions.



Director Independence

The Board consists of 14 members of whom 11 are non-management directors, 10 of whom the Company has determined are independent.
Determination as 1o the qualifications of an independent directors are determined under section 303A.02 of the New York Stock Exchange, or the NYSLE,
Listed Company Manual and the Company’s Categorical Standards of Independence. The NYSE's independence guidelines and the Company’s
categorical standards include a series of objective tests, such as the director is not an employee of the Company and has not engaged in various types of
business dealings involving the Company. which would prevent a director from being independent. The Board of Direetors has aflirmatively determined
that none of the Company 's independent directors had any relationships with the Company.

The Board, in applying the above referenced standards has atlirmatively determined the Company s eurrent independent directors are:  Harvey
C. Barnum, Jr., Barry B. Bondroff, Charles P. Connolly, Jason L. Groves, George J. Lavin, Jr. Esq., Catherine T. Maguire, John P. McDaniel, Jeannette M.
Mills, Jerry I, Reece, and Donald F, Reilly,

Board Mectings

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (“Fiscal 20107, the Board of Directors held four meetings. All Board members aftended at least
75% of the aggregate number of Board mectings and applicable committee meetings held while such individuals were serving on the Board of Directors, or
such committees. Under the Company's Principles of Corporate Governance, which is available on the Company’s websile www.choosemedifast.cam, by
following the link through “Investor Relations™ to “Corporate Governance,” each direetor is expected to dedicate sufficient time, energy and attention to
ensure The diligent performance of his or her duties, including attending meetings of the shareholders of the Company, the Board of Directors and
committecs of which he or she is a member. All fourteen directors attended the 2010 annual sharcholder meeting.

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines

Owr Board of Directors has adopted a corporate Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to our directors, officers, including our principal
execulive oflicer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer, and employees, as well as Corporate Govemnance Guidelines, in accordance
with applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the NYSE. Each of our Code of Business Conduet and Ethies and Corporale Governance Guidelines
are available on our websile al www.choosemedifasi.com by Tollowing the links through “Tnvestor Relations™ to “Corporale Governance.™

Any amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics with respect to the Company’s principal
executive officer, principal fnancial officer, principal accounting officer or controller will be posted on the Company’s website,
www.choosemedifast. com.

Committees of the Board

Our Board of Directors has a standing aodit committee, nominating and corporate governance committes, compensation committee, and
execulive commillee,

Andit Committee

COwr audit committee consists of Charles P, Connally Chairperson, Barry B. Bondroff, (George 1. Lavin, Jr. Esq.. and Jason L. Groves, Esq. cach
of whom are independent as discussed above under “Director Independence.” As required by Rule 303A.07 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual, the
Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that each audit committee member is financially literate, and that Mr. Connolly is an “audit committee
financial expert.” as defined in Ilem 407(d)(5) of Regulation 5-K.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:
*  have the sole authority and responsibilily to hire. evaluate and, where appropriate, replace the independent auditors;

*+  meet and review with management and the independent auditors the interim financial statements and the Company’s disclosures under
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations prior to the filing of the Company's Quarterly
Eeports on Form 10-C,

*  meet and review with management and the independent auditors the financial statements to be included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K (or the anmual report lo shareholders) including (i) their judgment about the quality, not just acceptability, of the Company’s
accounting principles, including significant financial reporling issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the
linancial statements; (i) the clarity of the disclosures in the linancial statements; and (i) the Company’s disclosures under Management’s
Diseussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations, including enitical aceounting policies,

*  review and discuss with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors the Company’™s policies with respeet o risk
assessment and risk management;

*  peview and discuss with management, the internal audilors and the independent auditors the Company”s inlemal controls, the resulls of the
internal audit program, and the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, and quarterly assessment of such controls and procedures;

*  establish procedures for handling complaints regarding accounting, intemal aceounting controls and auditing matters, inelueding procedures
for confidential, anonymous submission of concerns by employvees regarding accounting and auditing matters; and

*  Review and discuss with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors the overall adequacy and eflfectiveness of the
Company’s legal, regulatory and ethical compliance programs
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*  Serve as a communicalion report to link under company Whislleblower Policy

Our Board of Dircctors has adopted a written charter for the audit committee which is available on the Company’s website at
www. choosemedifast. com by following the links through “Investor Relations™ 1o “Corporate Govemnance.™ In fiscal 2010, the audit commiltee met eight
limes.

Neminating and Corporate Governance Commilfiee

The nominating and corporale governance commitlee consists of Very Rev. Donald F. Reilly, Chairperson , Sister Catherine T. Maguire, and
Barry B. Bondrofl, all of whom are independent as discussed above under “— Director Independence.”  The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee identifies and recommends to the Board of Directors qualified candidates for election as Directors, recommends Direetor Committee
assignments, and recommends aclions necessary for the proper governance of Medifast, Inc., and for the evaluation of the performance of the Board of
Directors and Chiel Executive Officer. With input from the Executive Chairman of the Board and Chiel Executive Oflicer. the Nominating and Corporale
Governance Committes recommends certain executive officers for annual election. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews issues
and developments related to corporate govemance practlices and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors on changes in structure, rule or praclice
necessary for compliance and for good corporate governance. The Nominations committes has been tasked to assist the Chairman in selecting the most
qualified and appropriate directors to serve on the company’s separale Board committees.

Medifast, Inc.’s Mominating and Corporate Govermance Committee Charter provides that the skills and characteristics required generally of
Directors include diversity, age, business background and experience, accomplishments, experiences in Medifast, Inc."s business and a willingness 1o make
the requisite commitment of ime and efforl. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has not set minimum standards for Director candidates. Rather, it secks
highlv qualified individuals with diverse backgrounds, business and life expericnces that will enable them to constructively review and guide management
of Medifast, Inc. Medifast, Inc. has successtully obtained diverse highly qualified candidates for Directors without ulilizing a paid outside consultant, The
Corporate Governance Committee considers and evaluates potential Dircetor candidates and makes its recommendations to the full Board of Directors,
Ay sharcholder may submit a recommendation for nomination to the Board of Directors by sending a written statement of the qualifications of the
recommended individual to the Corporate Seeretary, Medifast, Inc., 11445 Cronhill Dr.. Owings Mills, MD 21117, The Nominating and Corporate
CGrovernance Committee will utilize the same process for evaluating all nominecs, regardless of whether the nominee recommendation is submitted by a
shareholder or some other source,

If a sharcholder wishes to nominate a candidate for election to the Board of Directors, in order for the nomination to be properly made the
shareholder must give written notice to the Corporate Secretary of Medifast, Inc. Nolice must be received at Medifast, Inc.’s principal executive oflices at
least 90 days before the date that is one vear aller the prior year's regular meeling. The notice must set forth: (i) the name and address of the sharcholder
who intends to make the nomination and of the nominee or nominees, (ii) a representation that the sharcholder is a holder of record of shares of Medifast,
Ine, enfitled 1o vole at the meeting and that the shareholder intends to appear in person or by proxy al the meeting lo nominate the person or persons
specilied in the notice, (1) a desenplion of all armngements or understanding between the sharcholder and each nominee and anv other person or persons
{maming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations arc to be made by the sharcholder, (iv) such other information regarding
cach nominee proposed by the sharcholder as would have been required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC
and the Company Bylaws had cach nominee been nominated, or intended to be nominated, by the Board of Directors, and (v} the consent of each nominee
ter serve as a Direclor of Medilast, Inc. il so elected.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the nominating and corporate governance committee, which is available on the
Company’s website at www.choosemedifast.com by following the links through “Investor Relations™ lo “Corporate Governance™ or in prinl lo any
sharcholder who requests it as sel forth under “Additional Information — Annual Report, Financial and Additional Information.” In fiseal 2010, the
nomirating and corporate governance committes met four times.

Compensation Commitiee

The compensation commiltee currently consists of Jeannetle M. Mills, Chairperson, John P. McDaniel and Jerry D. Recce, all of whom were
independent as discussed above under “— Director Independence.™

The principal duties of the compensation committee are as follows:
*  measure the Chiel Executive Oflicer’s performance against his goals and objectives pursuant 1o the Company plans
*  determing the compensation of the Chiel Executive Oflicer aller considenng the evaluation by the Board of Directors of his performance:

+  review and approve compensation ol elected officers and all semor execulives based on their evaluations, taking into account the evaluation
by the Chief Executive Ollicer;

=  review and approve any emplovment agreements, severance arrangements, retirement arrangements, change in control
agreemenls/provisions, and any special or supplemental benefits for each elected officer and senior executive of the Company,

*  approve, modily or amend all non-equity plans designed and intended to provide compensation primarily lor elected officers and senor
exceutives of the Company,

*  make recommendations o the Board regarding adoption of equity plans; and
*  Modily or amend all equity plans.
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+  Review the execulive compensalion philosophy of the Company; and assess any risks which may be reasonably deemed material 1o the
Company: and recommend to the Board any changes deemed necessary o the Company execulive compensation plan: or any sales channel
compensation plan,

Owr Board of Directors has adopted a wrilten charter for the compensation commuittee which is available on the Company 's website at
www.clhaosemedifast com by following the links through “Investor Relations” to “Corporate Governance.™ In fiscal 2010, the compensation committee
mel four limes,

Executive Cenmnmifiee

Messrs. Bradley T. MacDonald, Chairperson, Michael C. MacDonald, Michael 5. Melevitt, John P. McDaniel and Jerry 1. Reece are members
of the Exgeutive Committee. The Executive Committee has all the authonty of the Board of Direetors. excepl with respect lo certain matters that by statule
may not be delegated by the Board of Directors. The Committee meets periodically during the year to develop and review strategic operational and
management policies for the Company, The Commitiee held one meeting during fiscal 2010,

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The non-emplovee Direetors of Medifast, Ine. receive an annual stock grant for their services as director. In 2010, each director received 566
shares of restricted stock, with the exceplion of Jason L. Groves and Catherine T, Maguire who received 283 shares for their service and elected to take the
remaining board compensation in cash. In 2010, Directors did not receive a meeting fee for attending either quarterly committes or Board of Dircelor
meetings. For additional committee meetings or board service, Directors receive 51,000 per day. Employee Directors do not receive any additional
compensation for their services as director,

2010 Director Compensation Table

The table below summanzes the compensation paid by the Company to non-employee directors for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2010,

Feex Earned Stock
or Paid in Awards

Name Cash ($) &) Total ($)

Harvey C. Barrmum $ - $15,010 $15,010
Bany B. Bondroff 14,000 $40,185 $54,185
Charles P. Connolly 21,000 45,555 $66,555
Jason L. Groves 14,000 7,505 $21,505
George Lavin, Jr., Esq. 4,000 45,555 $40,555
Michael C. MacDonald 4,000 50,925 $54,925
Catherine T. Maguire 6,000 7,505 $13,505
John P. McDaniel 31,385 $31,385
Jeannette M. Mills 40,185 $40,185
Jerry D. Reece 15,010 $15,010
Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA - 52,367 $52,367

Additional fees are paid to the Auwdit Committee Chairman. In 2010, the Chaiman received an additional $16.000 in cash compensation.

Amounts are caleulated based on the aggregate grant date fair value ol these rewards computed in accordance with ASC
Topic 718 “Stock Compensation”™ which excludes the effect of estimated forfeitures. The assumptions and methodologies
used 1o caleulate these amounts are discussed in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K with
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Under generally accepled accounting principles, compensalion expense with
respect to stock awards and option awards granted to our emplovees is recognized over the vesting periods of the applicable
rewards,

(1
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The table below summarizes the equity based awards held by the Company’s non-emplovee directors as of December 31, 2010.

Option Awards Steck Awards
Market
Number Value of
Number of Number of Shares or Shares or
Securities Securities Units of Units of
Underlying Underlying Stock That  Stock that
Unexercised Unexercised Option Optien Have Nat have not
Name Options (#) Options (#) Exercise Expiration Vested Vested
Exercisable Un-Exercisable Price (3) Date Vested (1) Gl
Charles P. Connolly - - - - 2,000 57,760
George Lavin, Jr., E=q. - - - - 2,000 57,760
Michael C. MacDonald - - - - 4,000 115,520
Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA - - - - 4,000 115,520
(1) The market value of shares of stock that have not vested is based on the closing price of our common stoek on December 31, 2000, or $28.88 per

share.

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approved restricted common stock grants to Board members with a 5 year vesting period,
beginning on the grant date. The grant was to tenured Board members that successfully implemented the Senior Management Succession Plan over the last
four years through advice, counsel, and mentorship. A total of 55,000 shares of restricled commeoen stock were granted to tenured Direetors.

The Medifast Board of Directors on November 24, 2008 approved restricted common stoek grants to kev executives and Board members as a
2008 performance bonus for exceeding internal sales and profit forecasts.  Non-management Board members were each granted 5,000 shares of restricted
common stock vesting over two vears, beginning on January 1, 2004,

The Medifast Board of [irectors on May 7, 2009 approved restricted common stock grants to key executives and Board members with a 5 year
vesting period, beginning on the grani date. Kev executives were granted 460,000 shares of restricled common stoek to retain their services over the nexit
live years and recognize conlinued sales and profit growth in accordance with targets set by the Board of Direetors. The Board of Direclors received a
total of 71,000 shares with a two vear vesting period, beginning on the grant date for their active participation in the strategic planning process and
guidance as il relates to Medifast’s strong performance and growth,

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Seetion 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors and executive officers and persons who beneficially own more than ten
percent of a registered class of the Company’s equily securities 1o file with the SEC and the NYSE initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in
ownership of equity securities of the Company. Directors, oflicers and greater-than-ten-percent beneficial owners are required by SEC regulations to
fumish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms filed by them, In 2010, to the Company’s knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of
such flings on file with the Company and wrillen representations from the Company s directors and executive oflicers. we believe all Section 16(a) filing
requirements have been made applicable to the Company s directors, executive officers and greater-than-ten-percent beneficial owners in fiscal 2010,



ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Purpose and Philosophy

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for developing and recommending to the Board of Directors Medifast,
Ine.”s executive compensation program for the five named executive officers; (referred to in this CIM&A as the “executive officers™). Each of these
execulive oflicers is included in the Summary Compensation Table and the related tables beginning on page 53.

The Compensation Commiitee is responsible for creation and periodic review of the overall executive compensation philosophy of Medifasi, Ine,
related analysis and assessment of any matenal nsk to the Company related thereto, and it outlines the components of executive compensation for the
exceutive officers. Medifast, [ne. believes that strong, cffective leadership is the cornerstone of its continued growth and success. To be suceessful,
Medifast, Inc, must be able 1o atiract, retain, and motivate highly qualified executive officers with the competencies needed to excel in a rapidly changing
marketplace and to understand issues relating to a diverse group of companies in several dillerent industries,

Execulive compensation al Medilast, Inc. is focused on executive performance keved fo resulls. Medilast, Inc. provides [air and equitable
compensation o its exeeutive oflicers by combining conservative base pay. annual cash incentive, stock-based long-term incentive. The Execulive Cash
Bonus Plan is designed 1o reward executives for Medifast, Inc.”s current year financial suceess and recognize the responsibilities of the executive officers
for mecting Medifast, Inc.’s financial performance goals. Stock-based incentives focus on long-term performance by aligning the exccutive officers” long-
term financial interests with Medifast, Inc.’s sharcholders™ interest.

Tortal direct compensation which includes base pay. annual cash incentive and stock-based long-lerm incentive 1s measured against organizations
in the gencral weight-loss industry. In general, there are different kinds of diet products and programs within the weight loss industry. These include a
wide variety of commercial weight loss programs, pharmaceutical products, weight loss books, sell-help diets, dietary supplements, appetite suppressanis
and meal replacement shakes and bars. Some ol our competitors are substantially larger than we are. and have considerably greater financial resources
than we have. Our ability to remain competitive depends, in significant part, on our suceess in recruiting and retaining executive leadership with an
allractive compensation package. Medifast, Ine. targels total direet compensation for each executive olficer near median for organizations in the general
weight-loss industry. The mix of pay (basc pay, annual cash incentive and long-term incentive) is designed to reflect a strong bias towards pay for
performance by placing a majority of largel compensation at risk. The only element of lotal direct compensation that is not performance based is base pay.
Both annual eash incentive and long-term incentive are performance based.

Elements of Executive Compensation
Base Salary

Owr base salary determinations principally reflect the skills and performance levels of individual executives, the necds of the Company, and pay
practices ol comparable public companies within the general health and wellness diel industry, Medifast’s identified peers in the general health and
wellness diet industry are NutriSystem Inc., ¢Dicts.com, Herbalife Lid., USANA Health Sciences, Nu Skin Enterprises, NBTY Inc.. and Weight Watchers
International Ine. It is not our palicy to pay our executive officers at the highest base salary level, Instead, we establish executive base salaries below the
midpoint level relative to our peers. We believe this poliey sets a prudent and Gseally responsible tone for the Company s overall base salary compensation
programs. Please refer to the discussion below under “Peer Group™ for a more detailed discussion of our use of peer group and general industry revenue
data,

Target Bonus

Cash bonuses principally reflect the Company s finaneial performance and achievement of corporate objectives established by our Board prior to
the fiscal vear. The execulive bonus plan is designed to reward our executives for the achievement of shorler-term (inancial geals. predominantly revenue
growth, profitability, and cash Mow. In consultation with the Chiel’ Executive OfTicer, the Compensation Commillee evaluales, adjusts and approves the
amount and allocation of the bonus pool to cach named executive officer. In determining the cash bonus allocation among senior exccutives, the
Compensation Commiltee and the Chiel Executive Officer consider each executive’s a) contribution to ¢urrent and long-term corporate goals, and b) value
in the labor market,

The financial targets for annual cash incentive are premised upon the executive officers delivering on their financial performance projections to
Medifast, Inc. as reflected in part, in the annual budget approved by the Board of Directors. In 2010 targeted annual incentive compensation was tied to the
annual budget approved by the Board of Directors. The Compensation Commillee sel the targel for pre-tax profit as a percentage of sales at 12%, the largel
for corporate revenue al 3207 million, and netl increase in ¢ash, cash equivalents, and investments at $12.4 million. The target performance level is sel to
promote solid performance. The financial targets for annual cash incentive are divided into three components as follows;
1 Pre-Tax profit as a percentage of sales. Each execulive officer receives 33.33% of the tolal target payout il Medifast, Inc. achieves ihe targeted
pre-tax profit as a % of sales. Each officer receives a portion of the total target payout if Medifast, Inc. achicves the targeted performance level, and
additional increments for performance above the targel. For pre-tax earnings as a percentage of sales the target was 11.5%. Medilast, Ine. was above
the threshold performance level for pre-tax eamings as a percentage of sales in 20000 at 12.3% compared lo the target of 11.5%.
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2 Corporate Revenue, Each olficer receives 33.33% of the tofal targetl pavoul if Medifast, Ine. achieves the targeted sales amount for the [ull
vear. Fach officer receives a portion of the total targel pavoul il Medifast, Inc. achieves the largeled performance level, and additional increments for
performance above the target. For corporate sales the target was 5207 million.  Medifast, [nc. was well above the targeted performance level for sales
in 2010 Gnishing at $257.5 mallion, or 350.5 million above the target set by the Board.

3. Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and investments. Each ollicer receives 33.33% of the tofal target payout il Medifast, Ine. achieves the
targeted net cash inerease for the full vear. Each oflicer receives a portion of the total targel payvout il Medifast, Ine. achieves the targeted performance
level, and additional increments for performance above the target. The net increase in cash and cash equivalents target was 512.4 million. Medifast, Inc.
excecded the maximum performanee level for the net inerease in cash and cash equivalents in 2010 by generating a $18.1 million net inerease in cash,
cash equivalents, and investments

Equity Compensalion

Stock option and restricted stock awards principally reflect the responsibilities to be assumed by each executive in the upeoming fiscal year, the
responsibilities of each execulive in prior periods, the size of awards made to each executive in prior years relative to the Company s overall performance,
available stock for issuance under our Option Plan, and potential grants in future yvears. The Committee believes that stock option and restricted stock
grants (17 align the interests of executives with long-term stockholder inlerests as the grants vest over 5-6 years, (2) give execulives a signmficant, long-lerm
interest in the Company’s suceess, and (3) help retain kev execulives in a compettive market for exceutive talent. The restricted stock awards award the
continuity of service of the executive officers since the restricted stock awards vest over a peried of 5-6 vears and unvested, restricted stock is forfeited
upon voluntary lermination, In addition, the value of shares awarded increase or decrease with the value provided 1o sharehalders.

Equity Ownership by Exccutives

We do not currently have a formal equity ownership requirement for our executives. However, we encourage our executives to own equity in the
Company on a voluntary basis. All of our named executive officers own stoek, resiricled stock and vested and unvested stock oplions. We periodically
review the vested and unvested equity holdings of our executives and evaluate whether these holdings sufficiently align the interesis of our exceutives with
the long-term interests of our stockholders. We may consider adopting equity ownership requirements in the future,

Peer Group

We believe thal it is appropriate to offer industry compelitive cash and equily compenszation lo our senior execulives in supporl of our objective
to assemble and maintain a high performing management team. Our current level of compensation for our executive officers was compared to
compensation paid by an industry peer group approved by the Commitiee. The criteria used to identify the peer group were: (1) industry — we compete lor
talent with other healthy living and wellness companies and general weight-loss industry companies of similar and larger size; and (2) financial scope
our management talent should be compensated similar to that of companies of a similar and larger size in terms of revenues, For 2010, the peer group was
comprised of seven corporations listed above. The peer group revenue range is from 523 million to $2.8 billion with a median revenue of $1.5 billion for
2010, The peer group revenue pereent change ranged (rom a decline of 3.0%% to an increase of 18.5%, with a median revenue inerease of 12.3% in 2010,

Report of the Compensation Committee

We have reviewed and discussed with management certain Compensation Discussion and Analvsis provisions 1o be included in this Form 10K,
Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, we recommend to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis referred
le above be included on the Form 10-K for the vear-ended December 31, 2010, Based upon the Compensation Commitlee risk assessment , the Board does
not believe the Executive Compensation Plan or any distnibution channel compensation Plan presents a material risk to the Company as structured.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jeannette M, Mills, Chairman
John P. MeDaniel
Jerry 1. Recce



2010 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the annual and long-term compensation for the last three Gscal vears of the Company’s Executive Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Office, President, Chicf Financial Officer and the other most highly compensated executive officers. These individuals are
collectively referred fo as the Named Executive Officers.

Nongualified

Deferred
Steck Option Campensation All
Salary Awards Awards Bomus Contributions Other Total

Name and Pricipal Position Year ) OO D () O ®
Bradley T. MecDonald 2010 $225,000 iﬂl,%f‘ ; imrss,mu $3,400  $1,314,400

Executive Chairman of the Board 2009 $225000 $331,000 - $235,000 $3,600 $794,600
2008 225,000 107,000 - - 100,000 6,700 433,700

Michael 5. McDevitt 2010 185,000 639,000 - 826,000 5,550 1,655,550
Chief Executive Officer 2009 185,000 639,000 - 410,000 5,800 1,239,200
2008 135,000 450,000 - 75,000 2,700 662,700

Margaret Sheetz 2010 155,000 531,000 - 755,000 4,650 1,445,650
Chief Operating Officer, President 2009 155,000 531,000 - 350,000 4900 1,040,900
2008 100,000 372,000 - 50,000 3,000 525,000

Brendan N. Connors 2010 125,000 167,000 - 270,000 3,750 565,750
Chisf Financial Officer 2009 125,000 167,000 - 117,000 3,900 412,900
2008 99.000 101,000 - 20,000 3,000 223,000

Leo V. Williams 2010 135,000 - - 5,400 140,400
Exzcutive Vice President 2009 135,000 - - 85,000 4,600 224,600
2008 132,500 - - 25,000 2,900 160,400

1
¢ Amounts shown represent the aggregate grant date fair value of the stock awards in the year indicated. For a discussion of the assumptions made in the valuation reflected in

these columns, see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this 10-K. The actual value that may be realized from an award is contingent upon the
satisfaction of the condilions to vesting in that award on the date the award is vested. Thus, there is no assumance that the value, if any, eventually realized will correspond 1o
the amount shown,

(2) Bonus amounts determined as more specifically discusscd above under “— Compensation Dhscussion and Analysis™

(3) The amounts represent the Company’s matching contributions under the 401(K) plan.

2010 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The Medilast Board of Directors on May 7. 2009 approved restnicled common stock grants to key executives and Board members with a 5 year
vesting period, beginning on the grant date. Key executives were granted 460,000 shares of restricted common stock to refain their services over the next
five vears and recognize continued sales and profit growth in accordance with largels set by the Board of Directors. The Board of Direclors received a
total of 71,000 sharcs with a two vear vesting peried, beginning on the grant date for their active participation in the strategic planning process and
guidance as il relates to Medilast's strong performance and growth,

The Medifast Board of Directors on November 24, 2008 approved resiricted common stock grants to key executives as a 2008 performance
bonus for exceeding internal sales and profit foreeasts. Key executives were granted 150,000 shares of restricted common stock over a five year vesling
period, beginning on January 1, 2009,

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approved restricted common stock grants (o the Named Executives with a 5 vear vesling
period, beginning on the grant date. MNamed Executive Officers were granted 425,000 shares of restricted common stock to retain their services over the
next five vears, reward their efforts in the participation of the successful succession and transition of the company operations lo the new senior
management leam, and ineentivize continued sales and profit growth in accordance with targets set by the Board of Directors.
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On January 25, 2008, the Board of Directors modified Bradley T, MacDonald's compensation package for his role in the succession plan and
business development initiatives as oullined in the December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancelled the 100,000 options granted to Mr. MacDonald on
February %, 2006 and replaced them with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shares. The restricted shares will vest over a period of 3 years beginning on

January 25, 2009,

Outstanding Equity Awards at 20010 Fiscal Year-End Table

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Mazkat incentive
Numbax Value of Plan Awaxds:
Number of Number of Shares or Shares or Number of
Securitiea Securities Units of Units of Unearned
Underlying Underlying Stock That Stock that Shares, Units
Unexercived Unexercised Option Option Have Not have not or Other
Name Options (#) Options (#) Exercise Expiration Veated Veated rights
Un-
Exercisable Exexcisahle Price ($) Date Vested (#(1) a2) L)
Bradley T. MacDonald
Execative Chairman of the Board - - - 148,500 4,288,680 -
Michael 5. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer - - - 192,334 5,554,606 -
Margaret Sheetz
Chief Operating Officer, Presiden - - - 159,000 4,591,920 -
Brandan N. Conmozs
Chisf Financial Of ficer - - - 61,000 1,761,680 -
Leo V. Williams
Executive Vice President - - - - - -
(1} The restricted stock grants vest over live and six years ol service as described below under “Nammative Disclosure o Summary Compensalion
Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards™
{2) The market value of shares of stoek that have not vested 1s based on the closing price of our common stoek on December 31, 2010, or £28.88 per

share.



2010 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

The following table sets forth information regarding option exercises and stock vesting for the Named Executive Officers during 2010 and the
resulting value realized.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of

Shares Value Shares Value

Acquired on Realized on Acquired on  Realized on
Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting

Name * @x1) @ &)
Bradley T. MacDonald - -
Executive Chainman of the Board - - 20,000 607,600
14,000 235,200
20,000 627,400
9,000 213,930
Michael 5. McDevitt - - 15,000 408,450
Chief Executive Officer 33333 550,994
30,000 941,100
24,000 729,120
9,000 213,930
Margpret Sheetz 15,000 498,450
Chief Operating Officer, President - - 25,000 420,000
25,000 784,250
20,000 607,600
2,000 190,160
Brendan N. Connors - - 3,000 99,650
Chisf Financial Officer 5,000 84,000
10,000 313,700
3,000 243,040
4,000 95,080

Leo V. Williams

Executive Vice President 8,930 319,783 - -

{1} Represents the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of the commeon stock on the date of exercise, multiplied by the
number of oplions exercised.

(2} Represents the number of restnicted shares vested, and the number of shares vested multiplied by the fair market value of the common stock on
the vesting date.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information at Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010

Number of
securitics
Number of Weighted remaining available
securities to be AVErage exercise for future issuance
issued upon price of under equity
exercise of outstanding compensation
outstanding options, plans (excluding
options, warrants warrants and securities reflected
Plan category and rights rights in column (a))
(2) (b) (e
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders - - 14425000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders - - -

Deferred Compensation Plans

We maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plan, effective Seplember 10, 2003, for Senior Executive management, Currenily, Bradley
MacDonald is the only participant in the plan. Under the deferred compensation plan thal became ellective in 2003, executive oflicers of the Company,
including the Named Executive Officers, may defer a portion of their salary and bonus (performance-based compensation) annually. A participant may
elect to receive distributions of the acerued deferred compensation in a lump sum or in installments upon retirement

Each participating officer may request that the deferred amounts be allocated among several available investment options established and offered
by the Company. These investment oplions provide market rates of refurn and are not subsidized by the Company. The benefit payable under the plan at
any time to a participant following termination of employment is equal to the applicable deferred amounts, plus or minus any camings or losses attributable
1o the invesiment of such deferred amounts. The amount of compensation in any given fiscal year that is deferred by each Named Execulive Officer is
in¢luded in the Summary Compensation Table under the column headings “Salary™ or “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation™, as appropriate.

The Company has established a trust for the benefit of participants in the deferred compensation plan. Pursuant 1o the lerms of the trusl, as soon
as possible after any deferred amounts have been withheld from a plan participant, the Company will contribute such deferred amounts to the trust (o be
held for the benefit of the participant in accordance with the terms of the plan and the trust.

Retirement pavouls under the plan upon an executive officer’s retirement from the Company are pavable either in a lump-sum pavment or in
annual installments over a period of up to ten vears. Upon death, disability or termination of emplovment, all amounts shall be paid in a lump-sum paymenl
as soon as admimstratively leasible.

In 2010, there were no contribulions made by the Company 1o Bradley T, MacDonald’s deferred compensation plan. The plan was lully vested
as of December 31, 2010,



Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards
We have entered into emplovment agreements with certain Named Executive Officers, cerlain terms of which are summarized below,

Bradiley T. MacDonald. Mr. MacDonald entered into a five year employment agreement effective February 8, 2006, Mr. MacDonald was
granted 100,000 options over a five year vesting perod beginning on February 8, 2007 in consideration for his five vear commitment and to align his
interest with the interests of long-term sharcholders On January 25, 2008, the Board of Directors modified Mr. MacDonald’s compensation package lor
his role in the succession plan and business development initiatives as outlined in the December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancelled the 100,000 oplions
granted 1o Mr. MacDonald on February 8, 2006 and replaced them with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shares. The restneted shares will vest over a
period of 3 years beginning on January 25, 2009, Upon termination of Mr. MacDonald’s employment by the Company without cause, or upon his
resignation for good reason, he would be entitled 1o receive an amount equal 10 one and a hall times the sum of his highesl annualized salary payable in
equal monthly installments 30 days alter his termination of employment for a penod of one year.

Michael 5. McDevitt.  Mr, MeDevilt entered inlo a six year employment agreement effective February 8, 2006, Mr. McDevitt was granted
200,000 shares of Medilast, Ine. restricted common stock over a six year vesting period beginning on February 8. 2006 in consideration for his six year
commitment and to align his interests with the interests of long-term sharcholders. Upon termination of Mr. McDevitt's employment by the Company
without cause, or upon his resignation for good reason, he would be entitled to receive an amount equal 1o one and a hall imes the sum of his highest
annualized salary payable in equal monthly installments 30 days after his termination of emplovment for a period of one year.

Margaret Sheetz. Ms. Sheelz entered inlo a six year employment agreement effective February 8, 2006, Ms. Sheetz was granted 150,000
shares of Medifast, Ine. restricted common stock over a six year vesting period beginning on February 8, 2006 in consideration for his six year
commitment and 1o align her interests with the interests of long-lerm shareholders. Upon termination of Ms, Sheetz’s employment by the Company
without cause, or upon her resignation for good reason, she would be entitled to receive an amount equal to one and a hall imes the sum of his highest
annualized salary payable in equal monthly installments 30 days after her termination of employment for a period of one year.

Brendan N. Connors. Mr. Connors entered into a six vear employment agreement elfective February 8. 2006, Mr. Connors was granted
30,000 shares of Medifast, Inc. restricted common slock over a six year vesting period beginning on February 8, 2006 in consideration for his six vear
commitment and to align his interests with the inferests of long-term sharcholders. Upon termination of Mr. Connors” employment by the Company
without cause, or upon his resignation for good reason, he would be entitled to receive an amount equal to one and a half times the sum of his highest
annualized salary pavable in equal monthly installments 30 days aller his lennination of emploviment lor a period of one year,

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had entered into employment agreements with cach of the Named Executive Officers. As described in
more detail above under “Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards™ The employment agreements with
the Named Executive Oflicers generally provide for the payment of benefits if the executive’s employment with the Company is terminated either by the
Company without Cause or by the executive for Good Reason, The emplovment agreements with the Named Executive Oflicers do notl provide lor any
additional payments or benefils upon a termination of employment by the Company for Cause, upon the execulive’s resignation other than for Good
Reason, as applicable, or upon the exceutive’s death or disability.  Upon termination by the Company without cause, or upon his or her resignation for
good reason, all of the Named Executive ollicers are enlitled to receive an amount equal to one and a hall times his or her ghest annualized base salary
pavable in equal monthly installments 30 days alter his or her termination of employment. I a named executive had been terminated without cause or the
executive officer resigned without good cause on December 31, 2000 they would have received the following amounts:

Bradley T. MacDonald $337.500
Michael 8. MeDevint £277,500
Margaret Sheetz $232.500
Brendan M. Connors 187,500

{1} Based on 2010 salary
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I there were a change in control, which is delined as a sale of the majority of the assets of the company or a change of control of the Board of’
Directors as a resull of a third party shareholder acquining or holding over 10% of the common stock and atlempling to nominate a majority of the Board of
Directors in favor of his'her sharcholder block, the executives would have received the following amounts as of December 31, 2011k

Accelerated
Vesting of
Stock
Severance Awards
Gxbn @X2) Total
Bradley T. MacDonald $337,500 $4288 680  §4,626,180
Michael S. McDevitt 277,500 5554606 5,832,106
Margaret Sheetz 232,500 4501920 4824420
Brendan N. Connors 187,500 1,761,680 1,949,180

(1) Based on 2010 salary.
(2) Accelerated vesting of stock awerds were based on NYSE cloge price of the Cormon Shares
on December 31, 2010 of $28 88 per share.

Com pensation Polices and Risk

Medifast, Inc., does not believe that its compensation policies and practices ereate risks that are reasonably likely 1o have a material adverse effect
on Medifast, Inc.
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

The following table shows as of December 31, 2010, the amount and percentage of our outstanding common stoek benelicially owned by each
person who is known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our outstanding common stock.

) Shares Percent of
Mame and Address of Beneficially Outstanding
5% Beneficial Owner Owned (1) Common Stock

FMR, LLC (1)
$2 Devonshire Strect 1,539,800 10%
Boston, MA 02109

Black Rock Fund Advisors (2) 1,152,067 7.5%
55 East 32nd St.
New York, NY 10055

lonic Capital Partmers, LP (3) 877.5%1 57%
366 Madison Avenue, Hth Floor
Mew Yark, NY 10013

(1) Based solely on information reported on Schedule 13G/A Oled by FME LLC on February 14, 2011, As reported in such filing, Fidelity Management & Research
Company ("Fidelity”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of FMR LLC and an investment adviser registered under Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, is the
benclicial owner of 1,539 890 shares of the Company”s common stock as a resull of acling as investment adviser to various investment companies. The ownership of one
investment company, Fidelity Growth Company Fund (the “Fund™) amounted to 1,539,890 shares of the Company’s common stock. Edward C. Johnson 3d and FMR LLC,
through its control of Fidelity, each has sole power to dispose of the 1,539.8%) shares owned by the Fund, Members of the family of Mr. Johnson, Chairman of FMRE LLC,
{the “Johnson Family™), are the predominant owners, directly or through trusts, of Series B voting common shares, representing 49% of the voting power of FMR LLC, The
Johnson Family and all other Series B sharcholders entered into a sharcholders' voting agreement under which all Serics B voting common shares will be voted in accordance
with the majority vole of Series B voling common shares.  Accordingly, through their ownership of voting common shares and the execution of the sharcholders' voting
agreement, members of the Johnson Family may be deemed, under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 1o form a controlling group with respect to FME LLC. Neither FMR
LLC nor Mr. Johnson, his the sole power 1o vote or direct the voling of the shares owned directly by the Fund, which power resides with the Fund's Boards of Trustees.

(2) Based solely on information reported on Schedule 136 fled by BlackRock, Inc. on February 7, 2011, As reported in such filing, BlackRock, Ine. has sole voting and
dispositive power with respect to 1,152,067 shares of the Company”’s common stock,

(3) Bused solely on information reported on Schedule 13G fiked by Tonic Capital Pariners LP on March 21, 2011, As reported in such filing, Tonic Capital Management LLC,
lonic Capital Partners LI and lonic Capital Master Fund Ltd. have shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to 877,581 shares of the Company™s
common stock. The shares of common stock held by lonic Capital Master Fund Lid. are acquirable upon the exercise of presently exercisable call options, The shares of
common stock held by lonic Capital Partners LF reflect the shares reporied for lonic Capital Master Fund Lid, of which lonic Capital Pariners LP is the investment advisor.
Lonic Capital Partners LP has voting and mvestment control over such shares, but disclaims benelicial ownership of suech shares except to the extent of ils pecumiary inlerest
therein. The shares of common stock held by lonic Capital Management 1LC reflect the shares reported for lonic Capital Partners LP, of which Ionic Capital Management
LLC is the general partner, and in such capacity may be deemed to have voting and investment control over such shares. lonic Capital Management LLC disclaims beneficial
ownership of such shares except to the extent of it pecuniary interest therein. lonic Capital Master Fund Lid. has an address of Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker
House, 87 Mary Street, George Town Grimd Cayvman KY 1-9005, Cayvman Islands,



The following table shows as of March 30, 2011 the amount and percentage of our outstanding common stock beneficially owned (unless otherwise indicated) by each of our
(i} directors and nominees for directors, {11) Named Executive Officers and (iii) our directors, nominees for director and executive officers as a group.

Percent of
Shares Ouistanding
Shares Beneficially Acquirable Common Siock

Name of Beneficial Owner Owned (1X2) Within 60 days (%)

Bradley T. MacDonald (3) 635,148 = 4.12%
Michael 5. MeDevitt 358,346 - 232%
Margaret Sheetz 273,692 = 1.771%
Brendan N. Connors, CPA 03,434 = »
Donald F. Reilly 82,049 - »
Michael C. MacDonald 69,763 - »
Charles P. Connolly 38,141 = i
John P. McDaniel 23,066 - »
Catherme T. Maguire 8,723 = *
Leo V. Williams 16,000 - *
Gearge I. Lavin, Jr, Esq. 23,566 - »
Bany B. Bondroff, CPA 16,566 - »
Jeannatte M. Mills 13,066 - »
Harvey C. Bamum 566 »
Jason L. Groves 283 w
All directors, nominees for directors and executtve officers as a group 1,657,519 - 10.74%

%*

(1}

2)

(3)

Less than 1%,

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Under those rules and for purposes of
the table abave (a) il a person has decision making power over either the voling or the disposition ol any shares, that person is generally deemed 1o
be a benelicial owner of those shares: (b) if two or more persons have decision making power over either the voting or the disposition of any shares,
they will be deemed to share beneficial ownership of those shares, in which case the same shares will be included in share ownership totals for cach
of those persons, and (¢} il a person held oplions to purchase shares that were exercisable on, or became exercisable within 60 days of, March 30,
2011, that person will be deemed o be the beneficial owner of those shares and those shares (but not shares that are subject to options held by any
other stockholder) will be deemed to be outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage of the outstanding shares that are beneficially owned
by that person. Information supplied by officers and directors,

Unless otherwise noted, reflects the number of shares thal could be purchased by exercise of options available at March 30, 2011, or within 60 dayvs
thereafter under our stock option plans.

The shares set forth as beneficially owned by Mr. Bradley T. MacDonald include 133,667 shares owned by the MacDonald Family Trust, His
daughter, Margaret Sheete, beneflicially owns 273,692 shares which added 1o Bradley T. MacDonald’s 635,148 beneficially owned shares resulls in
908,840 shares owned by the MacDonald family.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2010, there were no related party transactions.



ITEM 14. FEES TO INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR FISCAL 2010 AND 200%

(0

The following services were provided by MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP during Gscal 2010 and Friedman, LLP during (iscal 2009

2010 w093
Audit Fees(l) $316,000 $184,000
Tax fees(2) 45,000 43,000

All other fees

Total —$362000 __ $227000

Audit fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in
the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-E, including the audit of internal controls required by Scetion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, and the review of financial statements included in the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-0), and for services that are
normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

{2) Tax fees were billed for tax compliance services,
(3) On January 1, 2010 Bagell, Josephs, Levine, and Co, LLC ceased operations Friedman, LLP was appointed as the independent registered

public accounting firm and Friedman, LLP performed the audit for the year-ended December 31, 2009,
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PART IV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
“The following documenis are files as part of this report

(a) L Financial Statements

See Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 64 of this Annual Report

2 Financial Statement Schedules

None, as all information required in these schedules is included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
i Exhibits

Reference is made 1o the Exhibil Index on page 64 of this Annual Report for a list of exhibits required by Hem 601 of Registration S-K to be filed as part of this Annual
Report,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Ihrectors and Sharcholders of
Medifast, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Medifast, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the vear ended
December 31, 2010, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management, Our responsibilily is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial stalement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis {or our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Medifast, Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the

Company s internal control over financial reporting as of Diecember 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Iniegrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, Our report dated Mareh 31, 2011
expressed an opinion that the Company had nol maintained effective internal control over finanecial reporting as of December 31, 2010,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integraied Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

/sf McGladrev & Pullen, LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 31, 2011



REFPORT OF INDEDPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Medifast, Inc.
Owing Mills, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Medifast, Ine. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders” equity and accumulated other
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial stalements are the responsibility of the Company’s
managementl. Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on the financial stalements based on our audit,. The consolidated financial
staternents of Medifast, [ne. and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2008 were audited by other auditors who have ceased
operations, Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those (inancial statements in their report dated March 6, 2009,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversighl Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the linancial
stalemnents, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial stalements and schedule. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Medifast, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generallv accepted in the United States of Amernica.

As discussed above, the consolidated financial statements of Medifast, Inc and subsidiaries were audited by other auditors who have
ceased operations. As discussed in Note 17, these financial statements have been restated. We audited the adjustments described in Note
17 that were applied to restate the December 31, 2008 consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate
and have been properly applied. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2008 consolidated
financial statements of the Company other than with respect to such adjustments and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any
other form of assurance on the 2008 consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

fsf Friedman LLP

Marlton, New Jersey
March 29, 2010, except for notes 2, 7, 8, 10, 16 and 17 which date is March 31, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of [hrectors and
Stockholders of Meditast, Inc.
Owing Mills, Maryland 21117

We have audited before the effects of the adjustment for the correction for the error described in Note 17 the related consolidated
statemnents of income, changes in stockholders™ equity and accumulated other comprehensive income, and cash flows Tor the year ended
December 31, 2008, Medifast, Ine.’s management is responsible for these financial statements. Our responsibility is o express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audil in accordance with the slandards of the Public Company Accounting Ovwersight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements
are [ree of material misstatement. The company 15 not required to have, nor were we engaged 1o perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of intemal control over linancial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company s
internal eontrol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, except for the error described in Note 17, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments for the correction of the error described in Note 17
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance about whether such adjustments are appropriate and have
been properly applied. Those adjustments were audited by Friedman, LLP.

fs/Bagell, Josephs, Levine & Company, L.L.C.
Marlton, NJ 08053
March 6, 2004



ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2000 and 2009

Accounts receivable-net of allowance for sales returns and doubtful accounts

of 5237 000 and $ 100,000
Inventory
Investment securilies
Income taxes, prepaid
Prepaid expenses and other cument assels
Deferred tax assets
Total currvent assets

Property, plant and equipment - net
Trademarks and intangibles - net
Other assets

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Other liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Deferred tax liabilitics

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, $.001 par value (1,500,000 authorized, no shares issued and oulsianding)
Commen stock; par value $.001 per share; 20,000,000 shares authorized;
15430100 and 1539894 issued and outstanding, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained camings

Less: cost of 368,908 and 367838 shares of common stock in treasury

Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

{Restated)
r 2010 r 2009

$ 17,165,000 8 10,604,000
623,000 676.000

19,534,000 11,232,000

17,271,000 5,698,000

3,266,000 2,922,000

2,108,000 3,811,000

703,000 680,000

L4 60,670,000 T 35,623,000
30,589,000 23,237,000

1,072,000 1,363,000

1,728,000 2,737,000

] 04050000 TS 62,960,000
15,020,000 7,717,000

944,000 796.000

15,963,000 8,513,000

4,855,000 5,444 000

1,284,000 1,186,000

¥ 22,103,000 15,143,000
|, 000 s, N0

32,938,000 28,456,000

240,000 159,000

42,117,000 22,506,000
(3,355,000 (3,320.000)

71,956,000 47817000

$ 94,059,000  § 62,960,000

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements



MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008

(in thousands, exceptper share data

(Restated) (Restated)
010 2009 2008
Revenue $257.552 $169,743 $110,076
Cost of sales (65,083) (45,355) (30,986)
Gross profit 192,469 124,388 79,090
Selling, gensral, and administration (160,829) (105,891) (71,723)
Income from operations 31,640 18,497 T.367
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (111} (145) ({3686)
Interest incoms 385 155 149
Other (222) (83) (132)
52 (3 (349)
Income before income taxes 31,692 18,424 7.018
Provision for income taxes (12,081) {7,067 {2,707
Net income $19,611 $11,357 £4,311
Basic earnings per share $1.39 $0.84 $0.33
Diluted earnings per share $1.35 $0.77 $0.30
Weighted average shares outstanding -
Basic 14022.213 13215318 13,126,534
Diluted 14572921 14736639 14320525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these congolidated financial statements
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MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 (As restaied), and 2008 (As resiated)

Balinos st December 31, 2007, e previosly reparted
Adjustments

Balimes, December 31, 2007, & mstated

Comman sinck Eued to dirciom
Eaie of stock optioes
Restricted shares iemmed to ementtves and diectom
Sheme-based compensatin fo execufives and dimcbons
Cencellatioa of options and missuence of metricted thares
Treasury thers issued gt seteent
Conprehensive income:

Het income

et changpin oreelied g les) oo ivestments, pet

Conmprmbessive come

Balance, December 31, 2008, e restuled

Common stock issnad fo dimscioz

Excise of stock optioss

Wirnnds comverted to common stock

Rtricted shares ioswed to ementives end diectom
Shere-based compensation fex besefit

Shase-based compensation fo executives and dimectors
Reseiph of tressury stock & payment of nots reeivable
Prochase of tmasury stock

Compaehensns ncome:

et Bcome

Het changp in unreeltzed gpin (loss) on irvestments, net

Comprshensive incame

Balimes, December 31, 2009, & mestuted

Common stock issued to dimctor
Restricted shares iesved fo exentives and disectons
Share-based compensation fo emeunves and dimchons
Exeeize of stock options
Prochase of tressury stock
Share-based compensation fexbenefit
Compbesive o
Het icome
Het change in wnrealized g (loss] on imvestments, net
Conpbesie oo

Budance, Decensher 31, 2010

Par Vike Audditoml Accumeiiad
Neber  $0001 Paid Rred  othercomp  Tresuy

of Sharss Amemd Cepitel Earnings meomeliozs) Stock Total
MO §1400  §MIRO0 47000 S0 (SLOTMO  $3006500
(6900) (629,000)

139008 $14000  §42000  §AEBWOO0 3000 (SLOTIOOD) 20440000
3m 100 152000 152,100
61112 100 T2 (43,0009 2000
16,150 m - b}
851,000 251,000
o000 100 (75,000) (14900
12000 000 0,000

4311000 431,000
(TI0000) (T10,000)

IR0
1550 S50 S50M0  SIBD0 (G00)) (30600 SN0
$00 100 207,000 miw
133334 10 71,00 (331,000)" 100
464 100 214000 214,100
WO M . ™
0300 3,00

2,151,000 2151,000
G000 (931,00
{102,000 {102,009

11,357,000 11,357,000

58000 58000

11905000

1598041  SI6000 28456000  SD0600  $IMO00 (8330000  $47:817.000
S.660 150,000 150,000
1650 . 0
1528000 258,000

10,000 UM 300
@500 (35000

L7700 1,700

19,611,000 19,611,000

31,000 31,000

19,452,000

ELOI 600 VOSRM0 SO0 $M400 (35000 $IL9%0

The sccompenying notes ase an indegral part of thess consobated financial stebements.



MEDIFAST, [NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,
(Restated) (Restated)
2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from opemting sctivities:
Hat incoms 3 19,611,000 $ 11,357,000 $ 4311000
Adjustments to reconcile net income to aet cash provided by opermting
activitise from contirming opamtions:
Depreciation and amortization ] 5,259,000 5 5,267,000 5 4,574,000
Realized logs on imvestment securities, net 205,000 81,000" 216,000™
Common stock issuad for services 0,000 207,000 152,000
Treasury stock issasd in lagel settlamant - - 70,000
Stock options cancelled during perind - - (77,0000
Shere-based compensation 2,628,000 2,151,000 852,000
Deferred incoms taxes 70,000} (218,000) 504,000
Changes in assets and hebilities which provided (osed) cash:
Accounts recairable 53,000 (223,000) 45,000
Imventory (8,302,000) 2,624,000 (4,675,000]"
Prepeid expenses & other cument sssets 1,639,000 (1,0665,0000 976,000
Other assets 132,000 (142,000) (251,000)
Mceounts peyehle and accrosd sxpanses 7,302,000 705,000 1,682,000
Income texes {344,000) (1,563,0000 (2,173,0000
MNet cash provided by operating activides 28,762,000 19,155,000 6,212,000
Sals of imvestment sscuritiss 5,487,000 1,178,000 2,501,000
Purchase of mmvestment securities (16,973,000) (4,442,0000 (3.173,000)
Purchaes of proparty and equiprent (12,055,000) (5,117,0000 (7,429,000)
Purchase of infangibls assats . _(235,000) 1
Net cash used in investing activities (23.541.000) (8,616,000) (7.819,000)
Issuence of common stock, opticns and warmnts 34,000 214,000 30,000
Proceeds of long-berm debt 353,000 2,600,000 {264,000)
Repayment of long-term debt (834,000} (530,000)
Mot change in lins of credit - (3,163,000) 1,565,000
Discreass in nots mceivelils 5,000 170,000 132,000
Excess taxbenefits from share-based compensation 1,770,000 303,000 -
Purchass of treasury stock (35,000 {102,000 .
Het cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,333,000 (P08,000) 1,463,000
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,561,000 9,631,000 (1:44,000)
Chsh s cash squivalents - beginning of the period 10,604,000 _ 000 1,117,
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period 3 17,165,000 §  i0G04000 073,000
Supplemertal disclostwe of cash flow information:
Imterest pid ] 111,000 5 1 5 347,
Tacome toes 10,677,000 3 D16l,000 & 3,661,000
disclostme of non cash sctivity:
Common shares issued for options or weomnts ] - $ - 3 30,000
Tressury stock ierued in legnl settlement E - $ - [ 70,000

Tressury stock mesived in payment of note receivabls

The accompanying notes are an integrel part of these consolideted financial stetements




Medifast, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2000

1. Nature of the Business

Medifast, Inc. (the "Company™ or “Medifast™ is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1980. The Company’s operations are primarily conducted
through six of its wholly owned subsidiarics, Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Jason"), Take Shape for Life, Inc. (“TSFL™). Jason Enterprises, Inc.,
Jason Properties, LLC, Medifast Franchise Systems, and Seven Crondall, LLC. The Company is engaged in the production, distibution, and sale of’
weight management and disease management products and other consumable health and diet products. Meditast, Ine.”s produet lines include weight
and discase management, and meal replacement products manufactured in a modem, FDDA approved facility in Owings Mills, Maryland.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of Medifast® branded and private label weight and disease management products.
These products are sold through various channels of distribution, to include web, call center, independent health advisors, medical professionals,
weight loss clinies, direct consumer marketing supported via the phone and the web. The processing, formulation, packaging, labeling and
advertising of the Company’s products are subject to regulation by one or more federal agencies, including the Food and Drug Administration. the
Federal Trade Commission, the Consumer Product Safety Commission, the United States Department of Agriculture, and the United States
Environmental Protection Ageney.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated linancial statements inelude the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Jason
Pharmaccuticals, Inc., Take Shape For Life, Ine., Seven Crondall Associates, LLC, Jason Propertics, LLC, Medifast Franchise Systems and Jason
Enterprises, Inc. All intercompany Iransactions and balances have been eliminated in consalidation,

Reclassification — Cerlain amounts reporled lor prior periods have been reclassified to be consistent with the current period presentation. No
reclassification in the consolidated Gnancial statements had a material impact on the presentation.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of
America requires management 1o make estimates and assumplions that aflect the reporled amounts of assets and habilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ materially from those estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit in financial institutions, institutional money funds and other
short-term investmenis with a maturity of 90 dayvs or less at the time of purchase. Al December 31, 2010, the Company had $2.5 million in
miscellancous shorl-term investments through Mernll Lynch thal are considered cash equivalents due to terms of matunty, and 514.7 million in
aperaling checking accounts. Al December 31, 2000, the Company had $1.7 millien in miscellaneous shorl-lerm investments through Merrill
Lynch that are considered cash equivalents due to terms of maturity. and $8.9 million in eperating checking accounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Our cash and cash equivalents and available-lor-sale securities are maintained at several financial institulions, and
the balanees with these linancial institulions oflen exceed the amount of insurance provided on such accounts by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, The cash and cash equivalents generally are maintained with financial institutions with reputable credit, and therefore bear minimal
risk. Historically, we have not experienced any losses due 1o such concentration of eredit risk.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, investment in available-for-sale securities,
trade receivables and debt, The carrving amounts of cash and cash equivalents, and trade receivables approximate fair value due to their short
maturitics. The fair values of investment in available-for-sale securitics are based on dealer quotes.  The Company belicves that its indebtedness
approximates fair value based on current vields for debl instruments with similar lerms.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Sales Returns and Doubtful Accounts - Accounts receivable are recorded net of reserves for sales
returns and allowances, and net of provisions for doublful accounts,

We review the reserves for customer returns at each reporting period and adjust them to reflect data available at that time. To estimate reserves for
returns, we consider actual refurn rales in preceding periods. To the extent the estimate of relurns changes, we will adjust the reserve, which will
impaet the amount of product sales revenue recognized in the period of the adjustment. Our estimates for returns have not dilfered matenally from
our actual returns. The provision for estimated returns as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were $207,000 and 70,000, respectively.

Allowances for doubtful accounts are based primarily on an analvsis of aging accounts receivable balances and on the creditworthiness of the
customer as determined by credil checks and analysis. as well as the customer’s payment history. The allowance for doubtlul accounts as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 was 30,000,

Inventory - Invenlories consist principally of packaged meal replacements held in the Company’s warchouse. Inventory is stated al the lower of
cost or market, utilizing the first-in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods includes the cost of raw materials, packaging supplics, direct and
indireel labor and other indirecl manufacturing costs, On a quarterly basis, management reviews inventory for unsalable or obsolele invenlory.

Investment Securities —The Company s investments consist of debt and cquity sceuritics classified as available-for-sale securities. Available-for-
sale securities are staled at fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses, net of the related deferred tax eflect, are reported as a separate
component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders' equity. Interest and dividends on marketable debt and equity securities are
recagnized in income when declared. Realized gains and losses, including losses from declines in value ol specific securities determined by
management o be other-than-temporary, if any, are ineluded in income.
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Income Taxes — The benelit of a tax position is recognized in the linancial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence,
management believes il is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination. ineluding the resolution of appeals or litigation
processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that mect the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable
taxing authority. The portion of the benelits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as
a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying halance sheet along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to
the taxing authorities upon examination.

We evaluated our material tax positions and determined that we did not have any uncertain tax positions requiring recognition of a liability. Our
policy is to recognize inferest and penalties acerued on uneertain tax posilions as parl of income tax expense. For the vear ending December 31,
2010 and 2009, no cstimated interest or penalties were recognized for the uncertainty of certain tax positions. We file income tax retums in the
United States and various states jurisdictions. With lew exceplions, we are no longer subject to US. federal, state and local income tax
examinations by tax authorities for the years belore 2007,

Deferred taxes are provided on an asset and liability method whereby delerred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and
deferred tax liabilities arc recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities and their tax bases, Deferred lax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Delerred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of
changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

Advertising Costs - Advertising costs, other than direct-response advertising, such as preparation. lavoul, design and production of advertising are
expensed when the advertisement is first used, except for the costs of executory contracts, which are amortized as performance under the contract is
received. Adverlising expense lor the vears ended December 31, 20010, 2009, and 2008 amounted to 523 million, $17.4 million, and $18.2 million,
respechively.

In aceordance with ASC T720-35 and 340-20, “Reporting on Advertising Costs,” the Company capitalized and amortized certain dircel-response
advertising and related costs when we could demonstrate, among other things that customers have directly responded to our advertisements. We
assess the realizability of the amounts of direcl-response adverlising costs reported as assets at the end of each reporting peried by comparing the
carrving amounts of such assels to the probable remaining future net cash Nows expeeted to result direetly from such advertising. Management's
judgments include determining the peried over which such net cash flows arc estimated to be realized. The straight line method is used to amortize
delerred direct response adverlising assels as il best represents the pattern in which the economie benelils of the delerred direct response advertising
assel is realized. In aceordance with ASC T20-35 and 340-2, the deferred direet advertising cosls are amortized in propertion to the expected Luture
benefits. based on historical evidence and verified by current results. Costs for each advertising activity should be accumulated and amortized
separalely.

In order to comply with ASC 720-35 and 340-20, the Company performs an annual evaluation based on sales by “customer list” (original cost pool)
lo determine reasonablencss ol straight-ling amortization. The Company amortizes the direet- response advertising costs ¢apitalized over a period
of 5 years. Medifast, Inc. sclls medically formulated portion-controlled meal replacements that are clinically proven to result in up to 2-5 1bs. of
weight loss per week, Consumers purchase Medifast produet for an extended period of time due to their tremendous weight loss suceess, This is
done in eyeles as a vast majority of weight loss consumers re-gain weight and again purchase Medifast product to lose weight and improve their
health, The vast majority of these re-orders are attributed to the onginal advertisement that drove them to purchase the product and experience
above-average weight-loss, The Company will adjust the carrying value of the deferred asset i there is signiticant deviation between the annual
revigw/look -back analysis of the revenues from “ecustomer lists” (onginal cost pool} as compared to the actual and projected sales and straight-line
methodology or indicators that the list is nol generating further revenue. Since 2008, the Company has nol capitalized direct-response advertising
and related costs,

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, direct-response adverlising costs tetaling $1,381,000 and 52,246,000, respectively, are reported as assets in the
accompanying balance sheets. Those amounts are included in the Other assets caption on the consolidated balance sheets. Direct-response
advertising costs amortization for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2009, and 2008 were S865,000, $1.392.000, and $1.392 000, respectively.

Property, Plant, and Equipment - Property. plant and equipment are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company
computes depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the asscts acquired as follows:

Building and building improvements 39 vears
Equipment and fixtures 3- 15 years
Vehicles 5 years

The carrving amounl of all long-lived assets is evaluated periodically to determine whether adjusiment 1o the useful life or to the unamortized
balance is warranted. Such cvaluation is based principally on the expected utilization of the long-lived asscts and the projected undiscounted cash
flows of the operations in which the long-lived assets are used.

Long — lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of an asset may nol
be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a companson of the carryving amount of an assel o estimated
undiscounted future cash Mows expected to be generated by the assel, If the carrving amount of an assel exceeds its estimaled fulure cash lows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrving amount of the asset exceeds the [air value of the asset.

Intangible Assets - The Company has acquired certain intangible assets, which include: customer lists, trademarks, patents, and copynghts. The
cuslomer lisls are being amortized over a 3 vear penod based on management’s best estimate of the expected. The costs of trademarks. patents and
copyrights are amortized over 3 and 5 vears based on their estimated uscful life.



Revenue Recognition - Revenue is recognized net of discounts, rebales, promational adjustments, price adjustments, and estimated returns and
upon transler of title and nisk to the customer which oceurs at shipping (F.O.RB. terms).Upon shipment, the Company has no [urther performance
obligations and collection is reasonably assured as the majority of sales are paid for prior to shipping. Medifast Weight Control Centers program
fees are recognized over the estimated service period.

Shipping and Handling Costs -~ Our shipping and handling costs for shipments of our product to our customers are included in cost of sales. All
shipping and handling charges that are billed to customers are included in net revenue, All other shipping and handling costs are ineluded in selling,
general and administration expenses.

Earnings per Share - Basic carnings per share ("EPS”) compulations are caleulated utilizing the weighted average number ol common shares
outstanding during the periods presented. Diluted EPS is calculated wtilizing the weighted average number of common shares outstanding adjusted for the
ellect of dilulive common stock equivalents,

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS for the fiscal vears ended December 31:
(Reatated) (Restated)

2010 2009 2008
MNumsmtor:
Met income $119,611,000 $11,357,000 $4.311,000
Denominator:
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 14,082,213 13,515,313 13,126,534
Effect of dilutive common stock squivalents 400,708 1,221,321 1,202,991
Weighted everage diluted common shares outstanding 14,572,921 14,736,639 14,329 525
EPS
Basic $3.49 $0.24 $0.33
Diluted $2.21 $0.77 $0.30

Share-Based Compensation — Share-based compensation. pnmanly restneted stock awards. to emplovees and direetors 1s measured al the grant
date, based on the caleulated fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period.

Deferrved Compensation Plan - We maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for Senior Executive management. Currently, Bradley
MacDonald is the only participant in the plan. Under the deferred compensation plan that became effective in 2003, exceutive officers of the
Company may defer a portion of their salary and bonus (performance-based compensation) annually. A participant may eleel to receive disiributions
of the acerued deferred compensation in a lump sum or in installments upon retirement.  Each participating oflicer may request that the deferred
amounts be allocated among several available invesiment oplions established and offered by the Company. These investment oplions provide
market rates of return and are not subsidized by the Company. The benelit pavable under the plan at any time (o a participant following termination
of employment is equal to the applicable deferred amounts, plus or minus any carnings or losses attributable to the investment of such deferred
amounts, The Company has established a trust for the benefit of participants in the deferred compensation plan. Pursuant 1o the terms of the trust, as
soon as possible afler any deferred amounts have been withheld (rom a plan participant. the Company will contnbule such deferred amounts to the
trust to be held for the benefit of the participant in accordance with the terms of the plan and the trust. Retirement payouts under the plan upon an
executive officer™s relirement from the Company are pavable either in a lump-sum payment or in annual installments over a period of up to ten
vears. Upon death, disability or lermination of emplovment, all amounts shall be paid in a lump-sum paymenl as soon as administratively leasible.
As of December 31, 2010, the deferred compensation Company maleh has been fully expensed.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are not included in net
income but rather are recorded directly in stockholders” equity. Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income and unrealized gains and losses
on available-lor-sale securilies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In January 2010, the FASE issued authorilalive guidance revising cerlain disclosure requirements
concerning [air value measurements. The guidance requires an entity to disclose separately significant transfers into and out of Levels 1 and 2 of the
fair value hicrarchy and to disclose the reasons for such transfers, It also requires the presentation of purchases, sales. issuances and scttlements
within Level 3, on a gross basis rather than a net basis. These new disclosure requirements were eflective for the Company beginning with ils first
liscal quarter of 2000, except for the additional disclosure of Level 3 activity, which is effective for fiscal vears beginning afler December 15, 2010.
The Company did not have any such transfers into and oul of Levels | and 2 duning the twelve months ended December 31, 2010, The Company is
currently evaluating the full impact of this guidance, but docs not expect it to have a material impact on the disclosures in its consolidated financial
slatements in fulure flings.

In October 2009, new revenue recognition guidance was issued regarding arrangements with multiple deliverables. The new guidance permits
companies lo recognize revenue from certain deliverables earlier than previously permilted, il certain crileria are met, The new guidance is elfective
for fiscal years beginning on or alter June 15, 2010 and is not expected lo have a matenal impact on the Company 's [inancial position, results of
aperations or cash flows.
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[n May 2009, new accounting guidance was issued which scts forth general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the
balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available fo be issued. In February 2010, an amendment to this guidance was
issucd to eliminate the requirement to disclose the date through which a company has evaluated subsequent events.

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND MARKETABLE SECURITES

The following summarizes cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities:

Unrealized Unrealized Extimated Fair
Cort Gains L Accrued interest Value

Cash and cash equivalents
Demand deposits $ 14,704,000 5 - % - 1 - £ 14,704,000
Money market accounts 2461,000 - 2,461,000
December 31, 2010 "$17,165000 § - ] - 3 -~ & 17,165,000
Ivestment Securities
Imvestment Securities $ 16,814,000 3 414,000 $ (54,000} 3 000 $ 17,271,000
Drecember 31, 2010 $ 163814000 $ 414000 3§ (54,000) £ 57,000 § 17,271,000
Carh and carh equivalents
Demand deposits $ B,821,000 - - ] - : 7 - $ 8,281,000
DMoney market accounts 1,723,000 - 1,723,000
December 31, 2009 _$10.604000 3 = 3 - 3 % 10,604,000
BEvestment Securitise

i

Investment Securitiss _E_S&E $ 72000 $ a 5 H
December 31, 2009 5% ! TBE 1

The Company had a realized loss of $205,000, realized loss of 381,000 and realized loss of 216,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009,
and 2008, respectively.

4. INVENTORY
Imventory consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Raw Materials $§ 5,202,000 3 3,900,000
Packeging 2,791,000 2,628,000
Finished Goods 11,451,000 4704000
Total $ 19,534,000 $ 11,232,000
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, consist of the following:

010 2009
Land $ 650000 § 650,000
Building and building improvements 10,525,000 9,034,000
Equipment and fixtures 36,947,000 26,478,000
Vehicle 67,000 59,000

$48,189000  $36,221,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amo 17,600,000 12,984,000
Property, plant and equipment -net $ 30,589,000 $ 23,237,000

Substantially all of the Company's propetty, plant and equipment are pledged as collateral for various loans
{see Note 12).

Depreciation and amortization expenss for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were
$4,700,000, $3,634,000, and $2,751,000 , respectively.

6. NOTE RECEIVABLE

The sale of Consumer Choice Systems on January 17, 2006 lo a former board member resulted in Medifast receiving a note for 81,503,000, The
note has a 10-vear term with imputed interest of 4% and was collateralized by 50,000 shares of Medifast stock and all the assets of Consumer
Choice Systems. On August 27, 20009, Medifast, [ne. accepted an offer by a former board member to pay down a large portion of the note using the
50,000 shares of Medifast, Ine, stock held as collateral. Medifast, Inc. obained 30,000 shares of Medilast common stock which was valued at the
August 27, 2009 closing price of $15.63 and such shares were placed in treasury stock. This resulted in a 3931000 reduction in the note receivable
balance due. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009 the restruciured note has a remaining principal balance of $153,000 and $158,000, respectively,
included within other assets. and will be paid over the remaining term.
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7. TRADEMARKS AND INTANGIBLES

The Company’s intangible assets and related accumulated amortization included the following:

As of December 31, 2010 As of December 31, 2009 (restated)
Gross Carrying  Accummulated Grozs Carrying Accumulated
Weighted-Avg,
Amertization
Customer lists $ 235,000 $ 50,000 $ 235,000 $ - 3 years
Trademarks, patents, and copyrights 2,053,000 1,166,000 2,053,000 025,000 7 years
Total $ 2288000 § 1216000 § 2,288,000 $ 925,000

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Customer lists $ 50000 § - $ 223,000
Trademarks, patents, and copyrights 241,000 241,000 239,000
Total trademarks and intangibles "$ 201000 "$ 241000 "% 462,000

Amortizetion expense iz included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

The estimated future amortization expense of trademarks and intangible assets is as follows;

For the years ending December 31, Amount

2011 450,000
2012 411,000
2013 192,000
2014 15,000
2015 -
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8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts paysble and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 consist of the following:

2010 (Restated) 2009

Trads paysles $ 9,208,000 $ 4,203,000
Take Shape for Life sales commissions payeble 3,947,000 2,912,000
Accrued payroll and related taxes 1,775,000 602,000

Total”$ 15020000 $ 7,717,000

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases:

The Company leases office space for Corporate oflices as well as thirty-nine corporately operated Medifast Weight Control Centers under
lease terms ranging (rom three 1o live vears. Monthly pavments under the Medifast Weight Control Centers leases range in price from $1.900
to $4.900. The Company is additionally required 1o pay property taxes, wllities, insurance and other costs relating fo the leased Dacilities.

The Company leases large commercial printers [or our printing operation that supports our sales channels., The leases extend through
December 2015,

The following is a schedule by vears of future minimum rental and lease payments required under non-cancelable lease lerms in excess of one
year as of December 31, 2010:

For the Years Ending
December 31,
2011 $ 2,860,000
2012 2,890,000
2013 2,363,000
2014 2,084,000
2015 1,741,000
Thereafter 760,000

Total minimum payments $ 12698000

Rent expense lor the vears ended December 31, 2000, 2009, and 2008 was §1. 700,000, 1,256,000, and $956.000 respectively, Equipmenl lease
expense for the vears ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was §1 813,000, $1,634,000, and $813,000 respectively

Contingencies:

The Company has asscssed certain non-income tax contingeneics in accordance with ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencics, that management
believes could be challenged by tax authorities, During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uneerfain, These potential exposures resull from the varving application of statules, rules, regulations and interpretations, Qur
asscssment reflects assumptions and judgments about potential actions by taxing jurisdictions. We belicve that these assumptions and judgments are
reasonable;, however, our assessment of tax exposures in the future due to new developments may aller our current position on loss contingencies,

A successlul assertion by one or more states regarding taxes could resull in substaniial tax liabilities and have a material impact on operating results
or ¢ash lows in the periods for which that determination is made.

The Company from lime to lime is invalved in legal proceeding and with claims arising in the ordinary course of business, Although it is not
possible to determine the oulcome of these matters. it is management’s opinion that setllement of such claims will not have a material adverse elleet
on the Company s financial condition or results in operations.

Subsequent 1o vear end, on March 17, 2011, a elass action complaint titled Oren Proter, et al v. Medifast, Inc.. ¢t al. (Civil Aclion 2011-CV-
T20IBEL]), alleging vicolations of Sections 100k) and 20(a) of the Securitics Exchange Act and Rule 10b-3 promul gated under Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act. was filed for an unspecified amount of damages in the United States Distriet Court, Distnet of Maryland. The complaint
alleges that the defendants made false and/or misleading statements and failed to disclose material adverse facts regarding the Company’s business,
operations and prospects, On March 24, 2011, a class action complaint litled Fred Greenberg v MedifastIne, et al (Civil Action 2011-
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CVTT6{BEL], alleging violations of Sections 100b)5 and 20{a) of the Securities Exchange Act and Rule 10{b)35 promulgated under Section 10{k)5
of the Securities Exchange Act, was filed for an unspecilied amount of damages in the United States Distriet Court, District of Maryland. The
complaint alleges that the defendants made false and‘or misleading statements and failed to disclose material adverse facts regarding the Company’s
business, operations and prospects. The Company believes that it has mentorious defenses to each complaint and intends to vigorously delend each

proceeding. Accordingly. the Company believes that either proceeding is not likely to have a material adverse efleet upon ils business or

operalions,

10. INCOME TAXES

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows:

2010 (Restaied) 2009 (Restated) 2008
Current
Federal $9,688,000 $5,760,000 $1,573,000
State 2,463,000 1,525,000 630,000
Total Current 12,151,000 7,285,000 2,203,000
Deferred
Federal ($62,000) ($191,000) $443,000
State (8,000) (27,000) 61,000
Totel Deferred (70,000) (218,000) 504,000
Total Income Tax Expense 12,081,000 7,067,000 2,707,000
Deferred tax assets (lisbilities) consist of the folowing at December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Deferred compensation $314,000 $55,000 $11,000
Reserves on iivventory and sales 140,000 44,000 43,000
Capital Ioss carryforward 178,000 87,000 85,000
Stock compensation 601,000 581,000 331,000
Vacetion accrual 77,000 o 0
Total deferred tax assets 1,310,000 767,000 470,000
Unrealized gain/floss on investments (145,000 0 1}
Prepaid expenses (429,000 0 1}
Depreciation (1,317,000) {1,273,000) (1,194,000)
Total defarred tax Liabilitiss (1,891,000) (1,273,000) (1,194,000)
Het deferred tax Lishilitiss (581,000 (506,000) (724,000)
The dif ference between the United States federal statutory tax mte and the Company’s effectivi
tax rate are as follows:
2010 2009 2008
Statutory federal tax $11,093,000 35% $6,448 000 35% $2,386,000 34%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 1,699,000 5.4% 028,000 5.4% 382,000 55%
Domestic manufacturers deduction (861,000 -2.7% (386,000) -2.1% (1140000 -1.6%
Other permanent differences 75000 0.2% 53,000 0.3% 43000 0.6%
Incoms tax rate change D (36,000) -0.2% 10,000 02%
Other 75000 0.2% 0 0.0% 0 00%
1 12,021,000 381% " 7067000 383% " 2,707,000 3B&%

The Company has capital loss carryforwards of approximately $440,000 that can be carried forwand for
five years and which will start expiring m 2013.
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11. Equity Instruments
On October 9, 1993 and as amended in May 1995, the Company adopted a stock option plan ("Plan”) authorizing the grant of incentive and non-
incentive options for an aggregale of 500,000 shares of the Company's common stock to officers, emplovees, direclors and consullants. Incentive

oplions are 1o be granted al fair market value, Options are 1o be exercisable as determined by the Compensation Committee.

In November 1997, June 2002 and July 2004, the Company amended the Plan by increasing the number of shares of the Company’s common stock
subject to the Plan by an aggregate of 200,000 shares, 300,000 shares and 250,000 sharcs respectively.

The following summarizes the stock option activity for the years ended December 31:

2010
Weighted
Avernge
Shares Exarcigs Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,000 § 383
Options exsrcised (10,000} 383
Options foafeited or expired - 0.00
Orutstanding at end of year - -
Options exsiciseble at year end - =

Mo stock options were granted in 2008 and 2009 or 2010,

The Company has issued restricted stock to employees generally with terms ranging up to six vears. The fair value is equal 1o the market price of
the Company s common stock on the date of grant. Expense for restricted stock is amortized ratably over the vesting period. The following table
summarizes the resiricted slock activily:

Weighted- Avemge
Gmant Date Fair
Shares Valoe

Outstanding at January 1, 2010 1,204378 § 557
Granted 22,100 2539
Vested (440,05T) 574
Forfeited - -
Onutstanding at December 31, 2010 786,421 584

The total restricted stock awards vested and charged against income during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was 52,678,000,
$2,151,000 and $852,000, respectively. The total income lax benefil recognized in the consolidated stalement of income for these restricled stock
awards was approximately 51,044,000, £839,000 and 5332.000 for the years ending December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. The tax
benefit recognized in additional paid-in capital upon vesting of restricted stock awards was approximately $1.770,000 and $303,000 for the years
ending December 31, 2010 and 2000, respectively, There was approximalely $4,596 000 of lotal unrecognized compensation cosl related to
resincled stock awards as of December 31, 2010, The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2 years,



12. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINE OF CREIMT
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, consist of the following:

2010 2009
$475,000 seven-year loan with PNC at & veriable rate at LIBOR plus
2.5%, which was 2.76% on December 31, 2010. Due 2011 $269,000 $301,000
$5,000,000 revolving line of credit with Bank of America at the LIBOR
mte plus 1.75%, which was 2.50% at December 31, 2010 - S
$3,000,000 ten-yeer term loan, with Memill Lynch at LIBOR plus 1.3%,
this was 1.55% at December 31, 2010. Due 2017 2,525000 2,675,000
$1,500,000 ten-year term loan, with Memill Lynch at LIBOR. plus 1.3%,
this was 1.55% at December 31, 2010. Due 2017 1,263,000 1,338,000
$2,600,000 3-year term loan, with Bank of America at Libor plus 2%,
which was 2.26% on December 31, 2010. Due 2012. 1,383000 1,926,000
Note Paysble secured by equipment at 1.7%. Due 2013. 354,000 .
75799000 6,240,000
Less current portion 044,000 796,000
$4,855000 $5,444,000

Future principal payments on long-term debt are as follows:

2011 $944,000
2012 912,000
2013 656,000
2014 257,000
2015 257,000

Thereafter 2,773,000

$ 5,799,000

The Bank of America line of credit and term loan 15 secured by substantially all the assets of the Company and contain customary covenants including
covenants that, in certain circumstances, restrict the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends on and redeem capital stock,
make other payments, including investments, sell ils assets and enter into consolidations, mergers and translers of all or substantially all of ils assels,
The line of eredit and term loan agreements also require the Company to maintain specified linancial ratios and satisfy cerlain (inancial condition tests,
Al December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliance with all of the required financial ratios and also met all of the linancial condition tests.. The
Memll Lynch ten-year term loans are secured by two buildings, tegether with an assignment of rents and security interest upon all fixtures now or
hercafter located in the two buildings. The PNC seven-vear loan is secured by land and building. All loans contain customary events of default. Upon
the occurrence of an event ol default under the term loans or line of credil, the lenders there under may cease making loans and declare amounts

outstanding to be immediately due and payable,

13. EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Medilast, Ine. implemented a management suceession plan beginning in 2006, In doing so, on February 8, 2006 they
had 3 key exceutive officers sign 6-year employment contracts to ensure that there will be minimal furnover in selected key management positions.
The Execulives associated with this succession plan include Michael 8. MeDevint, Chiel Executive Officer, Margarel Sheetr, Chiel’ Operating
Officer and President, and Brendan Connors, CPA. Chiel Financial Officer. Bradley T. MacDonald, the Executive Chairman of the Board of
rectors has signed and executed a new 5 year employment agreement as the Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors and will provide on-
going execulive mentoring, financial and M&A advice, and new business development for the Company. Mr, MacDonald’s contracl is currently

subject to annual renewal upon review of the Medifast Board of Directors.



Additionally. in 2006 the officers received shares of commeon stock in varyving amounts totaling 380,000 shares at $6.25 per share that will be vested
aver & years and Mr. MacDonald received 100,000 stock options at $6.25 that will vest over 5 years beginning on February 8, 2007, The Board of
Direciors cancelled the 100,000 options granted to Mr. MacDonald on February 8, 2006 and replaced them with a resiricted stock grant of 42 000
shares. The restricted shares will vest over a peried of 3 years beginning on January 25, 2009,

14. WARRANTS

During 2009, 80,000 warranis were exercised and an exercise price of 54,80 per share, resulting in the issuance of 44 647 common shares.. The
warrants were in issued 1o an investment banker for advisory and consulting services provided by the Company.

15. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Certain financial assets and liabilities are accounted for at fair value, which is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants al the measurement date. The ollowing fair value hierarchy priontizes the
inputs used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those
in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis.

Level 2 — Pricing inpuls are other than quoled prices in active markets included in level 1, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation
methodologics.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective sources. These inpuls may be used
with internally developed methodologics that result in management’s best estimate of fair value from the perspective of a market
participant,

The following table represents the fair value hierarchy for those financial assels measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2010
and 2009:

2010 Assets Level I Lewvel IT Level III Total
Imvestment secixities $ 17.271,000 = = $ 17,271,000
Cash equivalents 2,017,000 - - 2,017,000
Totel Assets $ 19,283,000 - £ - $ 19,288,000

2009 Assets Level I Lewvel IT Level III Taotal
Investment securities $ 5,693,000 - - § 5,698,000
Cash equivalents 6,772,000 - - 6,778,000
Total Assets $ 12,476,000 - $ - $ 12,476,000

16. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Operating segments are components of an enterprise aboul which separate linancial information is available that is regularly reviewed by the
chiefl operating decision maker about how lo allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company has two reportable operating
segments: Medifast, and MWCC and Wholesale. The Medifast reporting segment consists of the following distribution channels:  Medifast
Direct and Take Shape for Life. The MWCC and Wholesale segment consists of Medifast Corporate and Franchise Weight Control Centers as
well as Medifast Wholesale Physicians,

Total assels and operating expenses not identified with a specific segment are listed as “Other”™ and include items such as auditors™ fees,
altorney’'s lees, stock compensation expense and corporale governanee related to NYSE, Sarbanes Oxley, and SEC regulations.  Evaluation of
the performance of operating segments is based on their respective income from operations before taxes. The aceounting policies of the
segments are the same as those of the Company. The presentation and alloeation of assets, liabilities and results of operations may not reflect
the actual economic costs of the segments as stand-alone businesses. If a different basis of allocation were utilized, the relative contributions of
the segments might dilTer, but management believes that the relative trends in segments would likely not be impacted.
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We previously included Medifast Weight Control Centers in “Other” segment, however, in 2010 due (o the Weight Control Centers growth we
separated this segment along with the Medifast Wholesale Physicians, In addition, we reclassilied segment amounts for the prior periods.

The following tables” present scgment information for the vears ended December 31, 2000, 2009, and 2008:

Revenues

Cost of Sales

Selling, General and Adminstrative Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization
Interest (net) and other

Income before income texes

Segment Assats

Revenues

Cost of Seles

Selling, General and Adminstrative Expenses
Interast (net) and other

Incoms before incoms taxes

Segment Assets

Revenues

Coast of Sales

Selling, General and Adminstrative Expenses
Interest (net) and other

Income before income taxes

Segment Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2010
MWCC &
Medifast Whaolesale Other Conselidated
229,879,000 $ 27,673,000 $ - $ 257,552,000
58,795,000 6,288,000 - 65,083,000
135,441,000 13,837,000 5,693,000 154971000
4,765,000 786,000 307,000 5,858,000
105,000 . (157,000) (52,000)
30,773,000 $ 6,762,000 (3 (5.843,000) $ 31,692,000
55,858,000 3 9,301,000 $ 28,900,000 $ 94,059,000
(Restated)
Year Ended December 31, 2009
MWCC &
Medifast Wholesale Other Consolidated
152,077,000 $ 17,666,000 $ - $ 169,743,000
41,466,000 3,889,000 - 45,355,000
88,042,000 9,137,000 3,445,000 100,624,000
4,264,000 691,000 312,000 5,267,000
17,000 0 56,000 73,000
18,288,000 3 3,945,000 $ (3,813,000) $ 18424000
43,580,000 $ 5,138,000 $ 14,242,000 $ 62,960,000
(Restated)
Year Ended December 31, 2008
MWCC &
Medifast Wholesale Other Consolidated
99,048,000 $ 11,028,000 § - $ 110,076,000
28,434,000 2,502,000 - 30,986,000
58,810,000 5,944,000 2396000 67,150,000
3,613,000 639,000 322,000 4,574,000
32,000 0 317,000 340,000
8,109,000 $ 1,943 000 $ (3,035,000) 5 7,017,000
36,144,000 $ 3,705,000 $ 10,076,000 $ 49925000




17. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We are restating our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2000 and beginning retained carnings as of January 1, 2008
principally due to errors in recording cerlain ordinary course of business expenses in the proper period. Cerlain costs and expense allecting selling,
general and administrative expenses and cost ol sales. to include shipping expenses and certain web advertising expenses, which due 1o growth and
evolulion in the business model were consistently expensed in the lollowing month afler services were rendered, rather than being acerued in the
proper period. The company has consistently recorded twelve months of expenses in each year. In addition to the liming of expenses. there was a
write off related to an intangible asset. Also, in the Medifast Weight Control Centers, the Company had been recording program fees on a cash basis
fior customers who paid up front. The difference has been defirred and properly recorded over the applicable service period, and for fiscal year 20010
has been properly recorded, so there is no matenal impaet for the yvear ended December 31. 2010, With the Company *s aceelerated growth rate over
the last few years (44% CAGR in sales since December 31, 2007) the one month lag in expenses on a cumulative basis was decmed material per
Staff Accounting Bulletin No, 108 and requires restatement for the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2009,

In the course of our 2010 annual audit by our independent registered public accounting firm MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP*s (MeGladrey). MeGladrey
requested in March 2011 that we re-evaluate whether our historical and then current practices with the respect 1o the iming for recognition of
certain expenses were appropriate under generally aceepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAPT). In addition, during the course of
their audit, MeGladrey identified several other adjustments perlaining to the prior years, This required the company Lo request an aulomatic
exlension [or filing our 10-K to allow adequate investigative time for the reevaluation and to allow our current vear auditor to meet, discuss and
review work papers with our predecessor auditors who then concurred with the conclusory recommendation fo restate for prior vears made
following their joint review,

The Company's Management upon being advised by its Independent Auditor of the issue. as part of its Sarbancs Oxley policy regarding internal
controls over linancial reporting, immediately reported this issue 1o the Audit Committee which promptly requested management 1o conduct a
detailed review.

Management performed a detailed review of expense recognition of cerlain ordinary course of business expenses [or the years 2008, and 2009, As a
result, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. Historically, our accounts payable and accrued expensc
accounts were evalualed on a quarterly and annual basis based upon whether the corresponding expenses were fairly stated (e.g. by analyring
whether our operating resulls ineluded twelve months of expenses lor the yearly periods or three months of expenses for the quarterly periods)
which they did.. However, our procedures did not include a detailed review of ending liability balances for these specific costs and expenses, which
resulted in cerlain expenses being recorded when they were paid rather than incurred. In addition, duning the course of their audit, MeCiladrey
identified several other adjustments pertaining o the prior years which have also been ineluded in the restatement. Our predecessor auditor
coneurred with management’s assessment and has audited the restatement adjustments.

On March 28, 2011 management and the Audit Committee reviewed management’s findings and the Audit Committee concluded that restating the
consolidated linancial statements for the vears ended December 31, 2008, and 2009 is required, The effects of these restalements are included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the liseal year ended December 31, 2010 The Company has determined that previously reported amounts in our
2010 quarterly filings on Form 100} need not be restated due to the immaterial effect on 2000 revenues, operating income, pre-tax income, net
income or cash [lows for the quarterly periods presented.

The correction of the errors noted in (i) above reduced 2009 and 2008, net income by S606,000 (5.04 per diluted share), $323,000 (5.04 per diluted
share), and $628,000 was adjusted to beginning retained eamings as of January 1, 2008,

The following is a summary of the effects of these changes on the Company *s consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 200, as
well as the eflfeet of these changes on the Company’s consolidated statements of income.
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Conselidated Balance Sheets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000

Total Assets

Intengibles

Accounts Payeble and accrued expenses
Totel Lishilities

Reteined Earnings

Total Stockholder's Equity

Totel Lisbilities and Stockholder’s Equity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Total Assets

Intanghbles

HAccounts Payebls end accrued sxpenses
Totel Lisbiliti

Reteined Eamings

Total Stockholder's Equity

Total Lisbilities and Stockholder's Equity

As Previously
Reported Adjustments As Restated
$62,755,000 $205,000 $62,960,000
$1,859000  (496,000) $1,363,000
4,966,000 2,751,000 7,717,000
12,759,000 2,324,000 15,143,000
24,264000  (1,758,000) 22,506,000
40,575,000  (1,758,000) 47,817,000
62,755,000 205,000 62,960,000
As Previously
Reported Adjustments As Restated
$50,317,000  (392,000) $49,925,000
$2,321,000 (496,000 $1,825,000
3,130,000 1,884,000 7,014,000
15,096,000 762,000 15,858,000
12,301,000  (1,156,000) 11,145,000
35221,000  (1,154,000) 34,067,000
50,317,000  (496,000) 49,925,000



For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Bevenue

Cost of Sales

Met income

Basic Earnings Per Share
Dilate Earnings Per Share

For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2008

Revenus

Cost of Sales

Selling, general and administration
Provision for incoms taxss

HMet incoms

Basgic Earnings Per Share

Dilate Eamings Per Share

18. QUARTERLY RESULTS {Unaudited)

2010

Revenue

Ciross Profit

Operating Income

Net Income

Earnings per common share - diluted

2009

Revenue

Gross Profit

Operating Income

Net Income

Eamings per commuon share - diluted

As Previeusly

Reported Adjut-nl: Az Restuted
$169.912,000 ($169,000) $169,743,000
45,194,000 161,000 45,355,000
105,352,000 530,000 105,891,000
7,330,000 (263,000) 7,067,000
11,963,000 {606,000 11,357,000
D89 (0.05) 084
D81 (0.04) 0.77
As Previously
Reported Adjustments _ As Restated
$110,219,000  ($143,000) $110,076,000
30,885,000 101,000 30,986,000
71,135,000 588.000 71,723,000
3,016,000  (309,000) 2,707,000
4,834,000 (523,000} 4,311,000
037 (0.04) 0.33
034 (0.04) 0.30
First Quarter Second Quaner Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
60,585,000 566,660,000 S67,282,000 563,025,000
45 768,000 49 466 000 50459000 46,776,000
2,214,000 9,204,000 9,081,000 5,193,000
4,901,000 5,538,040 5,751,000 3.421.000
.33 038 039 0.23
{Restated)
%34,005,000 £41,721.000 546,079,000 547,338,000
25,626,000 30,813,000 34,077,000 33,872,000
3,976,000 4,759,000 3,546,000 4,143,000
2. 485,000 2,999,000 3,434,000 2,439,000
0.17 0.20 0.23 0.17

(1) -Earnings per commaon share is computed independently for each of the quarters presented; accordingly, in
the sum of the quarterly carnings per common share may not equal the total computed for the year.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on ils
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

MEDIFAST, INC.
(Registrint )

MICHAEL 5. MCDEVITT

Michagl 8. McDevitt

Chief Exceutive Officer
(Principal Executive Olficer)
Dated: March 31, 2011

BRENDAN N, CONNORS

Brendan N. Connors

Chiel Financial Officer

{Principal Financial and Accomnting (fficer)
Dated: March 31, 2011



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the
dates indicated have signed this Report below,

Name Title Date

& HARVEY C. BARNUM Director March 31, 2011

Harvey C. Barmum

/sl BARRY B. BONDROFF, CPA Director March 31, 2011

Barry B. Bondrofl, CPA

/5! CHARLES P. CONNOLLY Darector March 31, 2011

Charles P, Connolly

fa! JASON L. GROVES Drirector March 31, 2001

Jason L., Groves

&/ GEORGE I. LAVIN, ESQ. Drirector March 31, 2011

George ). Lavin, Esq.

s/ BRADLEY T. MACDONALD Executive Chainman of the Board, March 31, 2011
Director

Bradley T. MacDonald

faf MICHAEL C. MACDONALD Director March 31, 2011

Michael C. MacDaonald

&SR, CATHY T. MAGUIRE REM Director March 31, 2011

Sr. Cathy T. Maguine, REM

& JOHN P. MCDANIEL Director March 31, 2011
Jobn P. MeDaniel
& MICHAEL 8 MCDEVITT Dircctor March 31, 2011

Michael 5. McDevitt

5! JERRY 1. REECE IJrector March 31, 2001
Jerry D Beece
fal JEANNETTE M. MILLS Director March 31, 2011

Jearnmette M. Mills

s/ REV. DONALD F, REILLY, OSA Director March 31, 2011

Rev. Donald F. Reilly, O5A

s MARGARET SHEETZ Dhirector March 31, 2011

Margaret Sheets
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Medifast, Inc,

Corporate Subsidiaries

Jason Pharmaceuticals, Ine.
Take Shape for Life. Inc.

Jason Properties, LLC

Jason Enterprises, Inc.

Medifast Franchise Svstems
Seven Crondall Associates, LLC

State of Incorporation
Maryland
Delaware
Maryland
Delaware
Delaware
Maryland
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Exhibit 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a} CERTIFICATION

[, Michacl 5. MeDevitt, certify that:

2

[ have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Medifast, [nc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respeet to the period covered
by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, resulls of operations and cash Mows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifving oflicer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining diselosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(0)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)

{b)

(e

id)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating 1o the registrant, ineluding its consolidated subsidianies, is made known 1o us by
others within those entitics, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles.

Evaluated the eflectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conelusions aboul the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the peried covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Diselosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over linancial reporting that oceurred during the registrant’s most
recent [scal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiseal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially allfected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons perlorming the equivalent functions):

(a)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and malerial weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contral over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely afTect the registrant’s ability o record, process, summanze and report finaneial information; and

Amy [raud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
eomirel over linancial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2011

fsf  Michael 5. McDevitt

Michacl 5. McDevitt
Chiel Executive (MTicer



Exhibit 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

|, Brendan N. Connors certify that:

12

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Medilast, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue stalement of a material fact or omil 1o state a material facl necessary 1o make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanees under which such statements were made, nol misleading with respeet to the period covered
by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash lows of the registrant as of] and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over linancial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(0)
and 15d-15(1)} for the registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure conirals and procedures 1o be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its conselidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those enlilies, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control aver financial reporting, or caused such internal control over linancial reporting 1o be designed under our
supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this reporl our conclusions aboul the
elfectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Diselosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over Gnancial reporting that oceurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely 1o materially alleet, the registrant’s internal control over linancial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitlee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons perlorming the equivalent functions):

(a)

()

Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisirant’s ability 1o record, process, summanze and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or nol material, that invelves management or other emplovees who have a signilicant role in the registrant’s internal
confrol over linancial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2011

s/ Brendan N. Connors

Brendan N, Connors
Chiefl Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Medifast, Inc. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2010 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), | Michael S, McDevitt, Chief Exccutive Officer and | Brendan N. Conors
Chiefl Financial Officer of the Company, certily, pursuant to 18 UL.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, to the best of my knowledge, that:

(1) The Beport fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the linancial condition and results of the operations of the
Company,

By /s ] 1
Michael 5. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2011

By: /& Brendan N, Connors
Brendan N. Connors
Chief Financial Officer

March 31. 2011
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